6:00 pm
6:05 pm

6:10 pm
6:15 pm

6:20 pm

6:25 pm

6:30 pm

6:40 pm
6:50 pm
6:55 pm
7:00 pm
7:05 pm

7:15 pm

MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD
MEETING AGENDA

FULLER MEADOW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
TUESDAY, MAY 28, 2024
6:00 PM
This meeting is being recorded
Reorganization: Elect Chair; Elect Clerk

2. Business

a. Warrant: 2423 and 2424 and FP 37 and FP 38

b.  Minutes: March 2, 2024; April 9, 2024 ES; April 23, 2024; May 7, 2024 OS; May 7, 2024

ES; May 14, 2024

c. Town Administrator Updates and Reports
3.  Public Comment
4. Quarter 3 Update from Finance Director/Town Accountant Sarah Wood
5. Reclassification of ARPA monies

a. Coneco Proposal — Couture Way Pipe
6. Follow up discussion on Annual Town Meeting and Annual Town Election

a. Middleton Masconomet Regional District School Committee Representatives
7. 6:30 PM Public Hearing Flammable and Combustible License application for Michael McGrath
Incorporated, DBA Michael McGrath Heating Oil & Diesel, 156 North Main Street, owner Michael
McGrath,
8. Vote on staff and committee reappointments and potential new appointments (see attached list)
9. Locust St. Parcel engineering discussion with Scott Cameron of the Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.
10. Traffic Count Study Proposal for Memorial Hall bypass at the intersection of Routes 114 and 62
11. Board vote to authorize MassWorks application for intersection of Boston Street and S. Main Street.
12. Middleton Municipal Complex contract approvals
13. Updates & Announcements
Upcoming Meetings: June 18 Regular Select Board Meeting
July 9 Regular Select Board Meeting
August 6 Regular Select Board Meeting

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed
and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.



MEETING MINUTES

MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD MEETING
HOWE-MANNING ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

26 CENTRAL STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
TUESDAY MAY 14, 2024 at 6:30 PM

Select Board present: Chair Jeff Garber; Brian Cresta; Kosta Prentakis; Debbie Carbone; Rick Kassiotis

Also attending: John Erickson, Co-Chair, Finance Committee; Richard Gregorio, Co-Chair, Finance Committee
Michelle Cresta, Finance Committee; Tom Martinuk, Finance Committee; Peter Moon, Finance Committee;
Sarah Wood, Finance Director; Trevor Currier, Middleton Masconomet Rep; Matt Alexander, Middleton
Masconomet Rep; Michael Harvey, Superintendent, Masconomet Regional SD; Justin Sultzbach, Town
Administrator and Recording Secretary, and others as noted.

Not present: none

With a quorum present Chair Garber called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm.
The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed tmay in fact be
discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

The Board attended a meeting of the Middleton Finance Committee. A discussion ensued about the potential
recommendations by both bodies to the Annual Town Meeting, particular on the Article for a $5 million bond
for a roof/HVAC/building management project by Masconomet Regional School District.

Discussion continued on the process and need for the project. The Select Board took no action and their
recommendation of 3 in favor of not recommending the project and 2 abstaining from a prior meeting was
not revised.

Adjournment: The Board unanimously adjourned from open session to participate in the Annual Town
Meeting at 6:50 pm.

Respectfully submitted by,

Justin Sultzbach
Justin Sultzbach, Recording Secretary

Rick Kassiotis, Select Board Clerk

Documents either distributed to the Select Board before the meeting in a packet or at the meeting:
Agenda: May 14, 2024

Middleton Select Board Mecting Minutes
May 14, 2024 Page 1/2



Draft

MEETING MINUTES
MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD MEETING
FULLER MEADOW SCHOOL, NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
May 7, 2024 at 5:00 PM

This meeting was in person, broadcast live & on Zoom, recorded by Civic Media and posted on You Tube.

With a quorum present the Chair called the meeting to order at 5 pm.

Select Board present: Jeff Garber, Chair; Rick Kassiotis, Clerk; Brian Cresta (via Zoom); Kosta Prentakis; Debbie
Carbone. Also attending: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator (L-6:30pm); Jackie Bresnahan Assistant Town
Administrator /Human Resource Director; Catherine Tinsley, Recording Secretary {via Zoom); others as noted.

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be
discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

1.
a.

Business
Warrant 2422 of May 2, 2024: Payroll $804,264; Bills payable § 3.5 million;

The Town Accountant/Finance Director Sarah Wood has reviewed the warrant and requested the Board’s
approval. Town Administrator Sultzbach provided a brief overview of the warrant presented for approval.

On a motion by Prentakis second by Kassiotis the Select Board voted unanimously by roll call to approve
Warrant 2422 as presented.

b. Minutes- March 28, 2024; April 9, 2024 OS; April 9, 2024 ES*; April 18, 2024; April 23, 2024%; April 29, 2024
*April 9, 2024 ES & April 23, 2024 minutes were not in the packet and no action was taken.
On a motion by Kassiotis seconded Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to accept the minutes
of March 28, 2024; April 9, 2024 OS; April 18, 2024; April 29, 2024

¢. Town Administrator Updates & Reports —J. Sultzbach

e Pre town meeting at 7 PM for the upcoming May 14 Annual Town Meeting.
s Fire Chief LeColst was present and spoke on a recent event and recognized the individuals that
participated in a life saving actions. A formal presentation is scheduled Thursday night.

2. Public Comment - There was none.

The agenda was taken out of order with concensus.*

3. Vote on continuation of One Day Liquor License for Winter Hill Brewing: May 11 — June 30
The Board referenced a letter from the Police Chief stating there have not been any instances and no detail
was recommend at this time.
On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to approve the
One Day Liquor License for Winter Hill Brewing.
Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes

May 7, 2024 Page 1/6



Draft

4, Board & Committee Appointments
George Dow was thanked for serving on the Building Committee.

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously by roll all to appoint the
following members though the end of the project being 6 months after the occupancy permit of the last
building, and reduce the voting membership from seven to five: William Renault; Paul Armitage; Nicholas
Bonugli; Kyle Smith; Frank Twiss. Ex-officio members: Fire Chief Doug LeColst; Police Chief William
Sampson; Town Administrator Justin Sultzbach, Assistant Town Administrator Jackie Bresnahan; Council
on Aging Director Jillian Smith.

5. ¥*Masco Capital Discussion - Article 16

Masco Superintendent Dr. Harvey was present with Matt Alexander, Middleton Representative on the Masco
School Commiittee, for this agenda item to further discuss article 16 on the Annual Town Meeting Warrant
asking voters to approve $5,000,000 debt authorized by Masconomet Regional School District for the purpose of
paying costs of an owners project manager (OPM) and design services in connection with the roof, HVAC, &
Building Management System (replacement) construction project at the high school / middle school.

J. Sultzbach noted officials from Boxford and Topsfield were informed of this discussion and extended an
invitation. Some officials from Boxford were present, not participating.

Because this project is being prepared with the intention of submitting for the 2027 cycle of MSBA
(Massachusetts School Board Authority) funding, the Town Administrator spoke with a representative from
MSBA regarding the timeline and how this project would align. J. Sultzbach reviewed roofs, windows, and doors
are the only funding guaranteed and there is no guaranteed funding for heating or cooling systems. He added
funding is not required in advance of an invitation to participate in MSBA funding programs and stressed to the
Board the scope of projects may not be bundled as being presented but that specific votes must be taken by
town meeting on each individual project. He pointed out this is not how the project / funding is proposed, and
going forward in this manner will preclude any MSBA funding. It was noted this Information is on the MSBA web
site.

J. Sultzbach strongly recommended this request be held for 2025, but Dr. Harvey disagreed citing in 2025 the
Town would be asked for funding for the full project. Dr. Harvey stressed the current state of decline and failure
of equipment and opined the MSBA would not fund this project anyways due to heavy competition for grant
money.

The Select Board responded to this information with questions directed to Dr. Harvey and identified their
primary concerns. Dr. Harvey said the School Committee recommended partial funding and not to request the
entire amount in 2024 (estimated $30,000,000).

The Board agreed this project was viable but shared the concern that as presented would not be eligible for
MSBA funding, noting $5,000,000 does not solve the problems and that future funding is not secured.

B.Cresta spoke on his concern that the project is likely not to receive MSBA reimbursement and opined this was
a “foolish decision and lacked fiduciary responsibility”. He went on to highlight facts from a recent discussion
with Inaugural Director of MSBA who also agreed 20 percent for repair design and OPM is significantly high.

B. Cresta compared it to the town’s newly designed $70 million municipal project OPM at 10 percent. He felt the
effort towards this project was not transparent and this was the 11" hour to be presenting this override, which
he reiterated puts the town at risk to not be reimbursed.

M. Alexander responded these have been discussed at public meetings on what they believe to be a methodical
plan from information they have received from start to finish. The School Committee was given a 16 percent
average for OMP that they believed to have been from MSBA and combined with other experienced people in
the field, settled on the 20 percent, but do not have to spend this if it comes in lower.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
May 7, 2024 Page 2/6



Draft

An oral review of the soft estimates and capital plan was given by Dr Harvey; he referenced Stantec studies and
estimates and the capital plan distributed in February 2023 including the quotes for the systems, noting these
will all go out to bid.

K. Prentakis asked if more than one OPM firm was consulted as opposed to taking percentage of the estimated
total project and Dr. Harvey responded he was told J. Sands, finance director, spoke to other firms and followed
the usual process.

The Board discussed whether to support the article with the three concerns being:

1. High OPM of 20 percent.

2. Seeking partial {S5 million) vs the total project cost at this time is not clear to taxpayers of the total cost and
potentially future funding for the remainder of the project may fail and this $5 million would be wasted.

3. Potentially not being eligible for reimbursement from MSBA because of the proposed process.

In summary, The Board felt the override was not a fiduciarily responsible approach and lacked transparency to
the voters, most likely would precluded the town from reimbursement from MSBA, and without the total
project cost being known/ approved, supporting this article was too high a risked with tax payers money. The
School acknowledged the risk.

Approaching the project with the assumption that MSBA will not fund this project, J. Sultzbach again proposed a
full cost project with accurate estimates be presented to town meeting in 2025, and if approved, follow final
design bid with contrition for summer 2026. This included taking this year (2024) to form a building committee
and talk to the tri towns. The discussion resumed on the process and the Boards concerns.

K. Prentakis reviewed the Board’s options to support, oppose, or not take a position on the override.

Carbone expressed her frustration that the capital plan was brought forward in March 2023 but now in 2024 - 6
days from town meeting they are having this discussion and being put in this position; the administration and
school committee should have had more transparency and involvement from the three towns.

On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Kassiotis, the Board voted 3-0-2 by roll call not to support (article
16) and take a vote of opposition with a declaration on the floor of town meeting for this (article 16)
warrant article.

Cresta -vyes

Prentakis — abstained citing neither opposing or supporting is right

Garber — yes due to the process

Kassiotis — yes citing there is time to get this right and this vote will not change the timeline.

Carbone — abstained- reckless to spend the tax payers money

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Kassiotis, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to support
Article 17. ( Masconomet Regional Capital Request to appropriate $135,586 to pay a portion of the
costs of FY 205 capital needs to be funded by Free Cash)

6. *Planning Director Screening Committee recommendation - The Planning Director Screening Committee
included a Select Board, Planning Board, Zoning Board member and the Town Administrator and Assistant Town
Administrator.

D. Carbone served on this committee and noted after much discussion, in part due to the current development
stage of Middleton and that C. Reilly is a seasoned planner, this was a good fit for Middleton and the Committee
was unanimous to recommend Chris Reilly as the Planning Director. C. Reilly was present and spoke briefly on
his experience as a Planner and his appreciation on the opportunity to work in Middleton.

C. Reilly will start June 3.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
May 7, 2024 Page 3/6



Draft

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to appoint
Chris Reilly as Planning Director for a term through June 30, 2027.

7. MBTA community — At the request of the Chair, the MBTA Zoning was on the agenda for discussion. J. Garber
suggested the Board recommend no action on this item at Town Meeting. R. Kassiotis responded he has not
gotten a lot of push back on this, and he opined waiting may not benefit Middleton, adding this is not a mandate
to build but to create zoning. K. Prentakis opined additional time would allow continued education so residents
an make an informed decision. B. Cresta mentioned legislation is out of formal session in July and there will not
be any changes made. B. Cresta and D. Carbone opined this will end up in court where decisions and
amendments will be made, but that the town not to miss the time frame and risk state grant funding. The
deadline is December 31 and if not on the spring town meeting, the town would have to commit to a fall town
meeting. It was the consensus of the Board the MBTA Zoning remain on the 2024 ATM warrant for voters .

8. Middleton Municipal Complex Contract
The following was unanimously approved for recommendation by the Building Committee:

» Construction testing vender (materials on site): Fenagh Inc. - subject to approval from Town Counsel,
On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to
award the Construction Testing Vendor per the building committee’s recommendation.

* Audio / Visual - A special RFP was done for the audio/ visual vendor because of the high tech needs -
Value Communications.
On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Kassiotis the Board voted unanimously by roll call to
award the Audio/ Visual Vendor per the building committee’s recommendation.

* Amendment #9-$ 5,500 for septic re-design for additional engineering work.
On a motion by Prentakis seconded Kassiotis the Board voted unanimously by roll call to approve
amendment #9 for the septic redesign in the amount of $5,500.

e Amendment #10 - $3,600 to include additional electrical work on the town green to the gazebo.
On a motion by Prentakis seconded Carbone the Board voted unanimously by roll call to approve
amendment #10 for the electrical work on the green in the amount of $3,600.

9. Revie & Approve Contract for Police Chief William Sampson. For Fy 25-27

On a motion by Prentakis seconded by Carbone, the Board voted 4-0-1 by roll call to approve the
Contract for Police Chief Sampson, with R. Kassiotis recusing himself from this vote, as a member of the
Police Department.

10. Review new non-union classifications for one position -

J Bresnahan referenced the Collins Center Classification Study and spoke on the proposed adjustment to a new
non-union position, previously unclassified.

The request of the Board was to classify the Police Captain position to a grade E and give that position the
market grade increase as recommended. The financial impact: FY24 - $4,065 & FY 25 — $7702.84

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously to accept the
recommendations of the Collins Study. R. Kassiotis recused himself as @ member of the Police
Department.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
May 7, 2024 Page 4/6



Draft

10. Memorial Hall Visioning — Consultant Studio Luz Architects (SLA): Sarah Pumphry Project Manager; Hansey
Better Barraza, Principal; Elise Ziious Project Designer. Claire O’Neil, Sr. Vice President, Real Estate Planning from
Mass Development was also present.
S. Pumphry referenced a slide deck and spoke on the community engagement in Middleton regarding the reuse
of Town Hall after offices have moved to the new facility. SLA held both an on-line and in person forum, and
conducted a public survey. In summary, there were 114 participants.
Most supported the historical building be saved and most participants did not want high density housing, bar/
club or retail use. The most supported uses were:
Recreation open space - 64
Community center ( it was noted a community center is a part of the new facilities project) - 43
Playground - 45

Minimal reuse — 57% for new programing / reuse

Expansion - 11% to increase footprint for new programing / reuse
Creative Adaptation — 16% demolish existing structure or relocate
Other -11%

PwnNneE

SLA prepared three schemes for discussion purpose:
o Scheme A - existing building for community related program; mixed use
o Scheme B — affordable housing preserving access to playground/fields
o Scheme C - relocate the building for community use and relocate the fields for affordable housing and
allow for future road relocation/traffic mitigation.

It was confirmed the participation of the survey was concentrated from the abutters/area of this site.

The project schedule / timeline was reviewed with the final report due June 25, 2024. SLA will present schemes
based on feedback from the Board at the June 18 meeting.

J. Bresnahan noted the town will have about two years to plan for the use of this property.

SLA requested feedback from the Board.

It was noted some participants did not seem aware of the town’s municipal project/plans and current challenges
to Route 114 traffic. Discussion included relocating fields, incorporating affordable housing, maintaining the
playground, rehabilitation costs to bring the building up to code was likely prohibitive, and if investing in
rehabilitation was wise with possible changes to the intersection/ traffic mitigation could impact this property in
the future.

The Board noted the importance to keep (as much of) the fields as possible and maintain the facade of the
building, while creating low density affordable housing. Traffic was acknowledged as one of the driving forces to
any plans for this property, not a part of this project.

One of the Board’s concern was that this property not be left vacant.

12. Updates & Announcements
June 22- Chief Wills Day (rain date 6/23)

13. Upcoming Meetings:
Select Board Meetings: May 28; June 18, July 9
May 14: Annual Town Meeting

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
May 7, 2024 Page 5/6



Draft

7:45 PM - R. Kassiotis recused himself from Executive Session and left the meeting.

14. Executive Session - Middleton Police Benevolent Association
On a motion by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to enter into Executive Session
pursuant to G.L ¢. 30A, s. 21 (a) (3) to discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining negotiations:
Middleton Police Benevolent Association and return to open session for vote.

The Board returned to open session at 7:59 pm
On a motion by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to approve the contract with the
Middleton Police Benevolent Association.

Adjournment - The Board unanimously adjourned at 8:02 pm.

Respectfully submitted by,
Catherine E. Tinsley
Catherine Tinsley, Recording Secretary

Rick Kassiotis, Select Board Clerk

Documents either distributed to the Select Board before the meeting in a packet or at the meeting:
e Agenda: May 7, 2024
e  Warrant #2422
e Community Engagement Analysis: Memorial Hall
e Police Chief Employment Agreement
e Collins Center Compensation & Classification Study
¢  Winter Hill Brewing One Day Liguor License 4/20-6/30
e Middleton Police Benevolent Association Contract

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
May 7, 2024 Page 6/6



Draft

MEETING MINUTES
MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD MEETING
FULLER MEADOW SCHOOL, NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
April 23, 2024 at 6:00 PM

This meeting was in person, broadcast live, recorded by Civic Media, and posted on You Tube.

With a quorum present the Chair called the meeting to order at 6 pm.

Select Board present: Jeff Garber, Chair; Rick Kassiotis, Clerk; Brian Cresta; Kosta Prentakis; Debbie Carbone.
Also attending: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator; Jackie Bresnahan Assistant Town Administrator /Human
Resource Director; and others as noted.

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be
discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

Business

a. Warrant 2421 of April 18, 2024: Payroll $ 820,000; Bills payable $ 1,100,000; FP 36 $ 183,820

The Town Accountant/Finance Director Sarah Wood has reviewed the warrant and requested the Board’s
approval. Town Administrator Sultzbach provided a brief overview of the warrant presented for approval.

On a motion by Prentakis second by Carbone, the Select Board voted unanimously to approve Warrant 2421
and FP 36 as presented.

b. Town Administrator Updates & Reports —J. Sultzbach
¢ The Masco Representatives held a presentation on Thursday, April 18th to discuss their $5,000,800 million

capital request. J. Sultzbach will be sending a list of final questions regarding the project at the end of this
week for a discussion at your May 7th meeting.

e J.Sultzbach hosted a meeting on Friday the 12th with representatives from the ZBA, Villebridge Middleton,
TEC and MassDOT to discuss future infrastructure coordination, specifically pertaining to a potential future
MassWords grant. Thank you to all that participated.

e We are continuing Annual Town Meeting outreach. A huge thanks to Adam Stone for recording a brief
overview of the warrant with me. We will also be visiting some HOA's over the coming weeks, the COA, as
well as hosting a forum on Monday, April 29th at 6pm at Fuller Meadow to discuss the override and MBTA
Zoning in advance of candidate’s night. Additionally, a full pre-town meeting will be held on Tuesday, May
7th at 7pm. Department heads will be present.

*  Mark your calendars, we are planning a ceremonial June 14th Ground Breaking for the Public Facilities
project. (Work will start in advance, sometime in early May). More to follow.

* J. Sultzbach attended the April 16th Charter Review Committee meeting. We discussed elements pertaining
to the Town Administrator. | appreciate the opportunity to provide input.

+ Deb Mahoney will be leaving us as Administrative Assistant to become the Office Coordinator in the Clerk’s
Office. Best of luck to Deb, and thank you for her service.

» J. Sultzbach asked TEC for rough numbers to study the feasibility of running Boston Street through to Maple,
bypassing the square. It is estimated such a proposal would run in the neighborhood of 25k. There is a more

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
April 23, 2024 Page 1/5



Draft

cost-effective path- an Origin Destination Assessment, which would be less than $7k. A formal proposal will
be available at your May 7th meeting.

*  MPA Grad Fellow Billy Walsh has been working with department heads and staff to collaborate with
CivicPlus on a website redesign. We are pleased to announce that the updated website will be launched in
mid-May. Residents who have scenic pictures of Middleton for the website can email them to ATA
Bresnahan at Jackie.bresnahan@middletonma.gov. J. Bresnahan gave an overview of the new website.

» Join the Middleton Stream Team this Sunday, April 28th for the annual Earth Day festival from noon to 3 pm
at Rubchinuk Park. An afternoon of fun for all ages, there will be music, games, displays, a visit from Smokey
the Bear and the Middleton Fire Department, and activities celebrating Mother Earth. The event is free. Rain
date is May 5th

2. Public Comment - There was none.

3. Conservation Agent Kristin Kent- Couture Way Stormwater Peer Review- Coneco Engineers: Kevin McHugh,
PE, Engineering Principal was present and participated in this agenda item.

K .Kent introduced the discussion on stormwater management for Northeast River Estates. The Peer Review
specifically included potential causes of damaging flooding offsite. The original subdivision documents were
reviewed and no definitive reason was determined with the design, however, there were some concerns with
the construction and methods used to control stormwater. K. McHugh summarized the Stormwater Pollution
Construction Plan did not specify what should be done to control run- off from the sites. The primary concern is
there are not a lot of stormwater controls being used overall during construction to manage the runoff, which is
leaving the sites causing the flooding. Other possible contributors to the flooding were mentioned in the report.
K. Kent noted one of the challenges is people are buying the lots at Northeast River Estates from the developer
who installed just the road and is selling off the lots for individual construction. Erosion controls are required to
be installed by the property owners via the permit. It was noted these lots are not at final grade and not being
overseen by a developer and possibly not managed properly. Even though there is catch basins, the road is not
at final grade and water may be bypassing the drainage. The drainage system will be cleaned by the developer at
the completion of the sub division. It was noted this roadway is years away from meeting the criteria to be
requested as a street by the town.

K. McHugh observed the road is curved and the run off is minor from the road and mostly coming off the lots
which are no longer stabilized by vegetation. This includes from the increase of impervious surfaces i.e. roofs
and pavement. The peer review recommended plans should have stormwater plans built into the management
plans for construction. The stop work orders have been lifted and six houses are ready for landscaping.

K. Kent identified the Town owns, and is responsible for, a dam structure on the Northeast property and pipe;
there is a drainage easement. She recommended hiring an engineer to determine liability.

The meeting was open to the public.

Mike Kessel, Cabral Drive, spoke on the flooding damage and said he spoke to the owner of Couture Lane but
did not get a response. He voiced his frustration over the damage to is property and lack of responsibility.

Edwin Cowart, Cabral Drive, directed his comments on the inadequacies of water run-off control on the new
lots. He observed curtains in place are used solely to stop silt, not water and noted this was brought to the
town’s attention after the July storm. E Cowart addressed two issues being the headwall should be reengineered
as it does not handle the pressure of water surge from the storms and for the town to pressure the developers
to find a resolution.

Anthony Wood, Cabral Drive, identified his property as having been the conduit for the water due to the
positioning of the silt socks that funneled the water straight downhill from the cleared lots in Northeast Estates.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
April 23, 2024 Page 2/5



Draft

He repeated the same concerns and additional expenses due to the flooding and he also spoke to the building
behind him to use sandbags to help temporarily redirect water. He further explained the dam structure has one
12 inch out pipe which is receiving water from not only wetlands, but five lots that have a catchment pond.
Leaves and debris clog this pipe often causing it to overflow; currently the DPW is clearing it weekly.

Ralph Kraft, Cabral Drive, confirmed he now has a small lake in his front yard.

Residents noted water has been present in the retention ponds for weeks; K. McHugh stated water should not
be holding in a retention pond for more than 72 hours. The residents voiced health concerns and possible
violations.

The Board supported engineering be done to confirm is the structure/pipe is sufficient, citing the topography
and landscaping has changed the area. Pending the report, the developer will be involved as appropriate.

The Board directed the various town department to regularly monitor this area. The Town Administrator will
prepare a scope of work to have engineering done to further identify specific areas as identified in the peer
review. This lead a brief discussion on how the town may improve the permitting process to reduce
inconsistencies and loop holes and what regulatory action can be taken after permits are issued. -

One resident questioned how mitigation would be provided to make these residents who experienced “whole”.
The Board responded these are all pieces of the process to collect information to understand liability. The
original plan presented in August 2021 was referenced that all water would remain on the (Northeaster) site.

4, Vote on Alteration of Premises application to its existing licensed premises for Luv Kush Marketing, DBA
Howe’s Station, 229 Maple Street, Manager Dipak Karia

On a motion by Cresta it was unanimously voted to open the public hearing at 7:23 pm.
Present to speak on the application was Attorney Jill Mann representing the applicant. She reported the ZBA
approved the expansion to 229 Maple Street building (Howe Station) by 512 square feet to “even out the
building”. Attorney Mann provided additional renderings of the proposed addition to the Board.
A full seconded story was added for office space and storage and the first floor storage/cooler was expanded.
Attorney Mann summarized the increase in alcohol storage requires this alteration to be a part of the license
and be approved by the board. She confirmed the same number of parking spaces was maintained and meets
the bylaws without a significant change in retail space. The hearing was open for public comment/questions;
there were none.

On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Kassiotis, the board voted unanimously to approve the application
for expansion of the existing license premises for Luv Kush Marketing DBA Howe’s Station, at 229 Maple
Street, Manager Dipak Karia, as depicted in documents provided.

On a motion by Cresta it was unanimously voted to close the public hearing at 7:36 pm.
5. Vote on One Day Liquor License for Cellar Door for The Natural Dog, 189 S. Main Street. — May 18
Bea Tiberii, owner of Cellar Door was present and spoke on the request for a one day beer and wine license as a
benefit to promote pet adoption at the Natural Dog at 189 S. Main Street. Cones and plastic fencing will be used
around the area where the alcohol will be served/consumed, to be monitored by Cellar Door. This application

did not meet criteria for Police review.

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Cresta, the Board voted unanimously to approve a One Day
Liquor License for Cellar Door for The Natural Dog, 189 S. Main Street on May 18.

The agenda was taken out of order with consent. * Middleton Municipal Complex contract approvals.

6. Reclassification of ARPA Monies- This agenda item was deferred to a future meeting.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
April 23, 2024 Page 3/5



Draft

7. Final Review of Sick Leave Bank Policy- ). Bresnahan provided the information on the school’s three collective
bargaining units sick leave bank policies as requested at the previous meeting.

The sick leave bank is an employee handbook policy as approved by the Select Board; unions may opt in during
bargaining. Units not participating can be offered a side letter.

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Sick Leave
Policy as presented.

8. Discussion of H.4138 The Affordable Homes Act — B. Cresta spoke on this agenda item regarding the MBTA
zoning requirements and suggested the Board review additional legislation that is pending. Specifically the
Affordable Homes Act to expand affordable housing across the Commonwealth. He noted this includes a
transfer tax upon the sale of a property on high value homes, over $1 million dollars; the average home in
Middleton is $950,000. B. Cresta observed what is proposed is not what is always passed i.e. MBTA Zoning,
which can lead to unintended consequences. He recommended the Select Board respond to a letter to
Middleton’s Delegation and Chairs of the House and Senate Ways and Means Committee and one member work
with the Town Administrator on such a letter. B. Costa offered to work on a draft letter.

On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Kassiotis, the Board voted unanimously to designate B. Cresta to
work with the Town Administrator to develop a letter to legisiative leaders and Middleton’s Delegation
on House Bill 4138 and provide input of concerns regarding the Town of Middleton.

9.* Middleton Municipal Complex contract approvals

J. Sultzbach summarized OPM Brian LaRoche PCA 360, and Tom Hood were present to speak on the sub bids for
the municipal project and request the Board’s Authorization on specific items as reviewed by the Building
Committee. B. LaRoche referenced the W.T. Rich Company draft GMP cost Summary for the project based on
bids received to date, the project is anticipated to be on budget; currently about $660,000 under budget after
having bid $40,000,000 of work with an additional $16,000,000 of work remaining to be bid.

On a motion by Cresta, seconded, by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously To Award (RTA) #001 — for
Trade Bid Contractors in the amount of 523,364,445, including the full acceptance and to proceed on Bid
Alternate 1, and to authorize negotiations/pricing for further review by the Building Committee on Bid
Alternates 2 and 3

On a motion by Cresta, seconded, by Kassiotis, the Board voted unanimously To Award (RTA) #002 —
Priority Non-Trade Bid Contractors, at a value not to exceed 515,800,000, including the full acceptance
and to proceed on Bid Alternate 1, and to authorize negotiations/pricing for further review by the
Building Committee on Bid Alternates 2 and 3

On a motion by Cresta, seconded, by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously To Amendment #001 to
WT Rich Contract to include the above-mentioned RTAs #001 and #002 not to exceed the total value of
$39,164,445 for a total contract value to date of $39,289,355 subject to approval of contract form by
Town Counsel.

10. Updates & Announcements
K. Prentakis reminded residents walking the rail trail to pick up after their dogs.
Chief Wills Day is June 22 with a rain date of June 23.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
April 23, 2024 Page 4/5



Draft

Upcoming Meetings:
Select Board Meetings: May 7, May 28; June 11
May 14: Annual Town Meeting

Adjournment - The Board unanimously adjourned at 7:.58pm.
Respectfully submitted by,

Catherine E. Tinsley
Catherine Tinsley, Recording Secretary

Rick Kassiotis, Select Board Clerk

Documents either distributed to the Select Board before the meeting in a packet or at the meeting:
e Agenda: April 9 2024
e Warrant #2421; FP 36
e Town Administrator update
e Coneco Engineering Peer Review 3.20.24
e Alterations of Premises Liquor License Application — Howes Station Market
e One Day Liquor License Application — Cellar Door
e Sick Bank Policy
» House Docket — Affordable Homes Act
e  W.T. Rich Company — Request to Award #0001- Trade Bid Contractors 4.11.24

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
April 23, 2024 Page 5/5



SELECT BOARD & FINANCE COMMITTEE
FY2025 CAPITAL BUDGET SUMMIT
MEETING AGENDA
FULLER MEADOW SCHOOL, NATHAN MEDIA CENTER 143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
SATURDAY, MARCH 2, 2024 8:30 AM

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may be discussed
and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.
8:33AM Call to Order — With quorums present the meeting was called to order.

Select Board present: Chair Jeff Garber; Rick Kassiotis, Clerk (L-4:03pm); Kosta Prentakis, Debbie Carbone (L-
12:30), Brian Cresta

Finance Committee present: John Erickson, Co-Chair, Richard Gregorio, Co-Chair; Michelle Cresta; Peter Moon;
Jason Vining; Toni Mertz; Thomas Martinuk

Also attending: Town Administrator Justin Sultzbach; Finance Director / Town Accountant Sarah Wood; Assistant
Town Administrator (ATA)/HR Director Jackie Bresnahan, Recording Secretary, and other attendees as noted.

8:30am Introductory comments - Justin Sultzbach gave an overview of the FY 25 operating budget changes
since the February Operating Budget Summit including changes to revenue, expenses, and supplemental
requests. The deficit remains around approximately $600,000, down from the previous deficit of $925,000.
A net decrease of $201,000. Finance Director Wood went through each item individually.

Reference to the changes in operating budget document were made by Finance Director Wood.

Questions ensued about the IT replacement schedule as well as how the Essex Tech enrollment works.

Revenue 3.7% year over year. Expense overall 5.2%. Budgets to be finalized include Masconomet, Elementary
schools, Police Contract, Recreation.

9:00AM Masconomet Regional School Capital Budget: Supt. Dr. Michael Harvey
School Committee members present: Trevor Currier

Super. Harvey. School Committee is deliberating and looking to vote on March 20" on capital. Public Hearing is
March 6™. Reviewed timing and three categories:

Category 1 - Roof, HVAC, bldg. mgt

Category 2 —Turf field project

Category 3 — other long-term projects

All are recommendations from the School Committee’s Capital Improvement Committee.

FY 2025 Capital Budget Summit
March 2, 2024 Meeting Minutes Page 1/5



The Select Board and Finance Committee asked questions about the categories of capital spending for
Masconomet, in particular questions about the roof and HVAC units. Members also asked about ongoing
maintenance practices for when these projects are completed.

Update from Trevor Currier on Turf fundraising: No $100,000 in hand, $50,000 in pledge from bank, $50,000 in
private pledges, $480,000 non-binding indications of intent for a total of $680,000 in potential donations. May
see more once permits are done. Estimates will be available in upcoming weeks.

Some discussion around the make up of the BAN for the $1 million of category 3 expenses occurred.

9:33AM Middleton Elementary Schools: Superintendent Scott Morrison, Asst. Superintendent Steve Greenberg;
School Committee Chair Michelle Aiken (all A- 9:15 am)

No updates on operating budget. FY 25 Capital requests include design and bidding for roof replacement for part
of Fuller Meadow and part of the MSBA Accelerated Statement of Interest. Projects for outlying years were also
reviewed. Member Prentakis asked about timeframe on the driveway layout project and if there would be a
funding request for it in FY 25. Superintendent Morrison is working with DPW for next school year
locally/internally while looking at broader design next year. Lower cost in house work would be for 24-25 school
year as Golf Course won’t be available for parent pick up parking for fall 2024 due to the beginning of
construction. Board looking for a placeholder number for the in-house layout restructure costs. There was a
discussion of combining some projects in the outlying capital years in the Elementary Schools are successful with
the roof on MSBA funding. There were some questions about if Green Communities would help and the pros
and cons with MELD were identified. Administration identified that the discussion has been had with MELD and
is not an ideal option.

9:50AM Flint Public Library Capital Budget Request: Director Loretta Johnson; Also present: Trustees Susan
Piccole, Donna Bambury; Friends of the Flint Annie Wilton, President

Director Johnson presented on the library roof work that needs to be completed and the various costs from
different contractors. The roof work includes the slate roof and gutters on the original building (not the flat roof
on the addition).

Member Prentakis advocated for the use of CPA funds for the original building roof preservation and repair
work. Member Cresta asked if $49,000 was enough. Director noted she was confident and said the biggest
unknown is the cost of copper. Members identified the need for a band-aid until the work can be done. There
was also a question of the cost for interior patching. There was discussion of increasing the $49,000 to $55,000
or $60,000.

There was consensus on moving the roof preservation and repair to CPC and adding a building assessment for
the Library to the capital plan for FY 25 with an amount to be determined at around $15,000.

10:20AM Public Works: Superintendent Paul Goodwin

Superintendent Goodwin reviewed his FY 25 requests as well as some of the larger requests in the outlying
years. Particular time was spent on reviewing the vehicles to be replaced and what they will be replaced with.

There was some discussion about closing out the COA wall to be appropriated to the dump truck, but there was
consensus it should be closed out to free cash with some left for engineering.

Y 2025 Capital Budget Summit
Match 2, 2024 Meeting Minutes Page 2/5



Discussion continued on mowing and field upgrades for when the new municipal complex is open.
10:45 AM Fire Department Supplemental Budget Request: Chief Doug LeColst

The Chief reviewed all of the FY 25 items on the capital plan and provided some insight on items in outlying
years as well as grant applications for some of the items. If the grants are successful, it may reduce the capital
appropriations, but with the timing of the grants not aligning with Town Meeting, he is requesting to fund the
items. The Lucas CPR device needs to be replaced, but the Fire Department has applied for an Assistance for
Firefighters Grant and if that application is successful, we would not need the expenditure. The Chief also
indicated he received a grant for some of the electronic key system requested.

Some discussion of the time delay on fire vehicles occurred as well as the Department’s continued commitment
to applying for grants for as many capital purchases as feasible.

11:20AM Police Department Supplemental Budget Request: Chief William Sampson; Also present: Captain
Matthew Armitage

The Chief reviewed his FY 25 capital budget requests, including weapon replacements and upgrades to the
evidence room. Some discussion about the ability for the evidence room

11:35AM Select Board/IT/PEG/Essex Tech: TA Sultzbach; ATA/HR Director Bresnahan; Finance Director Wood

TA Sultzbach reviewed the Natsue Way remediation project and potential paving. A discussion about the history
of the landfills and what is required by DEP ensured.

ATA Bresnahan presented the draft [T strategic plan and the FY 25 capital items. Discussion ensued on the
needed upgrades and the step in the right direction for IT management moving forward.

Finance Director Wood presented on the Essex Tech debt. A brief discussion ensured about if free cash is the
best way to fund it for the upcoming years.

12:15 PM Operating Discussion — limit elementary schools to 4%, plus masco going down could solve the
balance and then the supplementals (PD, FD, facilities) go into the override along with elementary.

Facilities discussion — TA Sultzbach reviewed the request for 6 months of a facilities position. Discussion
indicated a need to include capacity for positions in this year’s supplementals now due to the volume of
upcoming overrides from Elementary Schools and Masco. Significant discussion occurred about the importance
of adding capacity this year for items this year and in future years.

12:55 PM Coffee break

1:15 PM Minutes from the previous joint meeting on February 3, 2024:

There was an amendment by Jeff Garber ad by John Erickson; Brian Cresta moved to approve as amended,
second by Kosta Prentakis to approve as amended.

1:20 PM Supplemental requests were reviewed

FY 2025 Capital Budget Summit
March 2, 2024 Meeting Minutes Page 3/5



Significant discussion ensued on the Facilities position.

Jeff Garber moved to move the facilities position until July 1, 2026 (FY 26) with capacity in the override in FY
25, second by Debbie Carbone — discussion — Brian Cresta commented that there should be capacity, but would
be willing to do 3 months in FY 25. The co-chairs of the Finance Committee supported a full year capacity for
funding in FY 25, and half year hire. There was consensus on capacity, but difference of opinion on start date
between January 1 or July 1 2025.

The Select Board and Finance Committee jointly voted in favor of Mr. Garber’s motion — 2 in favor — 9 opposed
— 1 abstain.

Peter Moon moved to build capacity in FY 25 with start date of January 1, 2025, seconded by Tom Martinuk, 8
in favor, 4 opposed, including the Select Board and Finance Committee.

John Erickson moved 100% building capacity in the override, fund 6 months, and SB can decide later on 3
months or 6 months, second Debbie Carbone — 11 - 1-0.

Brian Cresta moved to move the planning admin to the health department budget, with excess levy capacity
for PT position in FY 26, no funding for an additional admin in FY 25. Motion Brian Cresta, second Jeff Garber -
12-0.

Brian Cresta moved to include full time police officers (2 full time patrol), in override, second by Jeff Garber -
11 in favor, 1 abstain (Rick Kassiotis).

Jeff Garber motion to not include funding for Police LT, second Brian Cresta — 11-1-0, Rick Kassiotis abstained.
Motion for 2 frontline Fire personnel by Jeff Garber. No second made
Motion for 3 frontline fire personnel in FY 25 was made by Brian Cresta, second Peter Moon, voted in favor 9-

3.

For the fire Admin officer there was a motion to not support by Tom Martinuk, second by leff Garber. Passed
12-0.

Toni Mertz suggested next year (FY 26) to fund a position out of revolving fund for future programs at COA for
future years with Recreation and nothing from FY 25,

Brian Cresta made a motion to not fund the COA position in FY 25, second Debbie Carbone. Passed 12-0.

Brian Cresta moved to not fund FT reference library, second Debbie Carbone. Passed 11-1.

Brian Cresta moved to approve 2 PT circulation assistants in override, second Debbie Carbone. Passed 12-0.
These motions completed the day’s review of the supplemental budget requests.

The discussion returned to the capital budget.

The Finance Director reported $4.5 million of free cash aka retained earnings. $2.4 million of that free cash can
be used per policy. There are $2.1 million in capital requests with some reductions from funding from CPA funds.

The Finance Director reviewed the recommendation for capital spending as provided. Based on consensus
discussion, addition of 20K for library building assessment from CPA was added to the plan.

Y 2025 Capital Budget Summit
March 2, 2024 Meeting Minutes Page 4/5



Brief review of prior year warrant articles. Some discussion was had on this project as the Finance Director

continues this effort.

Upcoming meetings:
Tuesday, March 5, 6:00PM - regular Select Board meeting

Wednesday, March 20 at 7:00PM — Masconomet School Committee, potential vote on debt

Thursday, March 28, 6:00PM —Jt Select Board/Finance Committee hearing and reading of the Warrant

Thursday, April 4, 6:00PM Joint BOS/FC. Finalize budget, if needed
Tuesday, May 14, 7:00PM Annal Town Meeting
Tuesday, May 21 Annual Town Election

Adjournment — The meeting was adjourned unanimously at 2:50 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Jackie Bresnahan
Jackie Bresnahan, ATA/HR Director and Minutes Secretary

R. Kassiotis, Select Board Clerk

Finance Committee Co-Chair

Documents either distributed before the meeting in a packet or at the meeting:

Agenda

Proposed FY25 Capital Budget 1.30.24

Supplemental Requests

Changes to FY 25 Operating Budget to date

Sarah’s PowerPoint

Masconomet Capital Spending Timelines Preliminary View PPT 3.2.24
FY 25 CIP Summary

FY 25-29 5-year CIP Master File

FY 25 Budget Message

Warrant Article Update (prior year Warrant articles with statuses)
Minutes from the Operating Budget Saturday meeting

IT Strategic Plan

Deputy Superintendent of Municipal Facilities PPT

FY 2025 Capital Budget Summit
March 2, 2024 Meeting Minutes

Page 5/5



TOWN OF MIDDLETON
Office of Finance Director/Town Accountant
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
(978) 777-4966

TO: Select Board/Finance Committee

FROM: Sarah Wood, Finance Director/Town Accountant

DATE: 4/30/2024

SUBJECT: FY 2024, 3" Quarter Highlights

This report includes a summary of the 3 quarter results as of March 31, 2024 of
FY 2024 for the General Fund, CPA Fund, Water Enterprise Fund, Sewer
Enterprise fund as well as a summary of appropriation accounts, revolving
accounts and special revenue accounts.

General Fund Expenditures

As of March 31, 2024, 71.6% of the FY 2024 General Fund budget had been
expended. Please see the chart below for a breakdown of each major category’s
budget versus actual figures as of the second quarter in FY 2024. Encumbrances
and warrant articles are not included in these figures.

Major Category Adjusted Actual Percent
Budget Expended | Expended
General Government $ 2,568,829 | $1,604,598 62%
Public Safety 4,946,151 | 3,328,767 67%
Education 26,495,357 | 18,571,780 70%
Public Works 2,018,177 | 1,251,736 62%
Health and Human Services 557,748 350,547 63%
Culture and Recreation 797,026 515,873 65%
Debt Service 3,805,331 | 2,951,668 78%
State Assessments & Charges 359,180 252,287 70%
Unclassified 4605087 4,197,211 91%

At the end of the third quarter of the fiscal year the total year-to-date

expenditures should be around 75% of the departmental budget.

The Essex North Shore Tech assessment, Snow and Ice, debt service,
retirement assessment and liability insurance all typically have percentages
exceeding 75% in the third quarter due to the timing of payments.

There are two other departments that exceed the 75% threshold for the third
quarter as well: Town report (93%) and Board of Health (82%). The Town report

1



line item is mostly expended and will go over budget this year due to there being
a special town meeting in the fall where warrant books needed to be printed. | will
be requesting a reserve fund transfer at the end of the fiscal year for any
overage. The Board of Health is over due to the Tri-Town Inspector's wages
coming out of this line item. There is an article at the Annual Town Meeting to
adjust the budget for this amount.

At this point in the fiscal year, | am continuously monitoring the departments to
ensure there is enough funds within their budget to finish out the fiscal year.
There are only two departments that | believe will come close to overspending
their budget but | am hopeful that there are funds in our unclassified budget line
items to perform departmental transfers at the end of the fiscal year. Other
required departmental transfers will be wage related for the merit pay and
administrative assistant’s union wages that were funded in the compensation
reserve.

There is still currently $1,701,758 in approved general fund capital projects that
are outstanding. Departments were sent the list with the FY25 capital budget
instructions with the request to update the status of these projects. Within that
listing there are several projects that are earmarked to close at the end of the
fiscal year as the articles came in under budget but there are still several items
that are outstanding. Approximately $700,000 of these articles are for larger
purchases/projects and approximately $330,000 of outstanding items pertain to
projects approved in FY22 or earlier, of which, $107,000 is set to be closed out at
the end of the fiscal year. | have marked the items that are set to either partially
close out or fully close out within the attached listing.

General Fund Revenues

Overall revenue collections were largely in line with current estimates. As of
March 31, 2024, 82.5% or $37,627,212 of total estimated revenues for FY 2024
($45,599,217) had been collected.

Of the local receipts, PILOT (62%), Building Permits (70%) and Medicaid
Reimbursement (61%) are all trending below the 75% benchmark. There is still
one PILOT payment outstanding, typically this is received in May or June.
Building permits have rebounded slightly since the start of the fiscal year but it is
unlikely we will make 100% of the budget by the end of the fiscal year. The
Medicaid reimbursements are trending much lower than past fiscal years, this is
a trend | will continue to keep an eye on to determine if the budget should be
reduced in the future.

The majority of our other revenue categories greatly exceed our 75% benchmark,
with several categories already over 100% of the budgeted amounts.



CPA Fund Expenditures & Revenues

CPA expenditures are at 99% of budgeted expenditures, not inclusive of capital
items. This is consistent with expectations as debt service payments are paid in
the first half of the fiscal year.

CPA revenues are at 87.9% of the budget.

The current fund balance of the CPA fund is $956,451 (inclusive of prior
appropriated fund).

Water Fund Expenditures & Revenues

Water expenditures are at 42% of the budget. This is not unexpected as the
majority of expenditures occur towards the end of the fiscal year as well as
$50,000 budgeted for extraordinary/unforeseen expenses.

The water fund revenues are at 95.4% of budget. The majority of the budget is
made up of a payment from the Town of Danvers that occurs at the end of the
fiscal year; we received FY23’'s payment in July of FY24. The negative amount in
the third quarter is our payment to the Town of Danvers for water liens that are
then added onto residents’ real estate tax bill.

The current fund balance in the water enterprise fund is $1,419,724.25.

I hope the information presented is informative and helpful. If you have any
questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.



VIN ‘UOIR|PPIA JO Umo)

{pa1pneun) saunyipuadxy yzoe 424 [2ISI4

%55 (157 0sS - § 059 5 0001 NOISSIWIWOD T¥DIYOLSIH T69 [BI0L
%LS wrS'6T 095'6€ - 669 9SH'T 90t'LE ¥0T'69 NOISSININOD NOILYIYITY 0£9 |230L
%L9 659'6€C €92°SLY = TrETIT CET'9ST 631'8ST ey'sTL AYYYEI10T9 |BIOL|
%0L 1058°T 661'C - _ 665°C 00T 000'S N1 NIAUVYD 8bS [e10L
%SL 8L 'z s 8L 18Y° 18v°L SZ6'62 TUINNOD NMOL 141 StS [e10L
%3t ££0°SE oTr'ze - LEETT 8TV TT %996 €519 INIOV SNVYYILIA £FS [e30]
%%S GSSTET SLT'LST S PSTZS 065'T9 TEV'EY 0€L°68C ONIOV NO TIDNNOD TS |EI0L
%28 0£9°0¢ 0TO'SET - 8TL'6Y 1374047 8vS'LE 0v9s9T H11v3H 40 Q¥v09 TTS |20)
%95 695t 8/9'7TE = 0EEP2T 88T VTT 19194 £SE'095 NOILYLS YIJSNVYHL 5Z¢ |B10 L]
%CL 11578 €78°202 - 9vS'¥8T r0'ee 9g7 00062 TYAOW3IY 321 '8 MONS €2t (B10L
%Z9 981'8EY VET'6ZL ‘ STY'8ST PILOTE 960'0€2 0Z%°L9T'T NOILYY¥1SININGY MdQ 0zt 12301
%00T vee'e 190748 - 826'07¢ S0Z0EY 876'02¢ S6EVLS ANIINSSISSY HOIL XISST ST€E [BIOL
%SL STTY2LT SYETLT'S s STT'PZLT STT'P2LT STT'YeL'T 09%'968°0T LNINSSISSY INTIWONOISYIN $TE (2101
%59 8CT'L6T'S VLE'LTSE - 296'€SY'E 1z6sre'y 16t'7Z8'T T0SveL YT INIW1¥YdIA TOOHIS TOE [eI0L
%00T = 002 = 002 = - 002 I19VLSNOD 962 [e30]
%09 we6's 0S6'vT - 190°s 8€S5'S 1S€'y 768vC JOYLNOD IVWINY Z6Z [BI0L
%L9 #€9'96 0£9'66T = LSt'69 9TECL 868°LS ¥0£'962 NOILD3dSNI DNIQ1ING THZ [eloL
%89 18S°LSL SE9'PTOT - 000'2€S £22'679 F4n &34 TTTTUET 3Y14 022 (2301
%L9 TCCESL TTE'66YT = 144 Y14 £91'595 619'8vY £€5°75T'C 301104 012 |e10)
%E6 SIS S81°9 - A4 096'¢ - 0002 140d3d NMOL S6T |e1o]]
%¥S TLY'69 670'¢8 s ObP'8¢ £9L'%T 978'6T 105°25T ONIQ1ING NMOL 26T |e10)
%6 09%'T 9¢T - (9€T) (444 - 965°T 3ILLININOD NYTd YILSYIN TST [e104]
%LE 686'C T84T 3 802 £95 (1189 0LL'Y $1v3ddV 30 Q¥v0d 94T |e10)
%L9 8VEvY 58816 - 790°0¢ £PE'SE 0819t £ET9ET a¥vOd ONINNY1d SLT [e10L
%0L L6Y'6T ¥59'19 - 698TT 615'ST 997'0Z 16146 NOISSIWINOD NOILYAYISNOD TLT [elol]
%ET zee’es ¥oTLT - PSL2T 119'T 008'T 98¢'es SNOI1D313 29T |10l
%09 855'68 S9Z'ZET - 680ty 9T6'SH T9¢'Ty £78'1TT MY31D NMOL T9T [e10]
%69 OTT'TIT 917'65¢ - 666'9ZT 828’96 68€'SET 9z£'07S SIN GST |e10)
%69 06592 01Tt'6S . 8/6TT 90€'LT 92101 000'98 T13SNNOD NMOL TST [el0}
%00T » 0057 . 00T - - 005'C SANY1 NMOL 40 NVIQOLSND 91T |eloL
%9 SSE'R0T 709267 = 0TH'L9 ¥46'69 812'SS £56'00€ H01331102/434NSYIYL SPT [e10]
%69 002'69 90T'/ST - 6¥9'St 1919 96661 90£'922 SYOSSIASSY THT jeioL
%L LT0T9 €€S'SLT - zov'ey 816'98 €ST'6¢ 0S5'£€C AINVLNNODIY NMOL SET [el0L
%0 000°00T - - - 3 000°00T aNN4 JAYISIY TET |e10L
%ST GSE'E T09 . (vL2) 414 1957 956'€ J3LLIAWOD FDONVNIH TET 2301
%S9 SES6ET 620°25¢ - €8.18 755’86 2699/ v£5'96€ Qyvod 123135 22T |0l
%00T = 002 S - s | 00z $ = S 2 S | 002 4O LYY3IAOW NMOL ¥1T [e10]
a3asn % 139ang a3aNadx3 alA t 4393enD € lauenp 2 Jauend 1 Jauenp 139an9 anNd YY3IN3D
119VIIVAY lelol vzoz/o€/9 vz0e/Te/€ €202/1€/2T £202/0¢€/6 Papug poliad ay} o4




%v6 | oLT'L $ | e6T'PTI $ | $[vit'ss  s|ess'sz  s|oges'er ¢ | eagten $ | aNN4 3SIYdYILNI aS3s [ero0)
%ey | eev'sit $ | T0s‘szr $ | $[68s'62  $[evo'oc  $[s9s'sz ¢ €z6'00E $ | ANN4 ISIYdYILINI YILVM (€301
%66 | 0007 $ | 0SLvLT $ | $| - $ | oss'vLt £ $ | oss'set $ | Vd) [e30L
%9'TL | ozv'szT'El  § [ 9ov'vzo'ee  § | $ | 611’9026 $ [ svz'sz9'zrs [ zoT'061°TTS [ 988ZST'OY | QNNd TYY3IN3D |elo)
%00T (£21'7) LLT'TS0'T = LLTTOL 000°0S€ 000°0S0°T SANNH YIHLO OL SHIJISNYHL 296 |e104
%68 £L0'LE LTV'16T (zz9'89T) 1ST2T 868°Liry 00582¢€ JFONVHNSNI ALITIAYI SP6 (2201
%v9 726'TY £56'SL TIL%T 091°0¢ 78012 SL8'LTT XVL d30/3¥V2IQ3N 916 [EI0]
%99 178 629°T 99§ S8v 74 0St'T FONVINSNI dNOYD ST6 (2101
%CL |9V 'EVT YIt'9€9 ¥99°02¢ ¥90°CTe L89°E0C 788648 JONVYNSNI HLTVIH ¥T6 |BIoL
%95 £85'9 L1t'8 - LE5'S 088C 000'ST LNIWAOTININN £T6 [EI0L
%00T = ¥69°£21°C = = V69°LZT'T ¥69°£21'C LN3W3IYILIY TT6 |BIOL
% 98108 00S'E - - 005°€ 989'c8 JAYISIY NOILYSNIJINOD OT6 |B10L
%0L £68'90T L87'TST 196'9L 975's8 00868 081'65¢ SIOUVHI B SININSSISSY ILVIS 028 18101
%8L £99°¢58 899°156°C £06'VET 8€0985'T 8CL0ET'T TEE'S08'E 3DIAY3S 1930 0T .10
%0 000°S = = = * 000°S TYAILS3d ST1IM J3(HD €69 |B30)
%0 0059 - - - - 0059 AVA IVIYOWIN 269 |B10L




STM/ATM Fiscal Year Article #

ATM
STM
ATM
ST™M
STM
ATM
ATM
ATM
STM
ST™M
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ST™M
ST™M
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ATM
ST™M

2017
2019
2019
2020
2020
2020
2020
2021
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2022
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2023
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024

17
3
25
9
11
19
19
10
7
11
19
19
19
19
19
19
S
7
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
16

Town of Middleton, MA
Fiscal Year 2024 General Fund Warrant Articles Expenditures (unaudited)

Account Name
REMEDIATE NATSUE WAY
MAINTENANCE OF GOLF COURSE *
BYLAW CONSULTANT
40 SCHOOL STREET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING
105 S MAIN STREET MAINTENANCE *
BRIGADOON TREE/SIDEWALK *
COA REFINISH HARDWOOD FLOORS *
FIBER OPTIC NETWORK
ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR FIRE PUMPER
IT & CYBERSECURITY
CHARTER REVIEW
CYCLICAL INSPECTIONS
CYBERSECURITY PROTECTION
MUNIS UPGRADE ATMDB21 *
TOWN-WIDE HANDICAP IMPROVEMENTS
COA BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS
CLERICAL WAGE STUDY
REDEVELOPMENT OF 49 S MAIN ST TOWN EXPENSES
DPW SALARY SURVEY *
PEDESTRIAN & TRAFFIC SAFETY IMPLEMENTATION *
NEARMAP & PUSHPIN GIS *
DPW SERVER REPLACEMENT
VMWARE UPGRADE PHASE 2
ANTIVIRUS UPGRADE
ELECTION/POLL EQUIPMENT
PURCHASE RADAR GUN CRUISER *
REPALCE MARINE 1
FIRE ALARM MATERIALS
ICE RESCUE SLED *
RADIO EQUIPMENT
DIGITIZE INSPECTIONAL SERVICE RECORDS PHASE 2
REPLACE HM SECURITY SYSTEM
REPLACE TOWN SIGNS *
SERVER UPGRADES
PURCHASE MEDICAL EMERGENCY BAGS
BALLISTIC HELMETS, SHIELDS & VESTS
REPLACE AMBULANCE 2
FIREFIGHTER PPE
AFE GRANT TOWN MATCH
LUCAS DEVICE
DIGITIZE FIRE DOCUMENTS
NEW FF TRAINING
ADDITIONAL CHAPTER 90 FUNDS
REPLACE TRUCK 5 *
REPLACE CAR1*
CAMERA & LIGHTS @ TRANSFER STATION *
DIGITIZE FILES BOH & CONSERVATION
REPLACE RETAINING WALL @ COA *
REPAIR COA HANDICAP ENTRANCE
MUNICPAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS/STUDIES
OPIOID MITIGATION FUNDS {FY23 CLOSE OUT)

Original
Appropriation
165,000
25,000
50,000
10,000
5,000
75,000
7,500
100,000
40,000
55,000
15,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
5,700
10,000
50,000
10,000
20,000
7,740
4,000
14,000
4,800
7,200
5,000
15,000
15,000
6,000
72,800
35,000
50,000
20,000
30,000
4,000
16,300
520,000
84,500
27,000
23,100
23,000
15,500
125,000
89,233
57,643
21,000
97,820
250,000
38,000
50,000
40,552

Available Balance
2t 7/1/2023
129,435
17,500
50,000
1,100
3,747
75,000
2,812
5,850
40,000
25,045
15,000
2,340
10,000
8,566
5,337
902
10,000
50,000
5,650
6,150
644
4,000
4,000
4,800
1,381
5,000
15,000
3,026
6,000
59,071
35,000
50,000
9,134
30,000
4,000
16,300
520,000
84,500
27,000
23,100
23,000
15,500
125,000
89,233
57,643
21,000
97,820
250,000
38,000
50,000
40,552

YTD Expended
35,130

5,000

21,114

5,000

4,886

5,940
46,413
20,227

2,880
6,690
3,712
14,303

27,978
4,747
17,994

1,996
45,711
88,724
53,602
17,711

37,422
5,000

Available Balance at
3/31/24
94,305
17,500
45,000
1,100
3,747
75,000
2,812
5,850
40,000
3,931
15,000
2,340
10,000
8,566
5,337
902
5,000
50,000
5,650
6,150
644
4,000
4,000
4,800
1,381
114
15,000
3,026
60
12,658
14,773
50,000
6,254
23,310
288
1,997
520,000
56,522
22,253
5,106
23,000
13,504
79,289
509
4,041
3,289
97,820
250,000
578
45,000
40,552

* - Will be closed out




000'00S
000005
000°0S
000°00¢
000°05
00052
YEL'ST
0/8°6T
000°00€
000'LT
000'S
9¢£7
8S.LV7T
(#4742
€S£°0£9'PS
000°0TL

veoc/Le/e

1€ ddUE|Eg S|qE[IEAY

- 000°00S 000°00S

- 000005 000°00S

- 000°0S 000'0S

- 000002 000002

- 00008 000°05

- 000's2 000's¢

- vEL'ST 0000S

- 0/8°6T 000°52

- 000°00¢ 000°00€

- 00047 000°LT

- 000°s 000'S

- 9gT 000'68

- 8GL'VT 000°'SY

- wv'e 000¢¢
8v0'£78'T 1OV L6%'9S 00006519

: 0000T/ 000°0TL
papuadx3 gLA £202/1/¢C uonelidoaddy

1e dduejeg s|qejieny [0 6)

(paapneun) saunjipuadx3 sajily JUBLIEAN PUNY [BIBUID-UON HZOTZ JBDA [€ISI4

HSNd3a 01 X3SS3 - dOOT NIVIA Y31V
1S ALY381T - dOOT NIVIN ¥3LVM
* IAYISTY SHIVAIY ADNIDYING YILVM
SNOWWWO3 NMOL XT11dINOD TvdIINNIN
SANN4 7IVYL 1IVY TYNOILIaaV
ANINNNOIN DIMOLSIH IHOLSIY
TIVYL T1IVY TYNOILLIaaY
INIFNNNOW DIHOLSIH 3801S3Y
SNOWINOD NMOL XTIdINOI TVdIINN
SYiVd3ad 400 3SNOH dINVYL
SA4023H JIHOLSIH 40 NOILYZILIDIG 3LINdINOD
» SAQYOD3Y DIYOLSIH 3ZILIDIa
» SININIAOCHAINI AHVd YIHVIN ATING
SHIVd3d TIVH NMOL aT10
X31dWOI TVdIDINNIN
T INIONT IDV1d3d

SWeN Unoxdy

VAl ‘UOI3|PPIN O umoy

ST 207 HILYM
ST 20T HILYM
€T 1207 HILYM
8 20t vdd
8 v20? vdd
8 207 vdd
IT €207 vdD
T €207 vdd
4 7207 vdd
4 7202 vdd
9 1202 vdd
X4 0207 vdd
01 6107 vdd
[z 102 vd)
2z 7202 10Y¥d dvD
61 720 [0¥d d¥D

Fopniy I1esA(edsiy  pung




Fund
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General

Town of Middleton, MA
Fiscal Year 2024 Encumbrances (unaudited)

Balance at
Department Account Name Approved YTD Expended 3/31/24
Town Administrator Advertising S 636.00 626 10
Treasurer/Collector Contractual Services S 20.00 20 -
Info. Technology Telephone S 82.98 83 -
Info. Technology Technology Supplies S 592.33 592 -
Iinfo. Technology PEG Supplies S 24,000.00 24,000 -
Town Clerk Capital (operating) S 5,891.98 - 5,892
Town Buildings Fuel Old Town Hall S 0.71 1 -
Town Buildings Building Maintenance S 194.46 194 -
Town Buildings Building Other Supplies S 63.00 63 -
Palice Electricity S 58.56 59 -
Police Cruiser Maint & Fuel S 130.00 130 -
Fire Building Maintenance S 71.37 71 -
Fire Fire Tools & Apparatus S 35.00 35 -
Fire Special Expenses S 288.00 288 -
School Salaries S 465,775.02 465,775 -
School Supplies S 162,026.23 156,758 5,268
DPW Guard Rail S 8,500.00 8,500 -
BOH Consultant S 1,041.34 1,041 -
BOH Travel S 44.57 45 -
COA Prof. Development S 782.18 782
Garden Club Garden Club S 1,388.93 1,389 -
Library Fuel $ 155.52 156 -
Library Office/Book Supplies S 54.69 55 -
Library Building Maintenance S 1,500.00 1,500 -
Library Books/Materials S 6,635.00 6,635 -
Unemployment Unemployment S 19,305.00 19,305 -
S 699,272.87 § 688,103 $§ 11,170




sainyipuadxa Jeah [edsy Joj pajendoidde ysed 8.y ay) apnjaut 10U S0P SINUIASL pa1aSpng 210N

deoau uo pas|es ARIAD JO 19N«
‘3(qe|(leae Jou sandy pa1adpng saiedlpu| ,

(paupneun) sanuansy Hzog 1e94 |eosid

VIN ‘UOIBIPPIIAl JO UMO].

%6°0C |(vL6's6) $ | 68¢g'sz s| - $ | 8s6'6T $ | 1ev's sl = $ | e9g‘teT $ | QaNN4 3SIYJYILNI aS3s [er0L
%P’ S6 |(665°LT) $ | tov'zog $| - $ [(e6t't) $ | 6s8'e ¢ | se0's9e ¢ | ooo‘sse $ | ONN4 YILYM [e201
%6'L8 |(tsv'zr) $ | 6vt'Log s| - $ | 116'c8 $ | sst'evt $ | ose‘0s $ | 006'6vE $| Vd) |e101
%5°28 |(kbo's962) | ziz'ezo'ce S| - $ [o0z'vzser  $[e9s'9se’tt [ zwvovs'Tr S| size6s'st | ANNd Tv¥INID [elo)
%9'8S (626°0T) £25'ST - 6711 0 YLE'DT 705°92 ONI¥¥NI3Y NON ISIA
%L E6 (60€°26) SSTSSH'T - - - SST'SSY'T v9%'285‘T NI S¥34SNVYHL]
%9°9L (9€£'965) 00£°8Y6'T vEQ'LTY YER'ETL TEY'LTY 9£9'vts'T aly 31v1s
%019 (9082} P612T - LSY'Y 6£9'€ 850y 000'0T ANINISHNEINITY AIVDIQIN
%t LSST 86E°LSY'T 86€°£55'T = 8TE'LLS ¥66'08T'T 980°66L 000'00T INODNI LNJWLSIANI
%1601 606 606'0T - 9EY'T 69Z'% ¥0zZ's 000°01 1134404 ANV SaN14|
%L°06 (60'tT) £06'9ET = SE9'PE L6V'T6 SLL'6 000'1ST SLIAY3d ANY SISN3DI ¥3H10|
%0°0L (9£r60T) ¥95'S5¢ - 0SE'TOT 69T'STT SS0°6Z 000°59€ SLIAY3d DNIQTING
%9'LET 90067 905°6LT > 981'8S LET'89 €825 00S‘DET INNIAIY TVININLIYYAIA YIHLO!
%9'06 {00g’€) 00£'T€ - 008°8 001°CT 008°0T 000'SE S31¥3ILINII - SINNIAIY TVINIWLYVYCIQ
%b'86 (zs6'T) 8v0'ETT = 686'0r 1£8'0¢€ 881°TS 000'SCT 5334
%8707 008's 008STT - 0st'e 050%2T 00£'88 000'01Z S334 31SVM GI10S - SID1AYIS HOH SIDUVHD
%0'00T : £92°60C ; 2 £97'60Z = £92'60Z Q13N - 101id
%9°19 {50695} S60'16 - 56016 - - 00087T 107id
%S'86 (861°1) 208°8L 2 T09'0€ £21°62 £L0'6T 000°08 SIXVL NO LSIYILNI ANV SIALTYNId
%1°68 (Z£E43) 9L€'£9T - 60608 ¥8L'E6 €86'76 000°00¢€ STVIA - 3510XT ¥IHLO
%T ¥ZT £89°8€ £89'86T . ¥86'9€ LEV'98 992'sL 000°091 WOOY - 3S10X3 ¥3IHL0
%8'T6 (786'0ST) 910'6v6'T - £/8'559'T 80°0£T 650'€9 000°00T‘C 35103 I1DIHIA HOLOW
v/N v/N (t96'2) 1 (z£9'S) 19 059°C - IUNSOIDIYOS/ITLIL/NIIT XV L]
%9'vL (€5°21€'6) £5T'0EE'LT - 751'29¢'6 0v8'8v8°8 65T'612'6 069'£¥9°9€ ++31¥153 w3y
%v'28 (sge'0zT) £14'€95 S $ | Ls1'€TE s | 6£5€0T S | Leo'teT S | 851489 $ SIXVL ALYIOYd TYNOSY3d
A3IAIFITY % 139an4 INNIAIY AlA v J9uenD € JaxenD Z JauenD T J9uend 135ang aNN4 Tv4INID
¥3ino/(¥3ann} leloL v20Z/0</9 rzoz/te/e €z0z/1E/TT £20Z/0€/6 papu3 polad ayy o4




o1

00Z'01 = 0021 000'6 INIWIDOYNVIA HILYMINYOLS

2€9°0T (556'T) : 885°2C aNN4 dIYl VoD

9z7'sT S : S = 977'sT $ ONIATOAIY NOILYIYD3Y
v20z/TE/€ vzoz/1e/€ v2oz/TE/< €202/1/L

}o se sduejeg pun4 4O se saaniipuadxy 4O se anuanay 40 se dduejeg pun4

(paupneun) spung Suinjonay
YIN ‘UOI3|PPIN JO UMO]




Town of Middleton, MA
Appropriation Funds (unaudited)

Fund Balance

Fund Balance as of  Revenue as of FY 25 after

3/31/24 3/31/24 Appropriation  Appropriations
AMBULANCE FUND S 1,138,186 $ 507,747 $ (650,000) S 488,186
PEG 605,207 185,947 (140,809) 464,398
SPED RESERVE FUND* 159,803 6,955 - 159,803
OPEB* 2,575,689 148,901 100,000 2,675,689
STABILIZATION* 2,432,070 106,786 50,000 2,482,070
CAPITAL STABILIZATION* 729,747 42,527 100,000 829,747
SPED STABILIZATION* 410,822 22,921 50,000 460,822
RETIREMENT STABILIZATION* 561,525 25,372 50,000 611,525
SIDEWALK/PEDESTRIAN STABILIZATION* 152,495 6,898 - 152,495
FACILITIES COMPLEX STABILIZATION* 901,764 38,830 250,000 1,151,764

* Revenue amount indicates interest only.

11




Town of Middleton, MA

All Other Special Revenue Funds {unaudited)

Fund Balance as of

Revenue as of

Expenditures as of

Fund Balance as of

TOWN SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 7/1/2023 3/31/2024 3/31/2024 3/31/2024
WETLANDS PROTECTION FUND S 3,649 - - 5 3,649
INSURANCE DEPOSITS FOR REPAIR 18,726 61,855 (53,024) 27,557
COA GIFT/DONATIONS 25,864 9,696 (703} 34,857
COA BIO LABS GRANT 96 - - 96
MGL CH53G CONSULT FEES 12,640 28,994 (36,421) 5,213
CONSERVATION FEES 12,870 3,140 (3,068) 12,942
CEMETERY SALE OF LOTS AND GRAVES 117,988 5,755 - 123,743
DRUG FORFEITURE 1,648 - - 1,648
TOWN CLERK ADDITIONAL POLLING HOURS 7,489 - (180) 7,309
COUNCIL ON AGING CULTURAL COUNCIL GRANT 1,365 - (1,365) -
DON'T BLOCK THE BOX GRANT - - {(421) (421)
COMMUNITY PLANNING GRANT - 4,800 (12,000) {7,200)
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT 1,024,111 308,650 (376,310) 956,451
AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST - 208,967 - 208,967
FEDERAL HOUSING PARTNERSHIP 32,715 - - 32,715
LOCAL CULTURAL COUNCIL 2,927 7,505 (3,600) 6,833

ITLEV 48,493 967 (1,000) 48,460
CHAPTER 90 (STATE FUNDED STREET PAVING) - 220,752 (220,752) 0
MUNICIPAL RECYCLING PROGRAM 2,343 - - 2,343
COA FORMULA GRANT 12,018 36,162 {22,639) 25,541
COA TITLE Itl GRANT 25,842 21,475 {37,155) 10,161
BAN/BOND PREMIUMS RESERVED 19,366 - - 19,366
LIBRARY INCENTIVE (STATE FUNDS) 129,439 10,944 {23,994) 116,390
F.D. SAFETY EQUIPMENT GRANTS 3,998 111,474 {104,729) 10,743
LAW ENFORECEMENT EQUIPMENT GRANT 33,406 300 (5,593) 28,112
RUBCKINUK LAND 22,544 > - 22,544
MIDDLETON FOOD PANTRY DONATIONS 212,123 44,624 (29,839) 226,908
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK FUNDS 9,393 = - 9,393
COMMUNITY COMPACT GRANTS (ALL) - 335,000 - 335,000
WETLANDS DONATIONS 10,780 - - 10,780
EAST-MEADOW LANES - TRAILS 5,000 - - 5,000
VETERANS GIFTS/DONATIONS 11,059 3,625 (307) 14,377
FAIRWAY ESTATES GIFT (MUNI PROJ) 225,000 - - 225,000
MAPC COVID-19 AID 13,295 - - 13,295
MED PROJECT - POLICE 2,600 - - 2,600
COA COVID DONATION 11,612 15 (1,218) 10,410
TOWN COVID DONATIONS 242 - - 242
MDPH BIDLS FLU VACCINE GRANT {1,739) 1,739 - -
ARPA 2,922,213 - {79,613) 2,842,600
TOWN COMMON - ARPA STATE EARMARK 200,000 - - 200,000
VETERAN COLA CH 42 ACTS 2022 1,422 - 1,422
FIBER OPTIC NETWORK PROJECT 45,572 - - 45,572

L




Town of Middleton, MA
All Other Special Revenue Funds (unaudited) Cont.

Fund Balance as of

Revenue as of

Expenditures as of

Fund Balance as of

SCHOOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 7/1/2023 3/31/2024 3/31/2024 3/31/2024

AFTER SCHOOL ENRICHMENT S 26,233 12,391 (10,342)| 28,281
SCHOOL RENTAL REVOLVING 3,506 1,308 (3,948) 865
HOWE MANNING CHILDCARE (ASDC) 126,182 160,429 (143,395) 143,216
PRESCHOOL REVOLVING 371,986 168,810 (4,782) 536,013
SCHOOL CAFETERIA 289,160 213,749 (183,982) 318,927
SPED TUITION 237,337 - (947) 236,390
HOWE MANNING MUSIC 73,387 12,200 (9,556) 76,032
SUMMER PROGRAMS - 43,835 (47,015) (3,180)
NATURE'S CLASSROOM 1,508 11,505 (12,898) 115
PARENT UNIVERSITY 3,741 = - 3,741
TITLE 1 LOW INCOME 720 13,746 (360) 14,106
TITLE IVA 1,640 5,712 (6,400) 952
EDUCATOR QUALITY 2,229 1,471 (3,153) 547
CH 188 EARLY CHILDHOOD GRANT - 11,254 (3,642) 7,612
PL 94-142 SPECIAL EDUCATION GRANT 8,090 196,836 (145,015) 59,912
CIRCUIT BREAKER GRANT 121,714 67,544 (87,148} 102,110
ADDITIONAL CH.70 PANDEMIC RELIEF 52,522 ~ = 52,522
HOWE-MANNING GIFTS 17,680 31,246 {25,798) 23,128
FULLER MEADOW GIFTS 40,059 618 {1,539) 39,137
ESSER I GRANT 35,464 18,410 (53,874) -

SUMMER SCHOOL ADV & ENG GRANT - 71,198 {71,198) -

ESSER 111 GRANT 161,801 26,820 (22,662) 165,958
ARPA IDEA - 216,500 (216,500) -




TOWN OF MIDDLETON

Office of Finance Director/Accountant
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
Tel: (978) 777-4966
Fax: (978) 774-3682

TO: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator
FROM: Sarah Wood, Finance Director
DATE: April 2, 2024

SUBJECT: ARPA Fund Close Outs

In reconciling our ARPA project commitments and spending in preparation for our annual reporting to the
Department of the Treasury, | have determined there are two previous commitments established by the
Select Board that can be closed out and those funds may be re-committed. The projects are as follows:
o Administrative Expenses - $35,985.96
e Water Pump Station Upgrades - $10,421.57
These funds, plus a previous unappropriated amount of $0.10, total $46,407.63 available for re-

appropriation.

The Town’s approved projects and remaining balances after the above close outs are:
e Administrative Expenses - $5,000
¢ Peabody St. Bridge Repairs - $125,000
+ Water Main Looping Essex-Debush - $611,301.67
e Water Main Looping Liberty Street - $613,099.25
e Municipal Complex Project - $1,415,453

As a reminder, the obligations of the ARPA funds must be fully committed by December 31, 2024 (defined
as a contract executed between the Town and the vendor performing the work) and the funds must be
spent by December 31, 2026 (meaning all checks sent out prior to that date). After December 31, 2024
the funds are no longer eligible for re-appropriation; any balance left within the 2024-2026 timeframe will

be returned to the Treasury.

Sincerely,

Barak Weod

Sarah Wood

Finance Director/Town Accountant



/\ ENVIRONMENTAL

ECOLOGICAL

CoNEco

\E: Engineers & Scientists CiviL

May 13, 2024

Ms. Kristin Kent

Middleton Conservation Agent
195 North Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949

Re:  Proposal to Conduct Stormwater System Capacity Assessment
Area of Northeast River Estates and Derosier Drive
Middleton, Massachusetts

Dear Ms. Kent:

Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Inc. (Coneco) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide
engineering services to evaluate the existing stormwater drainage system that carries stormwater
from the Northeast River Estates project through Derosier Drive and to its outlet. Duting a recent
meeting of the Middleton Select Board, questions were raised regarding the capacity of the existing
stormwater system that collects flow as it leaves Northeast River Estates and enters the drainage
system in Derosier Drive. It was reported by residents duting the Select Board meeting that in the
past, stormwater had overflowed an existing culvert and headwall system at the rear of 38 Cabral
Drive and travel by overland flow toward Derosier Dtive, btinging the capacity of the culvert into
question. Coneco has been asked to review the capacity of the receiving storm drainage system to

determine its capacity and develop alternatives for improvements.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES

The scope of services includes a review of documents that have been made available to Coneco, as

well as any other relevant documents that the Town may possess.

Task 1: Review Awvailable Site Plans

To initiate the project, Coneco will review available information related to the existing storm drain
system that passes through Northeast River Estates and toward Derosier Drive. This includes the
already received site design plans dated 2021 by Williams & Sparages and a Drainage Improvements
Plan dated September 25, 1996. We also understand that the Town may possess additional plans of
the area that will be made available.

Task 2: Perform Drainage Hvaluation

Coneco’s engineering staff will evaluate the capacity of the existing drainage system, beginning at
the headwall and 12" culvert located at the rear of 38 Cabral Drive to the outlet. Our services will
include an evaluation of the system capacity during different phases, including conditions prior to

4 First Street, Bridgewater, MA 02324  (508) 697-3191 (800) 548-3355

Coneco.com



Ms. Kristin Kent
May 13, 2024
Page 2 of 3

the construction of Northeast River Estates and after the development is fully constructed, and
under different design storm events (2-yr, 10-yr, 25-yr, 50-yr & 100-yt). Also, to petform a full
evaluation of the capacity of the system, we will need to include flows from the Derosier Drive and
Cabral Drive neighborhoods that entet the drainage system. The intent will be to determine
whether the storm drainage system that exists in Derosier drive has the capacity to propetly manage
flows under typical design storm events.

Task 3: Technical Review Letter

Coneco will provide the Town with a draft evaluation summary letter report that is expected to
include: (1) a detailed discussion of our evaluation and any areas of concern identified; (2) a
summary of the technical approach to our review, including design storms, any assumptions made,
review calculations and design software outputs; and (3) conclusions and tecommendations.

Upon receipt of comments, Coneco will revise our letter and provide a final version to the Town.
SCHEDULE

Coneco is available to begin this peer review immediately at the receipt of a written Notice to
Proceed from the Town of Middleton.

ESTIMATED LUMP SUM FEE

TASK FEE
Task 1: Review Avwvailable Site Plans $300
Task 2: Perform Drainage Evaluation $4.500
Task 3: Technical Review Letters $500
TOTAL: $5,300

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS

The following assumptons and limitations apply to this proposed scope of work and fee:

¢ Reimbursable expenses (copies, printing, travel mileage, etc.) ate included in our fee

estimate.

s Coneco will rely on site plans provided by the Town that depict the existing drainage systems at
Nottheast River Estates and the areas of Derosier Drive and Cabral Drive. We have assumed
that the available information will be sufficient and have not included site survey services to
collect additional information. If survey services are required, they will be provided under a
separate scope and budget.

¢ The limit of our project is an assessment of the capacity of the existing drainage system. We have



Ms. Kristin Kent
May 13, 2024
Page 3 of 3

not included design services for upgrades to the system if they are deemed required.

Thank you for the opportunity to assist the Town with this project. Should you have any
questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

If this ptoposal and cost estimate is acceptable, please indicate your acceptance by signing in the
space provided below.

Sincerely:

&&ME -M%L
Kevin E. McHugh, P.E.

Principal/St. Project Manager

For The Town of Middleton:

Signature Title

CONELO ENG M EERS  SCIENTISTL INCORFORATEL



%@/ SToon of Middieton

GIS Coordinates

|

3asN3_/

LAT.

13d

(I

Application For License ToNG
Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 148 §13

FP-002A
(Rev. 6/23)

License Number

X New License U Amended License

Application is hereby made in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 148 of the General Laws of Massachusetts for a license to
store flammables, combustibles or explosives on land in buildings or structures herein described.

Location of Land: 156 NORTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA MAP 17, LOT 49
o Number, Street and Assessor’s Map and Parcel ID

Attach a plot plan of the property indicating the location of property lines and all buildings or structures.

Owner of Land: CURRIER HOLDINGS LLC

Address of Land Owner: 2887 WHEATFIELD COURT, LINCOLNTON, NC 28092

Use and Occupancy of Buildings and Structures: INDUSTRIAL UNITS WITH INDOOR STORAGE

If this is an application for amendment of an existing license, indicate date of original license and any subsequent amendments

Attach a copy of the current license

Flammable and Combustible Liquids, Flammable Gases and Solids
Complete this section for the storage of flammable and combustible liquids, solids, and gases; see 527 CMR 1.00 Table 1.12.8.50;
Attach additional pages if needed. All tanks and containers are considered full for the purposes of licensing and permitting.

PRODUCT NAME CLASS MAXIMUM UNITS CONTAINER
QUANTITY gal., Ibs, UST, AST, IBC,
Cubic feet drums
Heating Qil 3 15,000 Gallons Trucks {(up to 5)
Diesel Tank 3 1,000 Gallons 2-self contained double
walled fanks
Total quantity of all flammable liquids to be stored: 16,000 Gallons

Total quantity of all combustible liquids to be stored:

Total quantity of all flammable gases to be stored:

Total quantity of all flammable solids to be stored:




LP-gas (Complete this section for the storage of LP-gas or propane)

Indicate the maximum quantity of LP-gas to be stored and the sizes and capacities of all storage containers.
{See 527 CMR 1.00 Table 1.12.8.50)
% Maximum quantity (in gallons) of LP-gas to0 be stored in aboveground containers:

List sizes and capacilies of al! aboveground containers used for storage:

% Maximum quantity {in gallons) of LP-gas to be stored in underground containers:

. - { .. . -
List sizes and caprcmes of all underground containess used for storage: _

Total aggregate qua_?ntity of all LP-gas to be stored: _

Fireworks (Complete rl:zis section jor the storage of fireworks)

Indicate classes of fireworks to be stored and maximum quantity of each class.' (See 527 CMR 1.00 Tuble 1.12.8.50)
** Maximum amount (in pounds) of Class 1.3G: ~ Type/class of magazine used for storage:
** Maximum amount (in pounds) of Class 1.4G: - Type/class of magazine used for storage:
«* Maximum amount (in pounds) of Class 1.4: Typerclass of magazine used for storage:

Total aggregate quantity of all classes of fireworks to be stored: I
Explosives (Complete this scction for the storage of explosives)

Indicate classes of explosive to be stored and maximum quantity of each class. (See 527 CMR 1.00 Table 1.12.8.50)

¢ Maxinum amount (in pounds)of Class 1.1; Number of magazines used for storage:
% Maximum aniount (in pounds) of Class 1.2: . Number of magazines used for storage:
¢ Maximum amount (in pounds) of Class 1.3; Number of magazines used {or storage:

yy S £ ger
%+ Maximum amount {in pounds) of Class 1.4: Number of magazines used for storage:

/ . 8 ge:r
% Maximum amount (i pounds)of Class 1.5: Number of magazines used for sterage:

»* Maximum amount (in pounds) of Class 1.6: Number of magazines used for storage:

I, MICHAEL MCGRATH , hereby attest that 1 am authorized to make this application. | acknowledge that
the information contained herein is accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. ] acknowledge that
all materials stored pursuant to any license granted hereunder must be stored or kept in accordance with all applicable
laws, codes, rules and regulations, including bui not limited to Massachusetts Chapter 148, and the Mussachusetts Fire
Code (527 CMR 1.00). ! fyyther acknowledge that the storage of any material specified in any licensc granted

herednder tyay not excecd the maximum quantit specified by thg licensc.
'""““Date{( / t’{ /QTZName MICHAEL MCGRATH

Signatue/ B |

PLEASE NOTE THAT ONLY APPLICATIONS WITH ORIGINAL WET SIGNATULRES WILL BE ACCEPTED. PHOTOCOPIES OF APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE PROCESSED.

Fire Department Use Only

1, DO\I(?J\WS K\ L(LDLS" , Head of the M| dd‘dor'} Fire Department endorse this application with my

KLA roval  {J Disapproval B
Do B AN~ da|202y

L <.
Sipnature of Head of ﬂtfim Depariment Dl L

Recommendations:

FP-002A (Rev. 6/23) Page 2



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

MEMORANDUM i
TO: Select Board
FROM: Jackie Bresnahan
DATE: May 23, 2024
RE: Re-appointments and potential new appointments

Below you will find a list of incumbents seeking reappointment. This is not all inclusive, but
Boards who had all incumbents respond are included on this list:

Board and Committee Appointments:
2 year terms

e Affordable Housing Trust — Finance Committee: Richard Gregorio

¢ Affordable Housing Trust — Housing Authority: Maria Paikos-Hantzis
e Affordable Housing Trust — Select Board: Brian Cresta

¢ Affordable Housing Trust — Planning Board: Jason Bernhard

3 year terms
e Conservation Commission: Peter Goodwin; Susan Piccole (2 seats)
e Industrial and Commercial Design Review Committee: Kendra Petrone
¢ Patriotic Observances Committee: Scott Saulnier; Jillian Kemp (2 seats)

Staff Appointments:

Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director: Jackie Bresnahan

Conservation Agent: Kristin Kent

Finance Director/Town Accountant (to match new contract dates): Sarah Wood
Treasurer/Collector: Nick Federico

Food Inspector, Health Dept: Frank Giacalone

¢ Plumbing and Gas Inspector: Gary Paul

e Local Building Inspector: Michael Mercurio



TOWN OF MIDDLETON
OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

48 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949

Telephone (978) 777-3617
justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov

TO: Select Board

FROM: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator
DATE: May 28%, 2024

RE: Locust St Engineering Update

Board Members,

As a follow up to your previous meeting, Scott Cameron of The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc. has provided
the two attached high-level site plans for your review. At your direction, Mr. Morin has provided one plan
showing 12 lots under conventional zoning. These lots extend right to the edge of the property and include
attached garages. The second plan depicts 17 more modest lots. This plan also allows for a 50-foot buffer
from existing lots, as well as space to maintain elements of an existing walking trail on the property. This
plan as laid out is not permitted by right and would require additional ZBA approvals. Both options take
into account existing topographical and wetland challenges on the property. Mr. Cameron is on hand this
evening to walk us through elements of the site. Next steps would include pivoting back to the appraisal
process we started over the winter, depending on which plan the board has interest in pursuing.




(5B S5y W0 0X5vE"

\
3
X

N
'

X

‘\:
o
5

i/
Gl i
it ity
il /,/”/,u(“\\ it
AT T TR )
i ’n/ln\\\“\\\\\‘\;‘\“\“‘J,ml.,ul}ﬂgl,’,’ AN
‘I)'I“ i """"""1"""' ;o
L40l) l,','l,',,,"gﬂ!lll' (N T
et Mllnlllu:', {H
1

e R

3

k]
,".55’//11/111,“""} o 'llll,’/ 11
oz
m=Z2 mt["l,l, /l/l//
75z ul'pln"” ‘”’JIII’I‘
/s ///ml Gl ‘,ll

2y

i
{1 itk
i

l uhm/,’//;/,ﬁ'{ filt

i (s

D -~
B H

&4
ilidy
iy,

[ A/ ot
SIS

bl
~

=

=X

Py

b

AN
v W
13 Yo [WR]
1 (RN ,u,
(== \{u‘ / i
1 al A 7 i
RN
i) i

(

=

5

It v
1} 05 ;&\ P A2
N 1 3 X ¥ TGN, -
N N A A b W R 1 R T AR
CONVENTIONAL DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY PLAN The, ]
g | suBDVISION "’ & 3 . Morin-Cameron
£ MIDDLETON, MASSACHUSETTS = I i
£ AN LOGUST STREET . e ~ GROUP, ING
EE I;Uﬂliﬁ 5‘ f (Em;ﬁ ?&Wf 272J } l T | ScuE: A3 WOTED oW E"ﬂ IEW& CONSULTANTS
5 VOF1 TOWN OF MIDDLETON 1 [ | oy 2000 ey




I~y
N R

o~ i s
Lbar]

oty

e
~
i
—sz

e
‘{,’ 7
1A

/
i

oy
=

N
)
N
8
A
SN
Ry
RO Y
3y _ o= o
A==y P
R
RS-
SSE

HHle Gty e, IIETG
il ,u[ll‘l\l\‘,‘,l'\‘l\lu:{" ||','t,‘ )
Bl
gt st/
s ’,7”1/"),‘ [Nl |,'l‘|‘”I, i
I e

—

gring e it i,
:’;’,ﬁ”lull/,’v,"l’m’l'
7 /','Iuil/,:,'/,m,
1A ]
iRz iy

==

P
Ao
gl
NS B

T TE e
{ ’){ll’,"u,'l,'pl-( ———
T S B IS Te )
i o e T Nk
Hll,/,‘l/,/’// .l"l‘f ¢ TN ST =
T R AT NG g N
AR AR R
N iy by B
B L T g
AN TR 1 xg E /.0
AN I \ LU [N
Y I DV gy 0 ] g 1
i 'IH{((\ ! i I #il 39 ‘)
METRN A AR T 4
N = 4 [
HAINS R INEEAST 1 B
I \ N -
HENRIEU -y L Foy [} }
AN G LN )
Wy ARG I e B AN
ity el N ey S
Im (IR T/ oo A S Vo P S B Y
N e AN S N
RN e I/‘ R A
R R A T W AR S ~. =2 2
R 4 v Ot Y A 141} S\ s
R R A A I T B & S T RN T HA
RARMTHAR N S R o SR el SR AR & 1 R LR A T R 2o B
FTUTITERE r
DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY PLAN — ———— ; e The, C
OPEN SPACE N : L Morin-Cameron
PLAN MIDDLETON, MASSACHUSETTS S— L SR GUBTNG
| e o i (ASSESE:!'SSIAPN.WMI I | o o mslmm»trm CONULTANTS
ENGI AL
g e e PEPARID PO I HAE AS WD LAND SURVEYORS LLAXD USE PLANERS
HERLLA TOWN OF MIDDLETON | owmmawsan | AT SR

Bap 3000y v




RE: Boston St to Maple St

Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Mon 4/22/2024 1:13 PM
To:Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>

Thanks, Peter. I'll keep you posted!

JS

From: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 18, 2024 3:21 PM

To: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Subject: RE: Boston St to Maple St

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.
hi Justin — please see attached proposal for the Boston/Maple traffic study, per your request.

Thanks,
Peter

Peter Ellison, PE

Practice Leader of Strategic Land Planning
C 978-815-0958
pellison@theengineeringcorp.com

From: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 12:08 PM

To: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Subject: Re: Boston St to Maple St

Yes, will do. Thanks!

Get Qutlook for 10S

From: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 11:57:17 AM

To: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Subject: RE: Boston St to Maple St

Ok. I can get in on the agenda for April 23rd, think you could get a formal proposal out to me for late next week?
Thanks!

1S

From: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 11:24 AM

To: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Subject: RE: Boston St to Maple St




[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.

Hi Justin - the origin-destination study would be $6,000-8,000 and would take 4-6 weeks to complete. The reason
for the range is because we would likely need to bring in a sub to perform the data collection.

Peter Ellison, PE

Practice Leader of Strategic Land Planning
C 978-815-0958
pellison@theengineeringcorp.com

From: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 11:03 AM

To: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Subject: RE: Boston St to Maple St

Peter, thank you for putting this together. 25k might be a big bite for a first step. Below you referenced a “specific
origin-destination study”. What does that typically cost, and how long would it take?

Thanks!

Justin

From: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 4:17 PM

To: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Subject: RE: Boston St to Maple St

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.

Hi Justin — I met with the Practice Area Leaders of TEC’s traffic, highway, and bridge groups this afternoon to
review the feasibility of running Boston St through the Memorial Hall Parcel.

From a traffic perspective, this idea definitely has some merit. Unfortunately, you would have a significantly uphill
battle to make it work. The land behind Memorial Hall is all Article 97 conservation land. You would need a vote
from the MA Legislature to use that land for transportation purposes — and it would be challenging to convince
them that there are no other viable alternatives.

You'd also likely be looking at private property impacts/takings, wetland impacts, utility impacts, and loss of a
Town property (Memorial Hall).

Before | spent any more time preparing the proposal, | wanted to make sure you were aware of these significant
challenges. If you'd like me to prepare the proposal, I’'m happy to do so. It would be in the range of $25,000 and
we would outline in further detail each of the above challenges.

Thanks,
Peter

Peter Ellison, PE

Practice Leader of Strategic Land Planning
C 978-815-0958
pellison@theengineeringcorp.com




From: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzhach@middletonma.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 9, 2024 5:33 PM

To: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Subject: RE: Boston St to Maple St

Thanks, Peter. Keep me posted!

IS

From: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 09, 2024 4:36 PM

To: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middietonma.gov>
Subject: RE: Boston St to Maple St

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.
Hi Justin,

From my traffic team....

“There is no specific way to know the exact number of vehicles that do that maneuver through each intersection as
the traffic counts were intersection specific.

That being said, there were 230 vehicles that turned left from Boston Street onto 114 then 209 vehicles that turned
right onto Maple Street in the AM peak hour. There were 312 vehicles that turned left from Boston Street onto 114
then 352 vehicles that turned right onto Maple Street in the PM peak hour. Knowing the area fairly well and going
through these intersections to/from TEC for many years multiple times a day ... I would say a large percentage of
the EBL on Boston Street will then turn right onto Maple. To get an exact number there would need to be a specific
origin-destination study.”

We will work on a proposal to assess the feasibility of running Boston Street through the Memorial Hall parcel. 1
would estimate that it will take about a week to get that proposal together.

Thanks,
Peter

Peter Ellison, PE

Practice Leader of Sirategic Land Planning
C 978-815-0958
pellison@theengineeringcorp.com

From: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@midd|etonma.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 9, 2024 3:15 PM

To: Peter Ellison <PEllison@theengineeringcorp.com>
Subject: Boston St to Maple St

Peter,
Thanks for the time today. To recap, we have received some inquiries from residents about the feasibility of
running Boston St through the Memorial Hall Parcel continuing onto Maple St, allowing vehicles to bypass the

square in the process.

We are wondering 1. If that is feasible from an engineering standpoint, and 2. If so, what the cost would be.



Before we go down that path, my Chair has inquired if there is a way using our existing data to determine how
many vehicles are making the trip from Boston St, through the Square, and on to Maple St. Would you or a
member of your team be able to isolate that statistic from the existing data?

Thanks as always for your assistance,

Justin



RV R, 262 ok Seet, 20 Fr

Lawrence, MA 01843

978.794.1792
TheEngineeringCorp.com
Create | Design | Innovate
The Engineering Corp N
" L r
X] New Contract Project No.:
] Amendment No.: Date: April 18, 2024
Project Name: Route 62/Route 114 Origin-Destination Study; Middleton, MA
Client: Town of Middleton Fee Proposal
Attn: Justin Sultzbach Task 1 O-D Study $6,800.00
48 S Main Street Estimated Expenses Included
Middleton, MA 01949 TOTAL $6,800.00
Requested by: Justin Sultzbach X Lump Sum ] Time & Expenses

[] Cost + Fixed Fee [ Other
Estimated Date of Completion: Approx. 6 weeks following
receipt of signed authorization
Scope of Services:

The Town of Middleton (Client) has retained TEC, Inc. (TEC) to provide limited traffic engineering services for an
initial study of the two offset intersections of Route 62 and Route 114 in Middleton, MA. The purpose of this contract
is to provide an origin-destination study at the intersections of the two roadways to determine the quantity and
percentage of vehicles traveling along this route during peak hours. TEC will perform the services outlined in the
task(s) below:

Task 1 — Origin Destination Study $6,800.00
e  Perform two (2) 12-hour weekday turning movement counts (TMCs) during a weekday (Tuesday, Wednesday,
or Thursday) at the following Town-owned intersections:
= N. Main St/ S. Main St (Rt 114) at Maple St (Rt 62)
= S, Main St (Rt 114) at Boston St (Rt 62)
o  Collect Origin-Destination (O-D) Data for reciprocal left and right turns for those that cross Rt 114 as “through”
traffic along Route 62 (7-9 AM, 4-6 PM only)
e Prepare traffic volume graphics to show the existing intersection counts during the weekday morning and
evening peak periods; and document the approximate Route 62 crossing volumes
e Prepare a brief technical memorandum to document the data collection process and provide an assessment of
the origin-destination trends for Route 62 in this area
¢ Participate in one (1) virtual or in-person meeting with Town staff to review the findings

Additional services not listed above may be performed at the request of the Client and will be considered an
amendment to this agreement.

Services will begin upon signed authorization of this agreement. TEC will invoice the Client monthly on a percent
complete basis for the services performed. TEC direct expenses and the actual subconsultant and vendor/contractor
services will be marked up by 10%.

This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days.

P:\P2024\Middleton, MA\O-D
Engineering Tomorrow's Solutions Today_ Study\Middleton_TEC Client Authorization.docx



TEDC

The Enginearng Corp

Project Manager; PFE Approver: KRD
Please execute this Client Authorization for TEC, Inc. to proceed with the above scope of services at the stated
estimated costs. No services will be provided until it is signed and returned to TEC.

Subject to attached terms & conditions (] Subject to terms & conditions in our original agreement
dated

TEC, Inc. Authorization Client Authorization  (Please sign original & return)
/ ’

By ‘()

Print Name Kevin R. Dandrade Print Name

Title Principal Title

Date April 18, 2024 Date

Engineering Tomorrow's Solutions Today. 20f4



Part II

TEC

The Engineering Corp

TEC, Inc.
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT
{Numbers 1 thru 25)

The engagement of TEC, Inc. (TEC} by the Client is under the following Certificates of insurance will be fumished upon request If the Client

terms and conditions. These terms and condifions are integral to the
collective Agreement between Client and TEC.

1. The fee estimate for the proposed Scope of Services is valid
for 45 days from the date of Proposal.

2. Payment to TEC is the sole responsibility of signatory of this
Agreement and is not subject to third party agreements.

3. All schedules in the Scope of Services commence upon receipt
of a signed Agreement and, if requested, a retainer, All retainer amounts
will be applied to the last invoice.

4, Invoices will be rendered monthly and become due upon
receipt. Any invoice outstanding for more than 30 days after date of
invoice will be subject to a financing charge of 1-1/2 percent per month,

5 Should it become necessary to utilize legal or other resources
to collect any monies rightfully due for services rendered under this
Agreement, TEC shall be entitied to full reimbursement of all such costs.

6. Invoice payments must be kept curent for services to continue.
If the Client fails to pay any invoice due to TEC within 30 days of the date
of invoice, TEC may, without waiving any other claim or right against
Client, suspend services under this Agreement until TEC has received all
amounts due TEC and its Consultants and Subcontractors.

If TEC is performing services for the Client under multiple projects, invoice
payments must be kept current on all projects. Client acknowledges TEC's
right fo suspend services and withhold plans and documents, as provided
above, if payments are not current on all projects. If services are
suspended for 30 days or longer, upon resuming services TEC shall be
entitled to expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of its
services. |If services are suspended for 90 days, TEC shall be entitled to
expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of its services and
fees for remaining services shall be equitably adjusted.

7. TEC agrees to carry the following insurance during the term of
this Agreement:

*  Workmen's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance in
compliance with statutory limits.

e  Comprehensive General Liability Insurance including Products
Completed, Contractual, Property, and Personal Injury coverage
with combined single limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 in the aggregate.

s Excess Umbrella Coverage for Personal injury, Bodily Injury, and
Property Damage with a limit of $1,000,000 per claim and in the
aggregate.

e Professional Liability Insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 per claim
and in the aggregate.

¢ Automobile Liability Insurance including non-owned and hired
automobiles with the following limits:

o Bodily Injury $500,000 each person, $500,000 each occurrence
o Property Damage $100,000 each occurrence

Engineering Tomorrow's Solutions Today.

requires additional insurance coverage, and it is available, Client agrees to
reimburse TEC for such additional expense.

8. The Client and TEC shall at all times indemnify and save
harmless each other and their officers, and employees on account of any
claims, damages, losses, litigation, expenses, counsel fees, and
compensation arising out of any claims, damages, personal injuries and/for
property losses sustained by or alleged to have been sustained by any
person or entity, to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or
omissions of the indemnifying party, its employees, or subcontractors in
connection with the Project, and/or under this Agreement.

9. TEC shall not be responsible for failure to perform or for delays
in the performance of services which arise out of causes beyond the
control and/or without the fault or negligence of TEC.

10. TEC shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness
of data, reports, surveys, requirements and other information required to
be provided by Client under this Agreement.

1. Client agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify
and hold hammless TEC, its officers, employees and subconsultants from
and against any and all claims, suits, demands, liabiltties costs, including
reasonable attorneys fees and defense costs caused by, arising out of or in
any way connected with the detection, presence, handling, removal,
abatement, or disposal of any asbestos or hazardous or toxic substances,
products or material that exist on, about or adjacent to the job site.

12. TEC's services will be performed on behalf of and solely for the
benefit and exclusive use of Client for the limited purposes set forth in the
Agreement. Client acknowledges that TEC's services require decisions
which are not based upon science, but rather upon judgmental
considerations. Client may not delegate, assign, sublet or fransfer its
duties or interest in this Agreement without the written consent of TEC.

13. In the performance or fumishing of professional services
hereunder, TEC, and those it is responsible for, shall exercise the degree
of skill and care customarily accepted as good professional practices and
procedures by members of the same profession currently practicing under
similar conditions in the same locality (*Standard of Care”).

Consistent with this Standard of Care, the services shall conform to
applicable laws, codes, ordinances and regulations of any govemmental
agency having jurisdiction over the project, at the time services are
rendered. TEC shall perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent
with the Standard of Care and with the orderly progress of the Work.

14 TEC shall not be required to sign any documents, no matter by
whom requested, that would result in TEC's having to certify, guaranty or
warrant the existence of conditions that TEC cannot ascertain. Any
certification provided by TEC shall be provided based on TEC's
knowledge, information and belief subject to the preceding sentence, and
shall be given in TEC's professional opinion consistent with the Standard
of Care, TEC shall be compensated for any work necessary to verify
project compliance with regulatory standards for purposes of such
certification.

3of4



TEC

The Enginsering Corp

TEC, Inc. Terms and Conditions of Agreement (Continued)

15. Client hereby agrees that to the fullest extent permitted by
law, TEC's total liability to Client and any persons or entities claiming
by, through or under the Client, for any and all injuries, claims, losses,
expenses, or damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way related
to the Project andfor this Agreement from any cause or causes
including, but not limited to TEC's negligence, errors, omissions, strict
liability, statutory liability, indemnity obligation, breach of contract or
breach of warranty shall not exceed the lesser of $50,000 (fifty
thousand dollars) or contract value.

16. Al documents including Drawings and Specifications
(whether in hard or electronic form) prepared by TEC pursuant to the
Agreement are instruments of service with respect to the Project. They
are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by the Client or
others on extensions of the Project or on any other Project. Any reuse
by Client or a third person or entity authorized by Client without written
verification or adaptation by TEC for the specific purpose intended will
be at the Client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to TEC;
and the Client, shall release, indemnify and hold harmless TEC from all
claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising
out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification or adaptation will
entitle TEC to additional compensation at rates to be agreed upon by
TEC and the third person or entity seeking to reuse said documents,

If any information hereunder is provided in electronic format, Client
recognizes that such plans, documents or other information recorded
on or transmitted as electronic media, including CADD documents
(“Electronic Documents”) are subject to undetectable alteration, either
intentional or unintentional, due to, among other causes, transmission,
conversion, media degradation, software error, or human alteration,
Electronic Documents are provided to Client for informational purposes
only and not as record documents.

17.  To the extent permitted by law, TEC retains the copyright in all
written work products, including plans, specifications, calculations,
computer programs, and computer generated materials in any form,
produced in connection with the work under this agreement, unless
otherwise agreed to in writing by an authorized TEC representative.
Subject to Term No. 16 above, TEC licenses to Client the use of all
written work products, including plans, specifications, calculations, and
computer generated materials in any form, produced in connection with
the work under this agreement on a non-exclusive basis.

18. All questions in dispute under this Agreement shall be
submitted to non-binding mediation. On the written notice of either
party to the other of the election to submit any dispute under this
Agreement to mediation, each party shall designate their representative
and shall meet within ten (10) days after the service of the notice. The
parties themselves shall then attempt to resolve the dispute within ten
{10} days of meeting. Should the parties themselves be unable to
agree on a resolution of the dispute, then the parties shall proceed with
mediation in accordance with the mediation rules of the American
Arbitration Association. The cost of mediation shall be borne equally by
bath parties. This process shall be considered as a condition precedent
to moving to a more formal or judicial process.

19. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
neither party shall be liable to the other for any incidental, special,
indirect or other consequential.damages incurred due to the fault of the
other party regardless of the nature of the fault or whether it was
committed by the Client or TEC, or their employees, subconsultants, or
subcontractors.  Conseguential damages include, without limitation,
liability for loss of use of the Project or existing property, loss of profits,
loss of production or business interruption.

Engineering Tomorrow's Solutions Today.

20. In entering into this Agreement, Client has relied only upon
the representations set forth in this Agreement. No verbal warranties,
representations or statements shall be considered a part of this
Agreement or a basis upon which the Client relied in entering into this
Agreement, No statements, representations, warranties or
understandings, unless contained herein, exist between Client and
TEC.

21. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a
contractual refationship with, or a cause of action in favor of, a third
party against either the Client or TEC. TEC's services under this
Agreement are being performed solely for the benefit of the Client and
no person or other entity shall have any claim against TEC because of
this Agreement. In addition, nothing herein shall be construed as
creating a contractual relationship between the Client and any TEC
employee, representative or consultant. The Client agrees that in the
event of a dispute regarding this Agreement or the services rendered by
TEC hereunder, the Client shall only seek recourse against TEC and
waives any right to pursue a claim against TEC's individual directors,
officers or employees.

22, Any taxes or fees, enacted by local, state or federal
government and based on gross receipts or revenues, will be invoiced
to and payable by Client as an additional amount due under this
Agreement.

23, This Agreement shali be governed and construed in
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts,

(The following terms are applicable for Project sites located in
Massachusetts)

24, In accordance with the Massachusetts General Laws
Chapter 21E, the performance of the services contained in this
Agreement may require the engagement of a Licensed Site
Professional  (LSP} registered with the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts under Massachusetts General Law Chapter 21A and
the regulations promulgated by the Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection (MADEP) thereunder {collectively the LSP
Program). These laws and regulations place upon the LSP certain
professional obligations owed to the public, including in some instances,
a duty to disclose the existence of certain environmental contaminants
to the MADEP. In the event that any site for which TEC has provided
LSP services is audited by the Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection (MADEP) pursuant to the provisions of the
Massachusetts Contingency Plan, TEC shall be entitled to additional
compensation to provide such services as may be necessary to assist
Client in its response to DEP.

25. Client understands and acknowledges that in the event the
LSP's obligations under the LSP Program conflict in any way with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement or the wishes or intentions of
the Client, the LSP is bound by law to comply with the requirements of
the LSP Program. Accordingly, Client recognizes that the LSP shall be
immune for all civil liability resulting from any alleged andfor actual
conflict with the LSP Program. Client also agrees to hold TEC and its
LSP hamless for any claims, losses, damages, fines or administrative,
civil or criminal penalties resulting from the LSP's fulfillment of its
obligations under the LSP Program.

4 of 4



TOWN OF MIDDLETON ;
OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

48 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949

Telephone (978) 777-3617
justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov

TO: Select Board

FROM: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator
DATE: May 28%, 2024

RE: MassWorks Update

Board Members,

As you are aware, the proposed MassWorks/HousingWorks grants for the expansion of the intersection at
Rt.62 and Rt.114 relied on the passage of MBTA Zoning. This sentiment is expressed several times over in
the attached materials from the grant program. Throughout this process, I had committed to applying to
this grant whether MBTA Zoning passed or not. This is partly due to the fact that this topic is still moving
through the courts, and on the off chance it is found the state cannot withhold grant funding I would like to
ensure we have an application in the pipeline for Middleton. Additionally, awards are announced in
September - and we are not out of compliance until the end of the year. Putting forth this application helps
us keep our options open. Also attached you will find pages from the Community One Stop for Growth —
Full Application. TEC is graciously assisting us in filing out this paperwork, however we do require a vote
of support from the Select Board in order to put forth an application.

Recommended Motion: I motion to authorize the Town Administrator to submit this application on behalf
of the Town of Middleton as presented above.




o

Y COMMUNITY
ONE STOP
or GROWTH

{@: muss.gov/onestop

Expression of Interest Feedback Report

Applicant Organization: ~ Town of Middleton
Document ID: EOI-Sub-1638-FB
Submission Date: 4/26/2024 5:52:03 AM

Thank you for submitting an Expression of Interest (EOI) to the Community One Stop for Growth.
We are excited to partner with you in the pursuit of opportunities to achieve economic growth for
your organization and/or community.

Your submission has been reviewed by the One Stop Team, which includes representatives from
EOHED, EOHLC, MassDevelopment, and other state partner agencies, as deemed necessary. This
report summarizes the team’s collective review of your EOI, and provides feedback and comments
intended to assist you in the decision, and preparation, to submit your Full Application(s) for
consideration in the current funding round.

GENERAL APPLICANT FEEDBACK

The applicant identified as a Public Organization. Public organizations are cligible to apply
through all Development Continuum categories and are eligible for funding by all grant programs
offered through the One Stop.

Your municipality is an MBTA Community as identified in MGL section 3A c40A. Any
noncompliant MBTA community is ineligible for funding from the Housing Choice Grant
Program, the HousingWorks Infrastructure Program, and/or the MassWorks Infrastructure
Program, and all other Community One Stop for Growth programs will take noncompliance with
Section 3A into consideration when making grant award recommendations. For information on
compliance with the MBTA communities law, please visit www.mass.gov/mbtacommunities.

For the site related project goals, the applicant may want to consider pursuing 43D Expedited
Permitting designation(s) to support and encourage development. The applicant may indicate
interest in pursuing 43D designation when submitting any site-specific project in the Full
Application. For more information on 43D Expedited permitting, visit https://www.mass.gov/info-
details/chapter-43d-expedited-local-permitting.

For more information on the One Stop, including applicant eligibility, key dates, and links to
program websites, visit www.mass.gov/onestop.




PROJECT SPECIFIC FEEDBACK

'_Project Name

Boston Street (Route 62) @ S. Main Street (Route 114) Intersection Improvements

Development
Continuum
Category

Based on the description, this project would likely fit in the Infrastructure category.

Program Focus

Based on the answers provided, this project best aligns with the HousingWorks
Infrastructure Program (HWIP).

The applicant should review the program guidelines to learn about program
requirements and how an application would likely be evaluated.

Application When completing the Full Application, the applicant should select the following
Directions options in question 2.4. Project Category for Grant Consideration:

Development Continuum: | Infrastructure

. ) Public Infrastructure to Support Housing Growth

Project Type: (Residential Only)

Project Focus: Construction
How to Be e To be competitive for a HousingWorks Infrastructure Program Grant, the
Competitive project should thoroughly describe specific project scope, feasible

implementation, expected outcomes, and intended goals. The Full Application
will require details about project need, project readiness, financial feasibility,
progress and commitment to date, outcomes, and impact. The applicant should
review the HousingWorks Infrastructure Program FY25 Guidelines scoring
criteria.

e When completing a Full Application, thoroughly address and describe the
following:

o future impact of housing development, rehabilitation/new construction
and future use, and housing preservation (as applicable),

o present and future impact of project and the housing opportunities it
may unlock,

o project need specific to the community,

o project timeline, project readiness, and ability to execute in the allotted
time,

o progress and commitment to date, including any recent changes to
zoning, bylaws, local ordinances, etc. that relate to or directly impact
this project, and

o the outcomes and impacts of this project.

¢ Be prepared to clearly delineate the public infrastructure work in terms of
cost/budget, timelines, limits of work, and design.




Project
Implementation
Feedback

Budget

¢ HousingWorks has no specific budget limit or match requirement. However,
the following guidelines should be considered:

o HousingWorks construction awards have historically ranged between
$1 to $5 million with an average award of $2.5 million.

o Projects are approximately 3.5 years in duration.

o Projects that have secured funding from other government and/or
private sources will be more competitive.

o Projects that include at least a 10% local cash match will receive bonus
points in application review. To be considered, any match funds must
contribute to the direct costs of the infrastructure work.

Timeline
» The HousingWorks Infrastructure Program requires all projects awarded in the
FY25 round to be completed by June 30, 2028.

Ineligible Activities

» Vertical construction is ineligible. This includes municipally owned buildings
and public parking garages.

In conclusion, the guidance provided above is intended to help a prospective applicant decide if
they will submit a Full Application(s) to the One Stop and to provide guidance for how to
strengthen such submission(s). This advice is not meant as a promise or guarantee that an
application will be successful. Eligible applicants are expected to review and adhere to the posted
guidelines for the programs in the corresponding categories in which they plan to submit. All
applications will be reviewed and/or scored on a competitive basis.

*Please note that a referral does not give the project any special consideration or guarantee of
funding from these other sources. It will be up to the applicant to follow up with the referenced
resource(s) and to comply with the required guidelines and process for any programs outside of

the One Stop.




Expression of Interest Form Submission

Applicant Information

EOI Submission ID
Date Submitted
_Applicant Email Address

EOI-Sub-1638
4/26/2024 5:52:03 AM
justin.sultzbach/@middletonma.gov

Applicant Organization Name
Organization Type

Project Information

Project Name

Town of Middleton
Public Organization

Boston Street (Route 62) @ S. Main Street
(Route 114) Intersection Improvements

Project Location
Project Abstract

Project Description

Which of the following best describes the
work that funding from a grant would be
used for?

Budget Estimate
Anticipated Project Completion

Middleton

The Town is finalizing the approval for 60
units of affordable housing adjacent to the
SW corner of the Route 62/114 intersection.
In 2025, the Town Offices will be relocated,
and the land east of the intersection
designated for future housing developments.
A successful grant would design, permit, and
reconstruct the intersection to improve
capacity and safety for all users. The project
will coordinate three MassDOT traffic signals
to alleviate long-term traffic congestion
challenges along 114.

Infrastructure | Public Infrastructure to
Support Housing Production

Design and/or engineering work to prepare
for a future public infrastructure construction
to unlock housing, Public infrastructure
construction to unlock housing (i.e., sidewalk
and road construction, utility relocation,
traffic signals, water/sewer extensions, culvert
repairs, etc.)

3000000

1-2 Years




Commonwealth of Massachusetts
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ONE ASHBURTON PLACE, ROOM 2101
BOSTON, MA 02108

Community One Stop for Growth

An EOEED initiative, in partnership with the Executive Office of Housing & Livable
Communities and the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency

Notice of Funding Availability
FY2025

Full Application Open Date: January 19, 2024
Virtual Information Sessions
Webinar 1 - One Stop Overview: Feb. 5, 2024
Webinar 2 - Application Guidance:  Feb. 7, 2024
Webinar 3 - Technology Webinar: Feb. 8, 2024 (Prerecording to be posted online)
Individual Program Webinars: Feb. 16, 2024 (Prerecordings to be posted online)
Full Application Submission Period: =~ May 6, 2024 — June 5, 2024
Full Application Deadline: June 5, 2024 at 11:59 p.m.

Email Questions to: onestop@mass.gov




Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

I. ABOUT THE ONE STOP........ccoeitrretrireesteseeteeteet et sttt et e st sttt tasssns s et oae e eeeeeos 3
AL INITOQUCTION ...ttt ettt ettt b et ettt et e et e e et e s et e teeeraseee e e e eeeeeennens 3
B, What’s NeW it FY2025 ..ottt sttt eses b s eeeeee e sneens 3

II. OVERVIEW OF THE ONE STOP PROCESS ..ottt ettt eaee e eesessensnsneseseenanas 5
A.  Programs Integrated into the ONe SOP ....ovviirririieieteeeeet e eee e ee e e e neeseas 5
B.  The Development CONTINUUIM ......c.c.euiuiiiiniiieieteieteteteiitieieieiet et eae et ssses st eteseenans 5
C.  EXPression Of INTETEST. ......coueiviiiiieieee ettt ettt e s teveeee e et e eaneneaene 6
D, Full APPIICAtION......c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiniie ettt ettt ettt ettt st a e seertos et s s st e eneseenene 6
E.  One StOP Process SIEPS ......ccccririimmieiiiiiiectcteteee sttt ettt st ae s s st et eneeneneaenn 6
Foo TIMEINE ...ttt ettt ettt et et st e e eteeeeeeeseeseaeenseseeseeeneneesrereeaes 7

III. DEVELOPMENT CONTINUUM DETATLS.....ccooiiiiiirnrenreeesisessessse et seseseeesessase e sesesonsesesens 8

IV. ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS AND FULL APPLICATION DETAILS ....oooiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeen 13
AL Elgible APPLICANTS ......oviiitiiiiet ittt s ettt e e b ettt e et eeeeens 13
B.  Structure of the Full APPHCAtiON ......ccoveveiieieiiieccste ettt e 14

V. APPLICATION EVALUATION ..ottt ettt ere st s e tesssarensonenssnosnas 15
A Core REVIEW CITEEITA ..ottt ettt eae e st et e et r e st tetsssesesstesesoseanenes 15

VI. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ....c.cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiananiasesenesesee st e senssesseessesssessesesssssssesssssesssssnsnens 15
A, Submitting QUESTIONS ....c.ooviiiieiiiiririiirtetiiirieisie e ts st et e ettt see s es s s esenesss e st sae st eaesstessstaatesenseaneens 15
B.  Notes about Application SUDMISSION ........ccciueiririiiinieeietee ettt s 15

2|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

I. ABOUT THE ONE STOP

A. Introduction

The Executive Office of Economic Development is pleased to announce the availability of grant funds for the
FY2025 round of the Community One Stop for Growth (One Stop). The One Stop is a single application portal
and collaborative review process that allows applicants to access a series of grant programs that support
community economic development. The Executive Office of Economic Development (EOED) partners with the
Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (EOHLC) and Massachusetts Development Finance
Agency (MassDevelopment), to make targeted grant investments based on a Development Continuum.

This coordinated process is designed to provide a more streamlined experience for applicants and to make the
programs more accessible to all types of organizations, large and small, in all regions of the state. The partner
agencies have a long-standing and successful history of providing funding, through multiple programs, that
support various stages and/or phases of economic development projects. The One Stop gives communities the
ability to pursue, and in some cases stack, state resources in a more timely and strategic manner based on what
stage they are at and how ready they are to implement a project. The goal of the One Stop is to support more
efforts that result in economic growth for all cities and towns across the Commonwealth.

B. What’s New in FY2025

The first three rounds of the One Stop were met with positive reviews and, more importantly, have resulted in
869 grants across 243 communities, totaling $396.3 million in funding. Largely based on feedback received from
applicants, several exciting improvements were made for the FY25 Round of the One Stop to increase access to
funding and further streamline the application process:

1. New Program: The HousingWorks Infrastructure Program
The HousingWorks Infrastructure Program, a new grant program offered by EOHLC, is now fully
integrated into the One Stop. The HousingWorks Infrastructure Program is a competitive grant to
municipalities and other public entities for a variety of infrastructure related activities to support and
unlock housing opportunities. This grant program awards funds based on the project’s nexus with housing,
transportation, infrastructure, and community development needs. Visit the Housing Works Infrastructure
Program website for program guidelines and additional information.

2. Simplified Development Continuum

The Development Continuum was updated to make it easier for applicants to understand where their
project fits within the One Stop and which program is most likely to review the application. The
Development Continuum categories are now made up of multiple Project Types, each tied to a One Stop
program and named to describe the purpose of the program. When answering question 2.4 of the Full
Application, applicants will be able to see which program is tied to each available Project Type option by
hovering over the accompanying radio button. See Section IIl. Development Continuum Details below for
more information.

3. Improved Expression of Interest Process

The Expression of Interest (EOI) process has been updated for the FY25 round to make filling out an EOI
form as easy and quick as possible for applicants. Improvements to the EOI process include:

3|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

» [Easier Access - The EOI is now available as a simple webform accessed through the One Stop
website. Prospective applicants no longer need to register and/or log into the IGX system in order
to access the EOL.

o Applicants May Submit Multiple EOI Forms - The former limit of one EOI submission per
organization has been removed and applicants may return to submit additional EOI forms.
Although there is no longer a limit to the number of submissions, applicants are still encouraged
to prioritize their projects prior to submitting their EOI(s).

» An Even Simpler EOI Form - The EOI form has been simplified to only require a brief description
and a multiple choice questions for each project proposed. Applicants will complete a separate
EOI Form for each project that they would like feedback on.

* Expedited Feedback Delivery - The streamlined form reduces the time required for staff to review
each EOI and allows for a prompt delivery of the EOI Feedback Report to the applicant.

4. Staff Office Hours
To supplement the guidance received in the EOI process, One Stop staff and program managers will now
host two separate virtual office hour series to answer applicant questions:

*  One Stop General Guidance Office Hours — One Stop staff, and a representative from each agency,
will hold several office hours to answer general One Stop process and technology questions.

o Individual Program Office Hours — Each program in the One Stop will host a separate office hour
session to allow applicants to ask program staff questions related to the program.

All office hours will be open to the public. Attendees are encouraged to submit questions ahead of time.
Visit www.mass.gov/onestop for the full schedule of office hours and instructions on registering and
submitting questions.

5. Program Specific Webinars
In addition to the three One Stop virtual sessions hosted each year, One Stop program managers will
record a webinar specific to their respective program. Each webinar will provide an overview of the
program, including information about eligibility, project competitiveness, and examples of past awards.
All program webinars will be posted to the One Stop website on February 16, 2024.

6. Consolidated Full Application
The Full Application has been consolidated into three forms that all applicants must complete: Form 1.
Applicant Information, Form 2. Project Information, and Form 3. Certification. The Project Information
form now includes all questions related to the project; applicants will be able to view all questions required
through the Project Core as well as any additional Development Continuum category and Housing Choice
additional questions required, depending on the application. The former Additional/Optional Attachments
section is now included at the end of Form 2 as well.

7. Redundant Questions Removed
Questions within the Project Core were altered and expanded to eliminate questions that produced similar
answers throughout the application. This exercise allowed for the complete elimination of the Community
Activation & Placemaking and Planning & Zoning additional questions. Applicants applying for funding
through these categories will only see the questions in the Project Core on Form 2.

4|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

II. OVERVIEW OF THE ONE STOP PROCESS

A. Programs Integrated into the One Stop

The One Stop allows applicants to apply to multiple grant programs at once with a standard application. The
following programs are fully integrated into the One Stop application process:

Executive Office of Economic Development
MassWorks Infrastructure Program
Massachusetts Downtown Initiative

Urban Agenda Grant Program

Rural Development Fund

Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities
Housing Choice Grant Program

Community Planning Grant Program

HousingWorks Infrastructure Program

MassDevelopment

Brownfields Redevelopment Fund (Municipal Competitive Round only)
Site Readiness Program

Underutilized Properties Program

Collaborative Workspace Program

Real Estate Services Technical Assistance

Applicants may visit program websites for guidelines and program-specific versions of the One Stop Full
Application template.

MBTA Community Compliance Requirement

Section 3A to the Zoning Act (Chapter 40A of the General Laws) requires each of the 177 MBTA communities
to have a zoning district in which multifamily zoning is permitted as of right, and that meets other requirements
set forth in the statute. Any noncompliant MBTA community is ineligible for funding from the Housing Choice
Grant Program. the HousingWorks Infrastructure Program. and/or the MassWorks Infrastructure Program. and
all other Community One Stop for Growth programs will take noncompliance with Section 3A into consideration
when making grant award recommendations. For information on compliance with the MBTA communities law,
please visit www.mass.gov/mbtacommunities.

B. The Development Continuum

To help guide applicants, the One Stop uses a Development Continuum that describes how a typical economic
development project moves from concept to reality within diverse communities.

The One Stop requires applicants to think about their economic development priorities in the context of the
Development Continuum, both to guide applicants towards best practices and strategies and to help applicants
identify the types of projects that will support their economic development priorities. Applicants should consider
this spectrum of activities as they prepare to submit applications to the One Stop, thinking fully about the steps
necessary for progress in the development of a project.

This continuum separates economic development activities into two broad categories. The first, “Preparing for
Growth,” includes the initial steps that typically need to occur before specific development projects can move

5|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

forward, as well as community activation focused economic development activities. The second, “Catalyzing
Specific Projects,” covers various forms of project-specific activities, particularly for projects that have private
development identified.

Preparing for Growth Catalyzing Specific Projects
Grants 10 support activities and initial steps by community based actors to attract and Grants to support the private development of
guide privale mvestment i 4 community commercial, industrial, and residential investment
projects that further the community vision.

Building

(Vertical Construction)

Community Activation i
ty Planning & Zoning IT\. Site Preparation | ——

& Placemaking

Infrastructure
{Horizontal Construction)

C. Expression of Interest

The Expression of Interest (EOI) is an optional short form that gives prospective Community One Stop for Growth
applicants the opportunity to receive guidance on priority projects before submitting a Full Application. The
Expression of Interest is optional but highly encouraged.

The EOI Feedback Report informs the applicant whether their projects are a fit for the funding opportunities
within the One Stop. If so, the report will indicate where the project falls on the Development Continuum, the
program that best fits the project, tips on how to be competitive for the program, as well as important project
budget and timeline considerations.

In other cases, the report may tell the applicant that their project is not a fit for the programs offered through the
One Stop. If a state program offered outside of the One Stop is a better fit for the project, the EOI Feedback
Report may include a referral to the program.

It is important to note that any eligible applicant may submit a Full Application, regardless of whether they
participated in the EOI process or not.

D. Full Application

The Full Application is the form that applicants must complete and submit to formally apply for funding. The
Full Application must be submitted via the IGX system.

Applicants may submit multiple projects for consideration but must submit one application per project. The
number of project applications submitted is not limited, but it is recommended that communities prioritize their
requests. The Full Application opens in January 2024 for applicants to begin working on their applications.
Applicants will be able to submit their application beginning May 6, 2024. The final submission deadline is 11:59
p-m. on June 5, 2024.

E. One Stop Process Steps

The One Stop is an opportunity for the state’s economic development agencies to work with communities to
define their objectives, submit applications and obtain funding for projects following a collaborative process:

6|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

Expression of N & Full _ Review& .. Notificationof . . Contracting
Interest & NP > . . - .
Guidance Application S/ Evaluation Awards /" and Reporting

Step 1: Expressions of Interest & Guidance (Optional): The Expression of Interest (EOI) is an optional
short form that gives prospective Community One Stop for Growth applicants the opportunity to receive
guidance on priority projects before submitting a Full Application. Applicants complete a short form and
receive a Feedback Report indicating whether the project is a fit for the funding offered through the One Stop.
If so, the report will tell the applicant where the project falls on the Development Continuum, the program
that best fits the project, tips on how to be competitive for the program, as well as important project budget
and timeline considerations.

Step 2: One Stop Full Application(s): After the guidance phase of the process concludes, the One Stop
portal will open to accept applications. Applicants are able to submit multiple projects for consideration but
must submit one application per project. The number of project applications submitted is not limited, but it is
recommended that communities prioritize their requests to reflect the goals submitted in the Expression of
Interest phase. Interested applicants will have full access to the online application the launch of the One Stop
in January until the final submission deadline in June. During this time, applicants may draft and work on
applications, but submissions will only be accepted between May 6 and 11:59 p.m. on June 5, 2024.

Step 3: Review & Evaluation: The participating agencies will review all applications. The agencies may
also request additional information or clarification about applications submitted. All grants will be reviewed
on the criteria noted in the Review Criteria section and the additional review criteria noted in specific program
guidelines. If an application is not fully clear, or the partner agencies have additional questions, the applicant
will be notified to either have a follow up discussion with the partner agencies, amend the application
submission or respond to questions via email.

Step 4: Notification of Award: The One Stop partners will review all applications and make determinations
of grant amounts based upon availability of funds. All applicants will be notified of award decisions, and the
contracting process for successful applicants will begin with the applicable partner agency. Reporting will be
required.

Step 5: Contracting and Reporting: All grants in any category of funding are subject to appropriation. Once
a project is approved, contracting for the project will be handled by the relevant partner agency including the
specifications of the duration, scope and final budget. Routine reporting will be required by the agencies and
will be specified at the time of contracting.

F. Timeline

Expressions of Interest (EOI) Submission Period

Feb. 9, 2024 — April 30, 2024

One Stop Official Launch of Full Application Jan. 19, 2024
Webinar 1: One Stop Overview Webinar Feb. 5, 2024
Webinar 2: One Stop Application Guidance Webinar Feb. 7, 2024

Webinar 3: Prerecorded Technology Webinar

Feb. 8, 2024 (Prerecording to be posted online)

7|Page




Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

Individual Program Webinars

Feb. 16, 2024 (Prerecordings to be posted online)

One Stop General Guidance Office Hours

February-April, 2024

Individual Program Office Hours

February-March, 2024

Full Application Submission Period

May 6, 2024 — June 5, 2024

Review & Evaluation June-August, 2024

Notification of Awards September 2024

October/November 2024

Anticipated Contracting

III. DEVELOPMENT CONTINUUM DETAILS

Categories Related to Preparing for Growth

The development of certain districts, sites or the advancement of certain economic development initiatives
requires a series of initial steps by applicants to attract and guide private investment. Recognizing that these initial
steps are applicable for almost all communities, whether a strong or weak market, grants associated with
“Preparing for Growth” help support activities related to:

A. Continuum Detail - Community Activation & Placemaking

Community Activation & Placemaking grants support projects and programs aimed at identifying and
enhancing community assets. These assets can include the built environment, local business, or the
community’s residents.

Eligible Applicants:

¢ All Public Entities

o Non-Profit Organizations

o Community Development Corporations

Programs in this Category:
e Massachusetts Downtown Initiative
¢ Urban Agenda Grant Program

Type/Focus of Projects Supported:
Technical Assistance for Downtowns

¢ Downtown Design Consultant Services
e Downtown Mobility/Parking Consultant Services
¢ Downtown Wayfinding/Branding Consultant Services
¢ Economics of Downtown Consultant Services
e Pedestrian Orientation/Placemaking Consultant Services
¢ Small Business Support/E-commerce Consultant Services
¢ Forming a Downtown Management District
o Phase 1 Feasibility
o Phase 2 Implementation

8|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

Equitable Workforce and Business Development Programming
¢ Entrepreneurship and Small Business Development
¢ Workforce Development and Training Initiatives
e Community Organizing and Leadership Development

Example Projects:

« Request by a municipality to explore the feasibility of developing a Business Improvement District.

o A request from a community coalition to fund English language training and other prerequisite trainings,
including coverage for childcare and transportation, to prepare low-income residents for new jobs
available in the region due to the expansion of a major employer.

. Continuum Detail — Planning & Zoning

Applications for projects in the Planning & Zoning category represent an early-stage project that requires a
guiding plan, study, or assessment of project needs, prior to any construction or site preparation. These are
planning grants and projects must produce a planning document or zoning revision.

Eligible Applicants:
e All Public Entities

Programs in this Category:

e Community Planning Grant Program
Rural and Small Town Development Fund
Real Estate Services Technical Assistance
Housing Choice Grant Program

Type/Focus of Projects Supported:
Community Plan

e Master Plan

e Neighborhood Plan

e Downtown Plan

e Urban Renewal Plan
Housing Production Plan
Regional Plan
e Corridor Plan
e Other Plan

Zoning Revision
e Zoning Revision to Comply with Section 3A of MGL ¢.40A
e Comprehensive Zoning Review & Revision
e Other Zoning Revision

Planning for Housing
¢ Housing Feasibility Plan
® Housing Site Master Plan
¢ Housing Infrastructure Plan
e Housing Site Design Plan
e  Other Housing Plan

9|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

District Redevelopment Technical Assistance
e Planning for Growth in a Commercial/Industrial or Mixed-Use District

Example Projects:

o Create a housing production plan to better understand housing needs of the community and identify
strategies to reduce gaps in existing housing relative to identified needs.

e Study the area with a /2 mile of a commuter rail station and create strategies to intensify development in
that area.

o Prepare a corridor study of a commercial area that runs through multiple towns and seeks land use
alternatives to promote multi-modal access, introduce mixed-use and achieve more compact commercial
development.

» Review current zoning to identify and remove language that excludes certain housing types.

. Continuum Detail — Site Preparation
This category includes funding for an applicant working to progress a key site toward development; a final
developer or end use is not necessarily identified at this phase.

Eligible Applicants:

* All Public Entities

¢ Non-Profit Organizations

o Community Development Corporations

Programs in this Category:

» Site Readiness Program

+ Brownfields Redevelopment Fund

« Real Estate Services Technical Assistance
e Rural and Small Town Development Fund
« Housing Choice Grant Program

Type/Focus of Projects Supported:
Brownfield Site Clean Up
e Brownfields Site Assessment
e Brownfields Remediation

Site Improvements to Unlock Development
* Site Readiness Pre-Construction
o Site Due Diligence
o Site Plan Design
Market Study
Civil Engineering
Pre-Permitting/Permitting
¢ Site Readiness Construction
o Demolition
o Site Acquisition, related tasks
o Construction of site related upgrades

o O O

Municipal Surplus Property Disposition
e Municipal Surplus Property Disposition Study

Example Projects:
10|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

e The acquisition of land in an industrial zone to allow for business expansion.
o The remediation of a brownfield site to prepare it for the development of a new industrial complex for
businesses

Categories Related to Catalyzing Specific Projects

In areas where “Preparing for Growth” activities may have already occurred, certain projects within a community
may be ready for implementation by public and private investment. Grants associated with “Catalyzing Specific
Projects” will be used to incentivize and leverage private commercial, industrial, and/or residential investment
projects that further the community vision.

D. Continuum Detail — Buildings (Vertical)

Funding is available for predevelopment activities and capital improvements that are essential to the
occupancy of a blighted and/or underutilized property, as well as those that support the creation of new
coworking space. Funding in this category is limited to projects with a strong public purpose and benefit.
Projects in this category must have the building secured with building and/or site control, an identified end
use, and a clear public purpose. Additional funding is available for eligible Housing Choice designated
municipalities to projects supporting the production, rehabilitation, or preservation of housing units within
the community.

Eligible Applicants:

o All Public Entities

» Non-Profit Organizations

e Community Development Corporations
o For-Profit Organizations

Programs in this Category:

o Underutilized Properties Program

+ Collaborative Workspace Program

o Rural and Small Town Development Fund
¢ Housing Choice Grant Program

Type/Focus of Projects Supported:
Underutilized Property Rehabilitation

e Underutilized Property Pre-Construction
o Building Condition Study
o Development Feasibility Study
o Code Compliance Study
o Architectural or Engineering Plans

e Underutilized Property Construction
o Code Compliance
o Building Accessibility Improvements
o Building Stabilization and/or Shell Repair
o Interior Demolition or Remediation

Creating Collaborative Workspace
e Collaborative Workspace Feasibility Study
e Collaborative Workspace Fit-Out or Equipment

Community Led Housing Production
11|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

¢ Support Housing Production
¢ Support Housing Rehabilitation
e Support Housing Preservation

Example Projects:

» A request to fit-out an incubator within a property that was previously vacant.

» A request to install an elevator in a city-owned property to open up second floor space for space for a new
housing development.

» Fitting out a collaborative workspace that provides access to shared workshops and equipment.

. Continuum Detail — Infrastructure (Horizontal)

The Infrastructure category supports improvements to public land and infrastructure that leverages and
supports private investment in the community. These are predevelopment and implementation grants for
projects that improve public infrastructure such as roadways, streets, bridges, culverts, water/sewer, other
public utilities, etc. Investments will be targeted to projects that require the infrastructure improvements or
expansion to support and/or facilitate new growth or address road safety issues.

Eligible Applicants:
« All Public Entities

Programs in this Category:

e MassWorks Infrastructure Program

» HousingWorks Infrastructure Program

» Rural and Small Town Development Fund
¢ Housing Choice Grant Program

Type/Focus of Projects Supported:
Public Infrastructure to Support Housing Growth (Residential Only)

» Pre-Construction - Design / Engineering Documents Only

¢ Construction
o Roadway / Streetscape Improvements
o Bridge / Culvert Repair or Replacement
o Water / Sewer Infrastructure
o Public Utility Project (Gas, Electric, etc.)

Public Infrastructure to Support Mixed-Use and/or Commercial/Industrial Growth
¢ Pre-Construction - Design / Engineering Documents Only
o Construction
o Roadway / Streetscape Improvements
o Bridge / Culvert Repair or Replacement
o Water / Sewer Infrastructure
o Public Utility Project (Gas, Electric, etc.)

Small Town Road Improvements to Enhance Public Safety (aka STRAP)
¢ Construction of Road Improvements to Enhance Public Safety

Example Projects:
» A request for water and sewer upgrades to a previously used site that will now be made into market
rate housing.
12|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

» A request to update a culvert under a roadway leading to new private development for mixed use that
creates new industrial space and rental housing.

e A request to repair at-risk municipal bridges that affect evacuation routes and/or access to commercial
centers or transportation nodes.

Applications from Housing Choice Communities and Rural/Small Towns

The One Stop provides additional opportunities exclusively for Housing Choice Communities through the
Housing Choice Grant Program and Rural and/or Small Towns through the Rural Development Fund. Only
communities with current Housing Choice and/or Rural & Small Town designation are eligible for funding by
the respective programs.

The Housing Choice Grant Program and Rural Development Fund may consider granting applications requesting
funding through the following Development Continuum categories: Planning & Zoning, Site Preparation
(excluding Brownfields Assessment and Brownfields Remediation projects), Building (excluding Collaborative
Workspace Predevelopment and Collaborative Workspace Fit-Out projects), and Infrastructure.

Applicants submitting a project that is eligible for review by the Housing Choice Grant Program will be asked
whether they intend to complete the Housing Choice Additional Questions. These questions must be completed
in order for the project to be considered for funding by the Housing Choice Grant Program.

IV. ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS AND FULL APPLICATION DETAILS

A. Eligible Applicants

| - Preparing for Growth —'_____‘__ :—:‘_ : Catalyzing Specific Projects
Community Activation r Planning &
Applicant Type i . Site Preparation Building Infrastructure
&Placemaking |  Zoning |
Public Entity
Municipal All Programs All Programs All Programs | All Programs | All Programs |
Other Public All Programs All Programs All Programs All Programs Al Programs |
| Non-Public Entity
' [ ' | Underutilized Properties Program, |
Non-Profit Urban Agenda Grant Program N/A Site Readiness Pragram eru K op 9 NfA
| Collaborative Workspace Program |
Community Development Underutilized Properties P ,
. y P Urban Agenda Grant Program N/A Site Readiness Program nerut ) CPerties Frogram. N/A
Corporation Collaborative Workspace Program
. Underutitized Properties Program,
- N/A N/A N/A N/A
FRIEFIDIE / / / | Collaborative Workspace Program | /
—_— — ! —

All types of public entities are welcome and encouraged to submit a One Stop application. Municipalities and
other public entities such as local housing or redevelopment authorities will have access to all grants administered
through the One Stop process. However, non-municipal applicants are encouraged to open a discussion with their
municipal leadership to ensure coordination and local support.

Non-public entities may submit an application jointly with a public entity or with the written letter of support of
the public entity and will be considered for funding only under those programs that allow for financial assistance
to non-public entities, specifically Community Activation & Placemaking, Site Preparation, and Buildings. Non-
public entities are not eligible for the following categories: Planning & Zoning and Infrastructure. Non-public
entities should partner with their municipality to submit applications in those categories.

For-profit entities are only eligible to apply to the Buildings category and must demonstrate a public benefit or
purpose for the grant.
13|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

All applications should include a letter of support from the chief executive officer of the municipality in which
the project is located or, if not available, an explanation of why the municipal letter was not included.

B. Structure of the Full Application
The One Stop Full Application is organized into the following forms:

Form 1. Applicant Information/Background

This form is where the applicant identifies information about the organization, including the organization
type, contact information, and other organization details. Organizations located within an MBTA
Community will be asked additional questions related to the community’s compliance with Section 3A of
MGL c. 40A.

Form 2. Project Information
The Project Information form is where the applicant provides all detail related to the project. This form is
broken up as follows:

Project Core
The Project Core includes the project information required by all programs in the One Stop. The

applicant will identify the Development Continuum category, project type, and project focus that best
fit the project in question 2.4, which will drive additional questions. The applicant will respond to
questions about the grant funding request, community characteristics, the project implementation plan,
and environmental considerations. This section also includes questions related to the project timeline
and anticipated project outcomes. Applicants to the Site Preparation, Buildings and Infrastructure
categories must also complete the Site Information questions, which include identification of the
specific site, ownership, and zoning, as well as a details about climate resilience, as applicable.

Additional Project Questions

In addition to the Project Core, applicants applying through the Site Preparation, Building, or
Infrastructure Development Continuum categories will be required to answer additional questions.
The questions asked will vary depending on the Development Continuum, Project Type, and Project
focus options selected in question 2.4.

Housing Choice Additional Questions

The Housing Choice Additional Questions are available to public organizations within Housing
Choice designated municipalities. Eligible applicants applying for funding through the Planning &
Zoning, Site Preparation (excluding Brownfields projects), Building (excluding Collaborative
Workspace projects), or Infrastructure categories must opt in to answer these questions by selecting
“Yes” on question 2.4.a. Eligible applicants applying for Community Led Housing Production funding
through the Building category are automatically required to answer these questions in order to submit
the application. These must be completed in order for the application to be reviewed by either program.

Other/Optional Attachments

This section allows applicants to submit other attachments to support the application, including other
site images, partner letters or support letters. Please note that these items will generally not be scored
or assessed as part of the formal evaluation of the proposal.

Form 3 - Certification of Application Submission Authority

14|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

Signature page certifying the authority to submit the application on behalf of the applying entity and
attesting that all responses are true and accurate.

All applications must be submitted electronically through the IGX system, however Microsoft Word (.docx)
templates of the Full Application are available at www.mass.gov/onestop to allow applicants to draft their
application(s) ahead of time. A separate application template is available for each project type supported through
the One Stop. The online application portal, IGX, can be accessed at https://eohed.intelligrants.com.

V. APPLICATION EVALUATION

A. Core Review Criteria

All applications submitted through the One Stop will be reviewed by program staff to determine which One Stop
program is best suited to achieve the applicant’s objective. This review will include an initial screening based on
statutory and regulatory eligibility requirements and program guidance (See Appendix for links to program
guidelines). All applications will then be evaluated based on the following core review criteria, in addition to the
criteria detailed in each respective program’s guidelines:

« Achievable Project Scope: Is the project feasible and achievable?

« Ability to Execute & Leadership: Does the project have appropriate leadership with the requisite
experience and ability to execute the project?

¢ Achievable Timeline: Is the timeline of the project reasonable and achievable? For construction projects,
is the project advanced in its design and permitting.

* Reasonable Budget, Showing Commitment: Is the project budget reasonable? While not required,
preference will be given to projects that leverage match funding outside of the requested grant funds, but
outside funding is not a prerequisite.

*  Outcomes and Impact: What are the projected outcomes of this project and the impact this project may
have on the community? Outcomes related to equitable opportunity and environmental impact will also

be taken into consideration.

* Progress to Date, Showing Commitment: Does the applicant show commitment to the project through
past activity and investment?

VI. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A. Submitting Questions

If you have questions, please submit them in writing to OneStop@mass.gov with the subject line “One Stop for
Growth Question.” The One Stop partners will review and aggregate responses and post them regularly on the
One Stop website: www.mass.gov/onestop. EOED, EOHLC, and/or MDFA reserve the right to respond only to
questions relevant to the participating programs.

B. Notes about Application Submission
15|Page



Community One Stop for Growth — FY2025 NOFA

All Full Applications must be submitted electronically. The online application portal, IGX, can be accessed
at https://eohed.intelligrants.com.

All applicants must set up a user account on IGX in order to submit an application for the Full Application.
Staff reviews of user accounts may be conducted periodically to determine the accuracy of user access
designations. If necessary, action shall be taken to change, revoke, or grant user access to reflect the
appropriate designation.

The application form template and link to the portal will also be available on the EOED webpage.
Applicants will have at least 12 weeks to review the application questions and prepare their project
proposal.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to be aware of all requirements and deadlines, and to ensure that
their application is complete and submitted on time. All applications will be logged as to date and time
received and kept on file as public record. Late submissions will not be considered.

EOED reserves the right to request additional information from the applicant or external sources as may

be necessary in order to complete the application review. EOED also reserves the right to recommend
partia] grant awards, as deemed appropriate.

16|Page



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT
RISK SERVICES -GMP AMENDMENT 002

WHEREAS, the Town of Middieton (“Owner”) represented by Owner’s Project Manager, PCA360,
entered into a contract (“Contract”) with W.T. Rich Company, Inc. (“the CM at Risk”} (collectively the
“Parties”}) for construction manager services in association with the Middleton Municipal Complex
Project {(“the Project”) on Date: June 1, 2023, and;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Contract, the CM at Risk shall propose a Guaranteed
Maximum Price (“GMP”} for construction of the work in an amendment in accordance with the
provisions of that section;

WHEREAS, the proposal and justification is summarized in Exhibits B & C, attached hereto and
incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, effective as of May 28, 2024, the Parties wish to amend the Contract to include the GMP
for construction as set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained in this GMP
Amendment, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. The Owner authorized the CM at Risk to provide construction services related to the
Middieton Municipal Complex Project (“the Project”) as prescribed in the Contract
Documents, which shall include the scope of work as described in Exhibits B & C, attached
hereto and incorporated herein. The cost for the GMP for the work as outlined in the exhibits
is $39,088,652.00 (not including pre-construction services as set forth in the Contract).

| Fee for Basic Original Previous | Amount of this After this |
Services "Contract Amendments Amendment Amendment |
Pre-construction | $124,910.00 $000|  $0.00 $124,910.00
services
Interim GMP 50.00 | $39,088,652.00 $0.00 | $39,088,652.00
Contract
Amendment
GMP Contract $0.00 $0.00 | $18,911,235.00 | $18,911,235.00
Amendment
Total Contract | $124,910.00 l $39,088,652.00 | $18,911,235.00 | $58,124,797.00

2. The Project Schedule shall be from Start to
Substantial Completion: May 8, 2024 to January 30, 2026 (21.5 Months)

3. The Construction Budget shall be as follows:
Original Budget: $59,461,354.00
Amendment Budget: $58,124,797.00



4. This GMP Amendment contains all additional terms and conditions agreed upon by the

Parties as amendments to the original Contract. No other understandings or

representations, oral or otherwise, regarding amendments to the original contract shall

deem to exist or bind the Parties, and all other terms and conditions of the Contract
remain in full force and effect. This amendment is for theacceptance oftheCM at Risk's
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP), as outlined in Exhibit A through G plus GMP

Attachments, for a total cost of:

Fifty Eight Million One Hundred Twenty Four Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Seven Dollars

This Interim GMP Amendment includes the following Exhibits:

e Exhibit A = Plans and Specifications in list form, including Addendum.
® Exhibit B — Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal Summary Overview

and Zero Cents ($58,124,797.00)

o Exhibit C — Allowances
e Exhibit D — Alternates

e Exhibit E — Construction Schedule Milestone Dates

e  Exhibit F — Unit Prices

e Exhibit G — Assumptions, Clarifications and Qualifications

o GMP Attachments:

o Attachment A — Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal Cost of Work
Backup

o Attachment B — General Conditions

o Attachment C — General Requirements

o Attachment D — Project Schedule

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this amendment to be executed by their respective

authorized officers.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

| Owner:

| W.T. Rich Company, Inc.

| Name (Signature):
|

Jonathan Rich

| Title:

CEO

' Date:

TOWN OF MIDDLETON

By executing this Agreement, the undersigned authorized signatory of Owner, who incurs no personal

liability by reason of the execution hereof or anything herein contained, hereby certifies under

penalties of perjury that this Contract is executed in accordance with a prior approval of the TOWN OF

MIDDLETON.



Owner: TOWN OF MIDDLETON

Name (Signature):
Richard Kassiotis

Title: Selectboard Clerk

Date:

Town of Middleton - Finance Director — Sufficient funds available for this contract

Name (Signature):
Sarah Wood

| Title: Finance Director

| Date:

Town of Middleton — Town Counsel_(legal) - Approved as to Form & Character

Name (Signature):
Elizabeth Lydon

Title: Town Counsel - Mead, Talerman & Costa, LLC

I Date:




CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT
RISK SERVICES —-GMP AMENDMENT 002

WHEREAS, the Town of Middleton (“Owner”) represented by Owner’s Project Manager, PCA360,
entered into a contract (“Contract”) with W.T. Rich Company, Inc. {“the CM at Risk”) (collectively the
“Parties”) for construction manager services in association with the Middleton Municipal Complex
Project (“the Project”) on Date: June 1, 2023, and;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Contract, the CM at Risk shall propose a Guaranteed
Maximum Price (“GMP”) for construction of the work in an amendment in accordance with the
provisions of that section;

WHEREAS, the proposal and justification is summarized in Exhibits B & C, attached hereto and
incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, effective as of May 28, 2024, the Parties wish to amend the Contract to include the GMP
for construction as set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained in this GMP
Amendment, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. The Owner authorized the CM at Risk to provide construction services related to the
Middleton Municipal Complex Project (“the Project”) as prescribed in the Contract
Documents, which shall include the scope of work as described in Exhibits B & C, attached
hereto and incorporated herein. The cost for the GMP for the work as outlined in the exhibits
is $39,088,652.00 (not including pre-construction services as set forth in the Contract).

Fee for Basic Original Previous | Amount of this After this
Services ‘Contract Amendments Amendment Amendment
Pre-construction | $124,910.00 | $0.00 | $0.00 $124,910.00
services _
Interim GMP $0.00 | $39,088,652.00 $0.00 | $39,088,652.00 |
Contract |
Amendment . |
GMP Contract | - $0.00 $0.00 | $18,911,235.00 | $18,911,235.00
Amendment
Total Contract | $124,910.00 | $39,088,652.00 | $18,911,235.00 | $58,124,797.00

2. The Project Schedule shall be from Start to
Substantial Completion: May 8, 2024 to January 30, 2026 {21.5 Months)

3. The Construction Budget shall be as follows:
Original Budget: $59,461,354.00
Amendment Budget: $58,124,797.00



4. This GMP Amendment contains all additional terms and conditions agreed upon by the
Parties as amendments to the original Contract. No other understandings or
representations, oral or otherwise, regarding amendments to the original contract shall
deem to exist or bind the Parties, and all other terms and conditions of the Contract
remain in full force and effect. This amendmentis for the acceptance oftheCM at Risk's
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP), as outlined in Exhibit A through G plus GMP

Attachments, for a total cost of:

Fifty Eight Million One Hundred Twenty Four Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Seven Dollars
and Zero Cents ($58,124,797.00)

This Interim GMP Amendment includes the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A — Plans and Specifications in list form, including Addendum.

Exhibit B — Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal Summary Overview

Exhibit C — Allowances

Exhibit D — Alternates

Exhibit E — Construction Schedule Milestone Dates

Exhibit F — Unit Prices

Exhibit G — Assumptions, Clarifications and Qualifications

GMP Attachments:

o Attachment A — Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal Cost of Work
Backup

o Attachment B — General Conditions

o Attachment C — General Requirements

o Attachment D — Project Schedule

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this amendment to be executed by their respective

authorized officers.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
| Owner: W.T. Rich Company, Inc.

Name (Signature):
Jonathan Rich

Title: CEO

Date:

TOWN OF MIDDLETON

By executing this Agreement, the undersigned authorized signatory of Owner, who incurs no personal
liability by reason of the execution hereof or anything herein contained, hereby certifies under
penalties of perjury that this Contract is executed in accordance with a prior approval of the TOWN OF

MIDDLETON.



| Owner: TOWN OF MIDDLETON

Name (Signature):
Richard Kassiotis

Title: Selectboard Clerk

[ Date:

Town of Middleton — Finance Director — Sufficient funds ;ailable for this contract

Name (Signature}:
Sarah Wood

Title: Finance Director

Date:

Town of Middleton — Town Counsel (legal) - Approved as to Form & Character

Name (Signature):
Elizabeth Lydon

Title: Town Counsel - Mead, Talerman & Costa, LLC

Date:




EXHIBIT A
Identification of the Plans and Specifications in list form as follows:
List of Drawings, Specifications and Addendum for
GMP Contract Documents

Contract Documents

Contract documents by Context Architecture dated February 27%, 2024, as follows (or as amended by
Addendum).

Specifications (Town Hall & Public Safety)

00 00 00 Cover

00 01 12 Project Directory

00 01 10 Table of Contents

00 01 15 List of Drawings

00 11 16 Request for Bid

00 21 13 Instructions to Bidders

00 21 14 eBIDDING Instructions to Bidders

00 22 20 List of Pre-qualified Trade Contractors

00 41 10 Form for Sub-Bid

00 41 11 Bid Bond — Subcontractor

00 41 12 DCAMM Certificate of Eligibility — FSB Contractor Sample

00 41 13 Sub-Bidder DCAMM Update Statement

00 50 00 Owner Construction Manager Agreement (redacted)

00 52 16 Form of Non-Trade Subcontract & Template

00 53 13 Trade Contractor Agreement

00 54 01 Certificate of Vote

00 54 02 Certificate of Non-Collusion & Tax Compliance

00 54 05 Certificate — Labor, Harmony and OSHA Training Requirements
00 61 15 Performance Bond

00 61 16 Payment Bond

00 62 01 Form ST-5C Contractor’s Sales Tax Exempt Purchase Certificate
00 62 01.1 Form ST-2, Town of Middleton Mass. DOR Certificate of Exemption
00 62 02 Weekly Certified Payroll & Workforce Participation Form

00 62 02.1 Weekly Payroll Records Report & Statement of Compliance

00 62 03 Request for Approval for Change Order Pricing

00 72 25 Construction Manager Supplemental Conditions

00 72 26 Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion Requirements

00 72 27 Contractor Insurance Requirements

00 72 28 Contract Forms & Supplemental Information

00 72 28.01 Contract Forms and Supplemental Checklist

00 72 28.02 Contract Form 1 — MassDOR Contractor’s Sales Tax Exemption Cert.
00 72 28.03 Subcontractor Final Release, Cert., Indemnification, Waiver of Liens
00 72 28.04 Contractor Contact Information Form

00 72 28.05 Change order Authorization Protocol

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 1 of 31



00 72 28.06 Wage Rate approval Form

00 72 28.07 Material and Equipment Lead Time Management
00 72 28.08 Schedule for Participation by Minority, Woman Business Enterprise
00 72 28.09 Letter of Intent — Minority, Woman Business Enterprises Participation
00 72 28.10 ACH Form

00 72 28.11 Eagle Fact Sheet

00 73 00 Construction Manager Project Site Specific Safety Plan
00 73 17 Subcontractor Default Insurance (SDI)

00 73 20 Site Utilization

00 73 20.1 Site Utilization Attachments

00 73 43B Prevailing Wage Schedule

00 73 44 Prevailing Wage & Labor Regulations

00 73 73 Statutory Requirements

00 74 01 Affidavits & Certifications

01 10 00 Summary

01 13 00 Construction Managers Project Schedule

01 13 00.01 CMP Lean Construction Plan

01 22 00 Unit Prices

01 22 01 Unit Price Schedule

01 23 00 Alternates

01 25 13 Product Substitution Procedures

01 31 11 Coordination Requirements & BIM Execution

01 32 16 Project Schedule Requirements & Management

01 33 00 Submittal Procedures

01 35 43 Environmental Procedures

01 43 25 Testing Agency Services

01 45 00 Quality Assurance: Structural Testing & Inspection
01 45 29 Testing Laboratory Services

01 50 00 Temporary Facilities

01 56 20 Dust Control

01 60 00 Product Requirements

01 64 00 Owner Furnished Products - Owner’s Independent Contractors
01 73 29 Cutting and Patching

01 78 00 Closeout

01 91 13 General Commissioning Requirements

01 91 13.01 Cx Plan

01 91 19 Building Enclosure Performance Requirements

02 20 00 Demolition of Buildings and Utilities

02 82 00 Asbestos Abatement

02 83 19 Lead Safe Practices

03 10 00 Concrete Formwork

03 20 00 Concrete Reinforcement

03 30 00 Cast-in-Place Concrete

03 54 16 Hydraulic Cement Underlayment

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 2 of 31



04 00 01.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope Masonry
04 20 00 Unit Masonry

05 00 01.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope Statement, Metal Fabrications
05 12 00 Structural Steel

05 20 00 Steel Joists

05 30 00 Steel Deck

05 41 00 Exterior Metal Stud Framing & Sheathing

05 50 00 Metal Fabrications

06 10 00 Rough Carpentry

06 12 00 Structural Insulated Panels

06 19 00 Wood Trusses

06 20 00 Finish Carpentry

06 60 00 Plastic Fabrications

06 61 16 Solid Surfacing Fabrications

06 64 00 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Panels

07 00 01 Dampproofing and Sealant Filed Sub Bid Requirements
07 00 01.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope Statement Waterproofing, Damproofing and
Caulking

07 00 02 Roofing & Flashing Filed Sub-Bid Requirements

07 00 02.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope Statement — Roofing & Flashing
07 16 00 Dampproofing

07 16 13 Polymer modified Cement Waterproofing

07 21 00 Thermal/Acoustic Insulation

07 25 00 Weather Barriers

07 26 00 Vapor Retarders/Air Barriers

07 31 13 Asphalt Fiberglass Shingle Roofing

07 42 13 Metal Wall Panels

07 46 46 Fiber Cement Siding

07 54 23 PVC Membrane Roofing

07 62 00 Sheet Metal Flashing & Trim

07 72 53 Snow Guards

07 76 00 Roof Pavers

07 84 00 Fire Stopping

07 92 00 Sealants

08 00 08 Glass and Glazing Filed Sub Bid Requirements

08 00 08.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope — Glass & Glazing
08 11 13 Metal Doors & Frames

08 14 16 Flush Wood Doors

08 14 23 Aluminum Clad Wood Doors

08 31 00 Access Doors & Panels

08 34 59 Vault Door

08 34 63 Detention Door & Frame Assemblies

08 36 13 Sectional Overhead Doors

08 44 13 Aluminum Storefront & Doors

08 52 00 Aluminum Clad Wood Windows -

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16™, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 3 of 31




08 56 19 BR Window Assembly
08 71 00 Door Hardware
08 80 00 Glass & Glazing
08 90 00 Architectural Louvers and Vents
09 00 02.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope — Tiling, Ceramic, Stone
09 00 03 Tiling, Ceramic & Stone Flooring Filed Sub Bid Requirements
09 00 03.1 CM Supplemental Scope Statement — Acoustical Ceiling Systems
09 00 05.1 CM Supplemental Scope Statement —Resilient Flooring
09 00 06 Resilient Flooring Filed Sub-Bid Requirements
09 00 07.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope Statement, Painting
09 00 09 Painting Filed Sub-Bid Requirements
09 22 16 Non-Structural Metal Framing
09 29 00 Gypsum Board
09 30 00 Tiling - Ceramic
09 51 00.1 CM Supplemental Scope Statement — Acoustical Ceiling Systems
09 51 00 Acoustical Ceiling Systems
09 63 43 Stone Flooring
09 65 13 Resilient Base & Accessories
09 65 18 Rubber Flooring & Stair Covering
09 65 66 Synthetic Athletic Flooring
09 67 10 Resinous Flooring
09 68 10 Carpet Tile
09 81 00 Acoustical Insulation
09 91 00 Painting
09 91 13 Exterior Painting Schedule
09 91 23 Interior Painting Schedule
09 96 99 Water Vapor Emission Control Systems
10 00 00 Miscellaneous Specialties
10 11 00 Visual Display Surfaces
10 14 00 Signage
10 22 26 Operable Partitions
10 28 00 Toilet Accessories
10 40 00 Safety Specialties
11 19 20 Security Hardware
11 30 00 Appliances & Equipment
11 40 00 Foodservice Equipment
12 24 00 Interior Roller Shades
14 00 01.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope Statement
14 24 00 Elevator
21 00 00.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope — Fire Protection
21 00 00 Fire Protection
22 00 00.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope — Plumbing
22 00 00 Plumbing
23 00 00.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope — HVAC

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 4 of 31




23 00 00 HVAC

23 05 48 Vibration Control and seismic Restraint
26 00 00.1 Construction Manager Supplemental Scope — Electrical
26 00 00 Electrical

27 00 00 Communications

31 10 00 Site Clearing

31 20 00 Earthwork

31 25 00 Erosion and Sedimentation Control

31 61 00 Footings

32 12 16 Flexible Paving

32 14 00 Unit Pavers

32 16 00 Curbs, Gutters, Sidewalks, and Driveways
32 17 23 Pavement Markings

32 28 00 Site Improvements

32 28 31 Chain Link Fence

32 29 30 Lawns and Grasses

32 31 70 Fence and Trellis

32 90 40 Planting

33 10 00 Water Utilities

33 30 00 Sanitary Sewerage

33 40 00 Stormwater Utilities

Appendices
Section 03 41 16 Municipal Complex Traffic Control
(For Reference Only)
Section 40 00 00 Appendix A Phase I Site Assessment
Phase II Site Assessment
Phase II Investigation Summary Report
Section 50 00 00 Appendix B Foundation Engineering Report
Section 60 00 00 Appendix C Middleton HazMat Report
Section 70 00 00 Appendix D Town of Danvers DPW Water Rules and Regulations
Section 80 00 00 Appendix E Middleton Board of Health Wastewater Regulations
Section 90 00 00 Appendix F Federal Fish & Wildlife — Incidental Take Permit Application
Federal Fish & Wildlife — Incidental Take Permit PER3601901
Federal Fish & Wildlife
Section 100 00 00 Appendix G Hydrant Fow Test

Drawings (Civil & Landscape)

1-10 EXISTING SITE SURVEY

CIVIL & LANDSCAPE

C-100  GENERAL NOTES SHEET
C-200 DEMOLITION PLAN

C-300 OVERALL SITE LAYOUT PLAN
C-301 SITE LAYOUT PLAN 1

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 5 of 31



C-302 SITELAYOUT PLAN 2

C-303 SITELAYOUT PLAN 3

C-304 SITELAYOUT PLAN 4

C-305 SITELAYOUT PLAN 5

C-400 OVERALL GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C-401 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN 1
C-402 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN 2
C-403 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN 3
C-404 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN 4
C-405 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN 5
C-500 OVERALL UTILITY PLAN

C-501 UTILITY PLAN 1

C-502 UTILITY PLAN 2

C-503 UTILITY PLAN 3

C-504 UTILITY PLAN 4

C-505 UTILITY PLAN 5

C-601 SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
C-602 SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES & DETAILS
C-700 OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN
C-701 LANDSCAPE PLAN 1

C-702 LANDSCAPE PLAN 2

C-703 LANDSCAPE PLAN 3

C-704 LANDSCAPE PLAN 4

C-705 LANDSCAPE PLAN 5

C-706 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENTS
C-707 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

C-708 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

C-901 DETAIL SHEET

C-902 DETAIL SHEET

C-903 DETAIL SHEET

C-904 DETAIL SHEET

C-905 DETAIL SHEET

ELECTRICAL

ES0.4 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN

ES0.5 ELECTRICAL SITE DETAILS

ES0.6 ELECTRICAL SITE DETAILS

ES0.7 ELECTRICAL SITE DETAILS

Drawings (Town Hall)

Al.1 ABBREVIATIONS, LEGENDS, GENERAL NOTES & WALL TYPES
A1.2 BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS

A1.3 CONTINUOUS AIR & VAPOR BARRIER DIAGRAMS

Al1.4 TOWN HALL PARKING CANOPY (ALTERNATE #1)

A2.1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN - -

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 6 of 31



A2.2 SECOND FLOOR PLAN

A2.3 ATTIC AND ROOF PLAN

A2.4 FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR FURNITURE PLANS

A3.1 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A3.2 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A4.1 BUILDING SECTIONS

A4.2 WALL SECTIONS

A4.3 WALL SECTIONS

A5.1 EXTERIOR DETAILS - FOUNDATION, WALL BASE & PLAN DETAILS
A5.2 EXTERIOR DETAILS - WINDOWS AND LOUVERS

AS5.3 EXTERIOR DETAILS - DOORS

A5.4 EXTERIOR DETAILS - ROOF

AS5.5 EXTERIOR DETAILS - ROOF

A5.6 PORTE COCHERE DETAILS

AS5.7 PORTE COCHERE DETAILS

AS5.8 EXTERIOR DETAILS - WALL BASE AND PRECAST

AS5.9 PRECAST ELEVATIONS

AS5.10 PRECAST ELEVATIONS

A6.1 LOBBY STAIR PLANS, SECTIONS & ELEVATIONS, & STAIR DETAILS
A6.2 STAIR STB-1 PLANS & SECTIONS, AND ELEVATOR PLANS & SECTIONS
A7.1 DOOR & OPENING SCHEDULE & ELEVATIONS

A7.2 DOOR & OPENING DETAILS

A8.1 FIRST FLOOR RCP

A8.2 SECOND FLOOR RCP

A9.1 FIRST & SECOND FLOOR FINISH PLANS

A9.2 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS - LOBBY, & 2ND FLOOR LOBBY
A9.3 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS -TRANSACTION COUNTERS
A9.4 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS -MULTIPURPOSE ROOM & CLASSROOM
A9.5 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS - TOILET ROOMS, KITCHENS & BREAK ROOMS
A9.6 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS - STAIR A

A9.7 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS - SIGNAGE LETTERING

Al10.1 MILLWORK DETAILS

A10.2 MILLWORK DETAILS

STRUCTURAL

SO0  COVER SHEET & DRAWING LIST

S0.0 GENERAL NOTES

S0.1 GENERAL NOTES

S0.2 STATEMENT OF SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

S50.3 LOADING PLANS

S1.1 FOUNDATION PLAN

S1.2 SECOND FLOOR & LOW ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S1.3 ROOF FRAMING PLANS

S1.4 ADD/ALT CANOPY PLAN AND SECTIONS

52.0 BRACED FRAME ELEVATIONS

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 7 of 31




S2.1 BRACED FRAME DETAILS

S2.2 MULTIPURPOSE ROOM FRAMING ELEVATIONS

S3.0 TYPICAL CONCRETE DETAILS

S3.1 FOUNDATION SECTIONS AND DETAILS

S3.2 GENERAL LAP SPLICE SCHEDULES

S4.0 TYPICAL MASONRY DETAILS

S5.0 STEEL COLUMN DETAILS

S5.1 TYPICAL STEEL BEAM DETAILS

S5.2 TYPICAL COMPOSITE STEEL DECK DETAILS

S5.3 STEEL DETAILS

S5.4 STEEL DETAILS FOR OPERABLE PARTITIONS

S5.5 CANOPY PLANS AND DETAILS

S6.0 TYPICAL TRUSS DETAILS

S6.1 TRUSS ELEVATIONS

S6.2 TRUSS ELEVATIONS

S6.3 WOOD FRAMING DETAILS

S6.4 WOOD FRAMING DETAILS

FIRE PROTECTION

FP0.01 LEGEND, SCHEDULES, AND DETAILS

FP1.00 FIRST & SECOND FLOOR PLANS - FIRE PROTECTION
FP1.01 ATTIC PLAN - FIRE PROTECTION

PLUMBING

P0.01 LEGEND, SCHEDULES, AND DETAILS — PLUMBING
P1.00 FIRST FLOOR BELOW SLAB & FIRST FLOOR PLANS - PLU
P1.01 SECOND & ATTIC FLOOR PLANS - PLUMBING
P1.02 ROOF PLAN — PLUMBING

MECHANICAL

MO0.1 HVAC LEGEND, GENERAL NOTES, & DETAILS I
M0.2 HVAC DETAILS II

MO0.3 HVAC DETAILS Il

M0.4 HVAC FLOW & RISER DIAGRAMS

MO0.5 HVAC FLOW & RISER DIAGRAMS 11

M0.6 SCHEDULES I

M1.0 HVACFIRST & SECOND FLOOR DUCTWORK PLAN
M2.0 HVACFIRST & SECOND FLOOR PIPING PLAN

M3.0 HVAC ATTIC & ROOF PLAN

M4.0 HVAC CONTROLS I

M4.1 HVAC CONTROLS It

VS-1.0 VIBRATION & SEISMIC DETAILS

ELECTRICAL

EO0.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ELECTRICAL SYMBOL LIST
E0.2 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE &

DETAILS
E0.3 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER AUTOMATED LIGHTING CONTROL
SYSTEM & DETAILS

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 8 of 31



El.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR PLANS -
LIGHTING

E1.2 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ATTIC PLAN - LIGHTING

E2.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER FIRST FLOOR AND SECOND PLANS -
POWER

E2.2 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ATTIC & ROOF PLANS - POWER

E3.0 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ONE-LINE RISER DIAGRAM

E3.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER MECHANICAL & PLUMBING EQUIPMENT
CONNECTIONS SCHEDULES

E3.2 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER KITCHEN CONNECTIONS PLAN

E3.3 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER GROUNDING RISER & LIGHTING
PROTECTION DETAILS

E3.4 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ELECTRICAL DETAILS

E4.0 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER FIRE ALARM RISER DIAGRAM

E4.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR PLANS - FIRE
ALARM

E4.2 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ATTIC PLAN - FIRE ALARM

E5.0 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER SECURITY SYMBOL LIST

E5.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR PLANS -
SECURITY

E5.2 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ATTIC PLAN - SECURITY
TECHNOLOGY

T0.1 TECHNOLOGY SYMBOL LIST

T1.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR PLANS -
TECHNOLOGY

T1.1 TOWN HALL & COMMUNITY CENTER ATTIC FLOOR PLAN - TECHNOLOGY
T2.0 TECHNOLOGY RISER DIAGRAM & SCHEDULES

T3.0 TECHNOLOGY DETAILS

FOOD SERVICE

K100 FOOD SERVICE EQUIPMENT PLAN & SCHEDULE

Drawings (Public Safety)
Al1.1 ABBREVIATIONS, LEGENDS, GENERAL NOTES & WALL TYPES
A1.2 BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS

A1.3 CONTINUOUS AIR & VAPOR BARRIER DIAGRAMS

A1.4 POLICE PARKING CANOPY (ALTERNATE #1)
A2.1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN

A2.2 FIRST FLOOR DIMENSIONAL PLAN

A2.3 SECOND FLOOR PLAN

A2.4 SECOND FLOOR DIMENSIONAL PLAN

A2.5 ATTIC PLAN

A2.6 ROOF PLAN

A2.7 FIRST FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN

A2.8 SECOND FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN

A3.1 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A3.2 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 9 of 31



A4.1 BUILDING SECTIONS

A4.2 WALL SECTIONS

A4.3 WALL SECTIONS

A5.1 EXTERIOR DETAILS - FOUNDATION & WALL BASE
A5.2 EXTERIOR DETAILS - PLAN DETAILS

A5.3 EXTERIOR DETAILS - WINDOWS

A5.4 EXTERIOR DETAILS - WINDOWS AND LOUVERS
A5.5 EXTERIOR DETAILS - DOORS

A5.6 EXTERIOR DETAILS - DOORS

A5.7 EXTERIOR DETAILS - DOORS

A5.8 EXTERIOR DETAILS - ROOF

A5.9 EXTERIOR DETAILS - ROOF

AS5.10 EXTERIOR DETAILS - ROOF

A5.11 EXTERIOR DETAILS - WALL BASE AND PRECAST
A35.12 EXTERIOR DETAILS - TRAINING WALL

A5.13 PRECAST ELEVATIONS

AS5.14 PRECAST ELEVATIONS

A6.1 STAIR PLANS & SECTIONS, DETAILS - STAIRS & GUARDRAILS
A6.2 ELEVATOR PLANS, SECTIONS & DETAILS, FIRE POLE & ATTIC LADDER DETAILS
A6.3 TRAINING AREAS

A6.4 STAIR PLANS & SECTIONS, MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS
A7.1 DOOR & OPENING SCHEDULE & ELEVATIONS

A7.2 DOOR & OPENING DETAILS

A8.1 FIRST FLOOR RCP

A8.2 FIRST FLOOR RCP - COORDINATION

A8.3 SECOND FLOOR RCP

A8.4 SECOND FLOOR RCP - COORDINATION

A9.1 FIRST & SECOND FLOOR FINISH PLANS

A9.2 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS

A9.3 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS

A9.4 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS - TOILET ROOMS
A9.5 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS - DETENTION
A9.6 ENLARGED PLANS & ELEVATIONS - SIGNAGE LETTERING
A10.1 MILLWORK DETAILS

A10.2 MILLWORK DETAILS

SO COVER SHEET & DRAWING LIST

S0.0 GENERAL NOTES

S0.1 GENERAL NOTES

S0.2 STATEMENT OF SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

S0.3 FLOOR LOADING PLANS

S0.4 ROOF SNOW LOADING PLAN

S1.1 FOUNDATION PLAN

S1.2 SECOND FLOOR & LOW ROOF FRAMING PLAN
S1.3 ROOF FRAMING PLAN

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 10 of 31



S1.4 ADD/ALT CANOPY PLANS & SECTIONS

S2.0 APPARATUS FRAMING ELEVATIONS

S2.1 BRACED FRAME ELEVATIONS

S2.2 BRACED FRAME DETAILS

S3.0 TYPICAL CONCRETE DETAILS

S3.1 FOUNDATION SECTIONS AND DETAILS

S3.2 GENERAL LAP SPLICE SCHEDULES

S4.0 TYPICAL MASONRY DETAILS

S4.1 CMU DETAILS

S5.0 STEEL COLUMN DETAILS

S5.1 TYPICAL STEEL BEAM DETAILS

S5.2 TYPICAL COMPOSITE STEEL DECK DETAILS
S5.3 TYPICAL STEEL JOIST DETAILS

S5.4 STEEL DETAILS

S5.5 STEEL DETAILS

S§5.6 CANOPY PLANS AND DETAILS

S6.0 TYPICAL TRUSS DETAILS

S6.1 TRUSS PROFILES

S6.2 WOOD FRAMING DETAILS

S6.3 WOOD FRAMING DETAILS

S6.4 WOOD FRAMING DETAILS

FIRE PROTECTION

FP0.01 LEGEND, SCHEDULES, AND DETAILS -FIRE PROTECTION
FP2.01 FIRST FLOOR PLAN -FIRE PROTECTION
FP2.02 SECOND FLOOR PLAN -FIRE PROTECTION
FP2.03 ATTIC PLAN -FIRE PROTECTION
PLUMBING

P0.01 LEGEND, SCHEDULES, AND DETAILS -PLUMBING
P2.00 FIRST FLOOR BELOW SLAB PLAN -PLUMBING
P2.01 FIRST FLOOR PLAN -PLUMBING

P2.02 SECOND FLOOR PLAN -PLUMBING

P2.03 ATTIC PLAN -PLUMBING

P2.04 ROOF PLAN -PLUMBING

MECHANICAL

M0.1 HVAC LEGEND, GENERAL NOTES & DETAILS I
M0.2 HVACDETAILSII

M0.3 HVACDETAILS III

M0.4 HVACFLOW & RISER DIAGRAMS I

M0.5 HVACFLOW & RISER DIAGRAMS II

M0.6 HVAC SCHEDULES

M1.0 FIRST FLOOR DUCTWORK PLAN

M1.1 SECOND FLOOR DUCTWORK

M2.0 FIRST FLOOR PIPING

M2.1 SECOND FLOOR PIPING

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 11 of 31



M3.0 ATTIC PLAN

M3.1 ROOF PLAN

M4.0 HVAC CONTROLSI

M4.1 HVACCONTROLS I

M4.2 HVAC CONTROLS III

VS-1.0 VIBRATION & SEISMIC DETAILS

ELECTRICAL

E0.1 ELECTRICAL SYMBOL LIST

E0.2 LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE

E0.3 ALCS RISER DIAGRAM SCHEDULES & DETAILS

E1.1 PUBLIC SAFETY FIRST LEVEL PLAN -LIGHTING

E1.2 PUBLIC SAFETY SECOND LEVEL PLAN -LIGHTING
E1.3 PUBLIC SAFETY ATTIC LEVEL PLAN -LIGHTING

E2.1 PUBLIC SAFETY FIRST FLOOR PLAN -POWER

E2.2 PUBLIC SAFETY SECOND FLOOR PLAN -POWER

E2.3 PUBLIC SAFETY ATTIC FLOOR PLAN -POWER

E2.4 PUBLIC SAFETY ROOF PLAN -COMBINED

E3.0 PUBLIC SAFETY RISER DIAGRAM SCHEDULES & DETAILS
E3.1 PUBLIC SAFETY MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SCHEDULES
E3.2 PUBLIC SAFETY PLUMBING EQUIPMENT SCHEDULES
E3.3 PUBLIC SAFETY GROUNDING RISER DIAGRAM & LIGHTNING PROTECTION
DETAILS

E3.4 ELECTRICAL DETAILS

E3.5 ELECTRICAL RADIANT FLOOR DESIGN PLAN

E4.0 PUBLIC SAFETY FIRE ALARM RISER

E4.1 PUBLIC SAFETY FIRST FLOOR PLAN -FIRE ALARM
E4.2 PUBLIC SAFETY SECOND FLOOR PLAN -FIRE ALARM
E4.3 PUBLIC SAFETY ATTIC FLOOR PLAN -FIRE ALARM
E5.0 PUBLIC SAFETY SECURITY SYMBOL LIST

E5.1 PUBLIC SAFETY FIRST FLOOR PLAN -SECURITY

E5.2 PUBLIC SAFETY SECOND FLOOR PLAN -SECURITY
TECHNOLOGY

T0.1 TECHNOLOGY SYMBOL LIST

T1.1 PUBLIC SAFETY FIRST FLOOR PLAN -TECHNOLOGY
T1.2 PUBLIC SAFETY SECOND FLOOR PLAN -TECHNOLOGY
T2.0 TECHNOLOGY RISER DIAGRAM

T3.0 TECHNOLOGY DETAILS

Addendums

Addendum 1 — Dated February 29, 2024
Addendum 2 — Dated March 6, 2024
Addendum 3 — Dated March 13, 2024
Addendum 4 — Dated March 15, 2024
Addendum 5 — Dated March 19, 2024
Addendum 6 — Dated March 25, 2024

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16™, 2024
Amendment No, 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 12 of 31




Addendum 7 — Dated March 26, 2024
Addendum 8 — Dated March 27, 2024

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 13 of 31



EXHIBIT B

Summary of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal with
Cost of Work Items, General Conditions, Contingencies and Fee

FINAL GMP: CONTRACT AMENDMENT #2

INITIAL CONTRACT AND PREVIOUS AMENDMENTS

Original Contract - Preconstruction Services $124,910
Amendment #1: RTA 1 Trade Bids + RTA 2 Priority Non-Trades $39,088,652
Total Initial Contract and Previous Amendments $39,213,562
Amendment #2: GMP Amendment

Cost of Work (all remaining scope) $14,993,142
Alternate 1 - Parking Canopies: Provide parking canopies in the

secure police parking lot and in the Town Hall Central West Parking

lot 5274,050
Alternate 2A - Permeable Parking Town Hall: Provide permeable

overflow parking lot off the drive to Town Hall $161,678
Alternate 2B - Permeable Parking Public Safety: Provide permeable

overflow parking lot off the PSB visitor parking lot $130,522
Alternate 3 - Gazebo: Provide Gazebo per 32 28 00 complete with

concrete, civil work and pavers $5248,849

Included in Cost of Work

General Conditi
ral Conditions (see Attachment B)

Included in Cost of Work

General Requirements
g (see Attachment C)

GMP - INSURANCE & BOND - $840,998
GMP - FEE $1,101,998
GMP CONTINGENCY $1,159,998
Total Amount c_)_f this Amendment $1§9];11235
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $58,124,797
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION GMP (excludes

Preconstruction fees and expenses) $57,999,887
I\;iddleton M;ni_cipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024

Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 14 of 31



EXHIBIT C

Allowances that are included in Final GMP Contract
(O: Owner’s Allowance; CM: CM Allowance. See Exhibit G for definitions)

Cost Code Allowance Description ( OC/;::tI;/l) GMP Value
7000 General Requirements Allowances (Included as part of the GR overall sum)
7001 Temporary Electric Power Consumption 0 $91,546.00 |
7002 Temporary Electric Service Misc Expenses 0 $25,000.00
7003 Temporary Water Consumed C™M $28,080.00
7004 Temporary Heat - Fuel Consumption M $88,277.00
7005 Temporary Heat System Prior to Enclosure M $91,546.00
7006 Temporary Humidity control ™M $62,121.00
7007 Winter Conditions (Hand Shoveling and hand weather items) (e} $25,000.00
7008 Temporary Stairs and Rails M $90,000.00
7009 Police Details 0 $24,000.00
7010 Fire Watch (uniformed) 0 $30,000.00
7011 Wrap building for winter slab pours M $45,000.00
7012 Site Sand and Salting 0 $33,000.00
Total General Requirement Allowances $633,570.00
7100 Cost of Work Allowances Description
7101 Existing Retaining Wall Patching 0 $30,000.00 '
7102 Premium Time Allowance o\Y/ $200,000.00
7103 BoH Sewer Comments 0 $40,000.00
7104 MassDOT Traffic Permit Allowance 0 $40,000.00
7105 Floor patching allowance ™M $50,000.00
7106 Electrical Design ttems 0 $50,000.00
7107 Structural Steel & Truss Coordination 0 $65,000.00
7108 Mechanical & Plumbing Design Coordination 0] $75,000.00
7109 Utility Company Charges M $25,000.00
7110 Door Hardware Coordination B o] $50,000.00
7111 Liquid Asphalt Escalation 0] $85,000.00
7112 Sitework Winter Conditions {Excavation, frost and snow) 0 $100,000.00
7113 Concrete Winter Conditions {Slabs heat & admixtures) ™M $75,000.00
i 7114 Civil Utility Coordination 0] $60,000.00
7115 Loam Management 0 $75,000.00
7116 Temp Provisions for Permanent Power 0 $350,000.00
7117 Unsuitable Soils 6} $75,000.00
7118 Clubhouse ACM Unforeseen o] $65,000.00
7119 Environmental Allowance 0 $200,000.00
7120 temp parking lot striping for school 0 54,500.00
Total GMP COW Allowances $1,714,500.00
TOTAL ALLOWANCES $2,348,070.00

0 vs CM defines who is responsible for allowance overruns: O = Owner {change order}; CM = Construction Manager (GMP Contingency)

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 15 of 31




EXHIBIT D

List of Alternates and Acceptance Status

Alternate Cost of

Total Alternate

Al Descripti
ternate Description Work Ao Status
Alternate 1 - Parking Canopies: Provide parking

canopies in the secure police parking lot and in the $274,050.00 $288,170.00 Accepted
Town Hall Central West Parking lot

Alternate 2A - Permeable Parking Town Hall: Provide

permeable overflow parking lot off the drive to Town $161,678.00 $168,404.00 Accepted
Hall

Alternate 2B - Permeable Parking Public Safety: Provide

permeable overflow parking lot off the PSB visitor $130,522.00 $137,248.00 Accepted
parking lot

| - : i 1

Alternate 3‘ Gazebo Pr0\./|c.Ie Gazebo per 32 28 00 $248,849.00 $261,671.00 Accepted
complete with concrete, civil work and pavers

Total all Alternates $815,099.00 $855,493.00

Alternate 1 - Parking Canopies: Provide parking canopies in the secure police parking lot and in the Town

Hall Central West Parking lot

Item Description Qty Unit Unit Cost Amount
Quinn i LS $65,000.00 $65,000.00
Capeway 1 LS $48,800.00 $48,800.00
John W. Eagon 1 LS $5,500.00 $5,500.00
Steel (SBL) 1 LS $69,000.00 $69,000.00
Concrete (Marg) 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00
Sitework (Derenzo) 1 LS $10,750.00 $10,750.00
Misc Coordination 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00
Alternate Cost of Work Amount $274,050.00
| P&P Bond 0.49% X $288,170.00 $1,412.00
Insurance 0.76% X $288,170.00 $2,190.00
Builder's Risk 0.00% X $288,170.00 $0.00
CM Fee 1.90% X $288,170.00 $5,475.00
GMP Contingency 1.75% X $288,170.00 $5,043.00
Total Alternate Cost $288,170.00

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA

Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 16 of 31




Alternate 2A - Permeable Parking Town Hall: Provide permeable overflow parking lot off the drive to Town

Hall
Item Description Qty Unit Unit Cost Amount

LE! - Town Hall LS $94,478.00 $94,478.00
| Sitework (Derenzo) - Town Hall LS $54,700.00 $54,700.00
Misc Coordination 1 LS $12,500.00 $12,500.00
LS $0.00 $0.00
- LS $0.00 $0.00
LS $0.00 $0.00
Alternate Cost of Work Amount $161,678.00
P&P Bond 0.49% X $137,248.00 $673.00
Insurance 0.76% X $137,248.00 $1,043.00
Builder's Risk 0.00% X $137,248.00 $0.00
CM Fee 1.90% X $137,248.00 $2,608.00
GMP Contingency 1.75% X $137,248.00 $2,402.00

Total Alternate Cost

$168,404.00

Alternate 2B - Permeable Parking Public Safety: Provide permeable overflow parking lot off the PSB visitor

parking lot
Item Description Qty Unit Unit Cost Amount
LEI - Public Safety 1 LS $73,522.00 $73,522.00
Sitework (Derenzo) - Public Safety LS $44,500.00 $44,500.00
Misc Coordination LS $12,500.00 $12,500.00
LS $0.00 $0.00
LS $0.00 $0.00
LS $0.00 $0.00
Alternate Cost of Work Amount $130,522.00
P&P Bond 0.49% X $137,248.00 $673.00
Insurance 0.76% X $137,248.00 $1,043.00
Builder's Risk 0.00% X $137,248.00 $0.00
CM Fee 1.90% X $137,248.00 $2,608.00
GMP Contingency 1.75% X $137,248.00 $2,402.00

Total Alternate Cost

$137,248.00

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA

Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 17 of 31




Alternate 3 - Gazebo: Provide Gazebo per 32 28 00 complete with concrete and civil work

Item Description Qty Unit Unit Cost Amount
LE! 1 LS $210,649.00 $210,649.00
Sitework {Derenzo) 1 LS $11,200.00 $11,200.00
Concrete (Marg.) 1 LS $12,000.00 $12,000.00
Misc Coordination 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Alternate Cost of Work Amount $248,849.00
P&P Bond 0.49% X $261,671.00 $1,282.00
Insurance 0.76% X $261,671.00 $1,989.00
Builder's Risk 0.00% X $261,671.00 $0.00
CM Fee 1.90% X $261,671.00 $4,972.00
GMP Contingency 1.75% X $261,671.00 $4,579.00
Total Alternate Cost $261,671.00

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA

Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16™, 2024
Page 18 of 31




EXHIBIT E

Construction Schedule identifying the Substantial and Final Completion Dates

Critical Award Approval Dates:

- All Trade Contractors: April 24, 2024
- Priority Non-Trades: (Structural Steel, Concrete, Sitework, Trusses, Drywall, Detention
Equipment) April 24, 2024

- GMP Approval May 31, 2024
Access to Site for Mobilization May 8, 2024
Substantial Completion (Temp Certificate of Occupancy), less weather dependent items (i.e.
Landscaping) January 30, 2026
Project Final Completion and Closeout: March 15, 2026

*or as allowable planting seasons timeframes

Refer to Attachment D for GMP Summary Level Schedule. An official, fully detailed Baseline Project
Schedule will be submitted for review and approval no later than June 30, 2024. This will allow the
Construction Manager adequate time to gather and incorporate input from contractors before finalizing
the baseline schedule. Regardless of any changes made to the baseline schedule, the above contract
substantial and final completion dates shall be binding and not subject to change for the GMP scope of
work defined herein.

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 19 of 31



EXHIBIT F
List of Unit Prices

The quantity for each item to be included within the GMP base bid scope of work is defined within the
table below. Unit prices will be used to determine appropriate increase or decrease in contract value
when actual quantities deviate from the base bid quantity. Unit pricing is to be fully inclusive of all
subcontractor costs, fees, overhead and incidental costs associated with the performance of the work.
Unit prices are to remain valid for the duration of the project. Construction Manager overhead, profit,

bonds and insurance are NOT included in these unit price rates and such amounts, not to exceed

amounts calculated in conformity with Article VI, 2 A (2) of the Owner-Contractor Agreement, shall be
added accordingly for any add change orders that are unit price based. No CM overhead or profit will be
applied to deduct unit prices.

Structural Steel Unit Prices

Item No. Spec Section

Item Description

ADDITIONAL
Quantity Included in
Base Bid

Unit of
Measure

Unit Price

1 051000

Additional Structural Steel Framing added
during submittal process

0

Tons

N/A

Fireproofing

Resilient

Item No. | Spec Section

Item Description

ADDITIONAL
Quantity Included in
Base Bid

Unit of
Measure

Unit Price

096810 & 09
00 05

09 68 10 & 09 68 10 - Self-Leveling
Toppings Base price shall assume Tile
Trade Contractor and Resilient Flooring
Trade Contractor to provide self-leveling
topping at all

concrete slabs to receive tile and resilient
flooring, respectively. Provide unit price
as a basis for calculating deductions of
self-leveling topping at areas where field
conditions meet FF and FL tolerances and
requirements of flooring manufacturers for
flooring installation without application of
self-leveling toppings. The quantities noted
in the Contract Documents shall be
included in the base bid as follows:

N/A

2 090005.1

09 00 05.1 - Self-leveling — 1/4” to 1/2"
average thickness: 10,000 sf

10,000

SF

$3.00

3 090005.1

09 00 05.1 - Self-leveling — 1/2” to 3/"
average thickness: 2,500 sf

2500

SF

$4.50

3 090005.1

09 00 05.1 - Self-leveling —3/4" to 1"
average thickness: 2,500 sf

2500

SF

$6.00

3 09 68 10

09 68 10 - Self-leveling — 1/4” to 1/2"
average thickness: 10,000 sf

10000

SF

TBD*

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 20 of 31




09 68 10

09 68 10 - Self-leveling — 1/2” to 3/"
average thickness: 2,500 sf

2500

SF

TBD*

09 68 10

09 68 10 - Self-leveling — 3/4" to 1"
average thickness: 2,500 sf

2,500

SF

TBD*

Electrical

Item No.

Spec Section

Item Description

ADDITIONAL
Quantity Included in
Base Bid

Unit of
Measure

Unit Price

260000

260000 - Underground PVC conduit (2
inch diameter)
Price per 50 foot run .

EA

$298.00

260000

260000 - Underground PVC conduit (4
inch diameter)
Price per 50 foot run .

EA

$509.00

260000

260000 - 120V 20amp up to 200LF of
wiring back to closest panel. The quantities
noted in the Contract Documents shall be
included in the base bid. Additional
quantities beyond those listed are per each .

260000

260000 - Up to 350Ft of cabling back to
the closest patch panel. The quantities
noted in the Contract Documents shall be
included in the base bid. Additional
quantities beyond those

listed are per each.

EA

$854.00

EA

$799.00

260000

260000 - Added Exit sign with up to 200Ft
of wiring back to the closest termination
point for a functional device. The
quantities noted in the Contract Documents
shall be included in the base bid.
Additional quantities beyond those listed

| are per each.

EA

$808.00

Site Work Unit Prices

Item No.

Spec Section

Item Description

ADDITIONAL
Quantity Included in
Base Bid

Unit of
Measure

Unit Price

310000

310000 - Removal of unsuitable soil shall
be based on calculated in-place volume. A
copy of the disposal agreement shall be
provided to the Owner seven days in
advance of the work. Price per cubic yard
of material.

CY

$63
excludes
disposal*

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 21 of 31




31 00 00 - Removal of unsuitable soil shall

be based on calculated in-place volume. A $63
5 310000 copy of the disposal agreement shgll be cy excludes
provided to the Owner seven days in ) B
advance of the work.. Price per cubic yard disposal
of material.
31 00 00 - Demolish and dispose of
excavated concrete material. Volume of
concrete to be measured as in-place
quantities only. Concrete
shall be assumed to contain steel
3 310000 reinforcing bars. Concrete foundations of Tns $125.00
existing buildings and related site
| improvements shall not be considered or
| classified as "unforeseen".
| Price per ton of material.
31 00 00 - "Common Borrow"
4 310000 (unclassified, general). CY $38.00
Price per cubic yard of material.
310000 -Dewatering required for Trench
5 310000 Excavation Day N/A
Price per dayl.
310000 -Trench Earth Over Excavation $63
6 310000 due to unsuitable material (0-3 feet depth). CY excludes
Price per cubic yard of material. disposal*
310000 -Trench Earth Over Excavation $63
7 310000 due to unsuitable material (3-6 feet depth). CY excludes
Price per cubic yard of material. disposal*
310000 - (Over 6 feet to 12 feet depth.)
8 | 210000 | Price per cubic yard of material. CY 545.00
310000 - Boulders between 2 cubic yards
9 310000 and 3 cubic yards in size. CY $250.00
Price per cubic yard of material.
310000 - Between 1 cubic yard and 2 cubic
10 310000 yards in size. 0)'¢ $250.00
Price per cubic yard of material.
310000 - Two courses, with full gravel
r base, and base course, as described in the
11 310000 Contract Documents. SY $38.00
Price per square yard of pavement area.
- Vehicular Bitunminous Concrete Paving
$50
310000 - Compacted, in-place - price per Structural
12 310000 cubic yard of material. CY
Structural Fill Gravels on
| site

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16%, 2024
Page 22 of 31




13 3106000

310000 - Compacted, in-place - price per
cubic yard of material.
Graded Gravel Fill "Granual Fill"

CY

S50
Structural
Gravels on

site

14 310000

310000 - (3/4-inch) - price per cubic yard
of material.
Crushed Washed Stone

CY

$50.00

15 310000

310000 - (1-1/2 inch) - price per cubic yard
of material.
Crushed Washed Stone

CcYy

$50.00

16 310000

Disposal of <RSC1 excavated material to
Kinston Facility. Assumes live load into
trucks

Ton

$22.00 **

17 310000

Disposal of <RSC1 excavated material to
AINER Saugus Facility. Assumes live load
into trucks

Ton

$22.00 **

18 310000

Disposal of <RSC2 excavated material to
Marilyn’s Landing Facility. Assumes live
load into trucks

Ton

$42.00 **

19 310000

Disposal of In-state Un-lined landfill
excavated material to Lynn Landfill.
Assumes live load into trucks

Ton

$48.00 **

20 310000

Disposal of In-state Un-lined landfill
excavated material to Adam’s Landfill
Grafton, Ma. Assumes live load into trucks

Ton

$59.00 **

* The unit price of § 63.00/cy includes
excavatior/ replacement and stockpiling
onsite (excludes disposal)

** These are disposal costs only. They
do not include LSP services and/or
classification of materials, testing and
on site monitoring by an LSP.

Unit prices defined in Section 01 22 01 are addressed and included as defined above. Additional non-Trade
Contractor unit prices may be required. These will be procured as necessary and defined and presented in
the Request to Award (RTA) for the corresponding packages.

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP

May 16% 2024
Page 23 of 31



EXHIBIT G
Assumptions, Clarifications and Qualifications

1) The Construction Manager has made a good faith effort to identify and eliminate errors and
omissions from the contract documents; however, the Construction Manager does not warrant
that the documents are free of errors, and, except as otherwise provided in the Contract
Documents, the Construction Manager shall not be held responsible for costs or change orders
incurred as a result of any such errors, omissions or deficiencies within the contract documents
and which do not arise as a result of the Construction Manager’s fault or negligence.

2) Itis important to note that we have attempted to define the contents of each bid package to
encompass the work of the indicated specification sections in full and without qualifications;
however, this is not always practical or economical. Thus, Requests to Award (RTA) letters or
Scope of Work (SOW) Definitions define the exact scope of work associated with the
procurement of each given scope of work and shall be the first recourse in resolving any disputes
or questions about the scope of work. If an exclusion is meant to apply to the project as a whole,
it will be highlighted as such. If not so highlighted, the exclusion of work in one RTA shall be
covered elsewhere in the project. In the event that the RTA’s and SOW’s do not explicitly
include or exclude any item that is clearly identified within an indicated Specification Section or
Drawing related to the scope on those documents, such item shall be assumed to be included
within the scope of work for the individual subcontractor bid package.

3) Per the original contract, the goals for minority-owned business (MBE) and woman-owned
business enterprise (WBE) participation established for this project are as follows: MBE: 4.2%
and WBE: 8.8%. Based on bid results to date, W.T. Rich Company projects these goals will not
be fully met for WBE and MBE. W.T. Rich Company will continue to make best faith efforts to
achieve both goals.

4) Subcontractor Default Insurance: W.T. Rich will utilize a Subcontractor Default Insurance
program for all eligible and qualified non-trade contractors. The cost of SDI will 1.1% of each
contract entered into the program. Subcontractor-provided bonds typically range from 1% to
1.5%; thus, the SDI program offers cost savings to the owner, greater flexibility to WT Rich
Company on contractor selection, and a more expedited process in the event of a default or
performance claim. A budget item for “SDI / Contractor-provided Bond Costs” is included in the
GMP. The budget amount is calculated based on 1.1% of the anticipated non-trade contract
values to be entered into the program. The amount will be treated as an allowance.

a. Actual costs per contractor will be applied to the allowance amount. This could be the
SDI amount, or the contractor-provided bond cost amount (in the event the contractor
does not meet financial qualification process for inclusion in the SDI program). In some
cases, the SDI qualification process will occur after notice of award.

b. In the event of an overall overrun or underrun against this allowance, funds will be pulled
from or returned to GMP Contingency.

Certain inherently high-risk, non-trade categories will be excluded from consideration for this
program. Their contract value is not included in the anticipated non-trade contract values to be
entered into the program. A bond will be required from these contractors and the bond cost will
be included as part of their contract value. For this project, the following non-trade categories

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16™, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 24 of 31



will be excluded from consideration in the SDI program: Wood Truss and Rough Carpentry,
Vault Doors.

5) Police Details — unless specifically noted to be included within a given contractor’s scope of
work, Police Details shall be paid for by the construction manager from the GMP via an
allowance.

6) Fire Details — When fire watches are required by code or by WT Rich hot work program,
contractors shall be required to provide and pay for their own fire watches when using their own
workforces. If the fire watch requires a uniformed (i.e., Fire Department) fire detail, the
construction manager shall manage and pay for such details from the GMP via an allowance.

7) Utility company costs, back charges and fees associated with design, engineering and
construction of permanent services and systems to be installed onsite are excluded. Temporary
power service is included and is carried as a General Requirements allowance.

8) For any allowance items designated as an Owner (“O”) Allowance in Exhibit C, allowance
overruns or underruns are to be paid as add/deduct to the GMP (i.e., change order). For any
allowance items designated as a Construction Manager (“CM”) Allowance in Exhibit C,
allowance overruns or underruns are to be paid as add/deduct to the GMP Contingency.

9) The GMP amount defined within this amendment does not include any provisions for extended
work days, second shift work, third shift work, Saturday work, or Sunday work for any
Construction Manager Field personnel. If premium time is required, it shall be reimbursed by
mutual agreement between the Owner and the Construction Manager under the following
guidelines:

a. If overtime or extended work is required by the Construction Manager Field personnel to
supervise, manage or oversee overtime or extended work hours performed by
subcontractors as part of the sub-contractors contractually owned responsibilities, the full
cost of CM Field personnel to provide such supervisory coverage will be reimbursed via
the Premium Time Allowance, but only with advance notice to and written permission
from the Owner. Full cost of such personnel shall include standard wages and burden,
plus premium time costs. W.T. Rich will provide 10 Saturdays of CM Supervision costs
to be used in this capacity at no cost to owner. Additionally, CM Supervisory costs on
weekdays between 7am and 5Spm are not eligible for reimbursement.

b. If overtime or extended work is required to recover the schedule due to a delay that was
not caused by the Construction Manager or its sub-contractors, then any direct additional
costs incurred for additional off-shift or overtime work shall be paid via a Change Order,
but only with advance notice to and written permission from the Owner. This would
typically include premium time costs only for sub-contractors and full costs for necessary
CM field supervisory and support personnel.

c. If the Construction Manager advises the Owner that there are means or opportunities to
expedite the schedule for the project’s best interest and it is mutually agreed by the CM
and the Owner in writing, then any direct additional costs incurred for additional off-shift
or overtime work shall be paid via the Premium Time Allowance, but only with advance
notice to and written permission from the Owner.

d. Inthe event that premium time requirement is a result of work deficiency, performance
shortcoming, delay attributed to a Contractor, then responsible party(ies) will be

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 25 of 31



responsible for its costs and, as deemed applicable under the terms of the contract, for the
costs of other parties affected. In the event that coverage of CM supervisory costs is not
attributable to responsible parties, the CM supervisory costs will be paid from the
Premium Time Allowance.

e. The Owner, in its sole discretion, may delegate to Owner’s Project Manager the power to
provide the written permissions set forth in items a, b, ¢ and d above, under certain
circumstances and/or within certain monetary limits.

f  In the event of a Premium Time Allowance overrun, the overrun costs will be drawn from
GMP Contingency; likewise, any underruns will be added to the GMP Contingency.

10) The General Conditions and General Requirements are presented as fixed, lump sum amounts,
except for those costs specifically listed as allowances in Exhibit C, Attachment B and
Attachment C. Allowances are to be tracked and billed based on actual costs incurred. For the
balance of the general conditions and general requirements scope, the Construction Manager will
bear the risk of any cost overruns for staffing or other identified general conditions and general
requirements costs; likewise, no credit will be owed on any general condition or non-allowance
general requirements items that are underutilized.

11) Receiving, handling, and installation of Owner-Furnished furnishings, equipment and systems,
etc. either existing or new, are specifically excluded from the GMP, unless specifically identified
as part of the construction scope within the contract documents. Coordination assistance of these
owner items is within the GMP.

12) When a Request to Award (RTA) letter contains a clearly stated substitute product, alternative
work approach or similar fundamental change to the work scope, upon written approval of the
RTA and issuance of a corresponding document change (i.e., ASI, PR, CCD or similar), the
qualified work will become the contractually compliant scope under the RTA and this GMP. If
there is a decision to revert to the original scope of work (i.e., before the approved qualification),
this will be handled as a change order to the GMP. Unintended gaps in scope arising out of a
substitution will be funded through the GMP contingency to complete the substitution work.
Additional technical qualifications may be included within the Request to Award.

13) The following items are excluded from the GMP:

a. CM-provided staging & hoisting for Trade and Non-Trade Contractors to complete their
respective work.

b. Contaminated soils

c. Special onsite treatment of contaminated water or water that cannot be re-charged on-site
(i.e., frac tanks) including off site discharge in to resource areas.

d. Costloaded or resource loaded CPM schedule.

e. Independent/Freestanding Exterior Wall Mockups for color selection. (NOTE: All mock-
ups will be completed in-place as part of the permanent construction)

f.  Soil testing and Licensed Site Professional (LSP) costs, in general and for soil pre-
characterization, shall be by the Owner and are excluded from the scope of the GMP.

g. Environmental conditions and monitoring associated with the special permit for the
Eagles. As well as any time/schedule constraints implemented based on the special
permit conditions.

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 160, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 26 of 31




14) Builder’s Risk Insurance shall be provided by the Town of Middleton for the project. The policy
will cover the value of construction work. The policy shall include the construction manager,
contractors and sub-contractors at all tiers as Named Insureds. The deductible shall not be higher
than $25,000. In the event of a claim, the deductible will be the responsibility of the party or
parties that bore liability for the claim. If there are not liable parties, the deductible shall be paid
out of GMP Contingency.

15) The owner will be responsible for removing all belongings and loose furnishings from the
buildings to be demolished prior to the start of abatement and demolition. No costs have been
carried within the GMP for removal, relocation or disposal of the Owner existing furnishings.

16) When work is damaged by others and the party or parties responsible for the damage cannot be
identified, the cost of repairing or replacing the damaged work will be funded from the GMP
contingency.

17) CORIs for any workers and on-site personnel has been excluded.

18) The GMP assumes that the named low bidder in each Trade Contractor category, as identified in
Attachment A, will be awarded the work in that category for their bid price amount as submitted
and as shown in Attachment A.

19) GMP excludes photographic or video surveying of adjacent properties. It is expected that this
task will be undertaken by the Town of Middleton or a representative thereof.

20) Given current supply chain volatility, in the event of uncontrollable equipment and material lead
time increases, the Construction Manager will be entitled to an equitable schedule extension
without additional costs to the owner or delay claims against the Construction Manager. GMP
Contingency will be used as a source of funding to cover applicable cost impacts of such
schedule extensions.

21) The local utility company has identified that the permanent transformers for the project have
been ordered. The current lead time of the transformers puts the delivery of the transformers to
the project after substantial completion. Through previous agreements and discussions an
allowance has been established for alternative power provisions. An actual plan has not been
developed at the time of the GMP for how the alternative power provisions will be provided. The
plans will be developed on an as needed basis and reviewed with the team prior to
implementation. The costs for the implementation will either be tracked on Time and Material or,
where applicable, lump sum values submitted for defined items. These costs will be applied
against this allowance. Any costs in excess of the allowance with be paid for by Owner Change
Order.

22) All 3" Party testing shall be provided by the Awarding Authority.

23) Non-trade Bid Alternates 2 and 3 will be held at their current values until September 1%,
2024.The amounts have been accepted and included within the GMP. If they are not executed
and directed to move forward at that time, the respective trades and WTR will be allowed to
review and resubmit the respective pricing associated with these alternates.

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 27 of 31



ATTACHMENT A

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal Cost of Work Backup

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 28 of 31



¥202/91/S

dnyoeg J40M 40 1500 dIND - v Aluawydeny

UCIHPPY pue uoieaousy Alelqr] salg JahAmes

1 a%ed
00°0S T 1IN (39315 S1SI0f 9215 00 0z SO
gex ojeledas paizA0d
T 11V Ino (jnd pue 100 V1Y 1sutede 3|1oucody 0008 z N 5235 9235 [BImANIS 002t 50
qe) ajesedas u) pasanodf
T 11¥ 10 |jnd pue T00 V.14 15UlESe ajpuoday 00'0$ T 1N [EEXIN 19918 |ednionag Q0TI S0
00'¥89°065'T$ 4 AN {2315 19915 |eannas| - 00 2T S0
qe) 3jeedas uj passaod| e
T 1y N0 ind pue T0 YLy 1suieSe a|puoay| 000°92T .»m. 00'0S z oL |BIBA OSIN 9S4 si_lvo IsIN 100050
qe} ajesedas ug paIInoa N TP .
T 1 100 |jnd pue T0o 1y 15uIeSe 3jouodsy | 00'000°5¢T ﬁm . 00°0$ T 21 1BIBIN ISIN €54 SIEI9N dSIN TO 00 S0
i [ ! 0000009015 00°702'326% [4 oL [EETERT 454 SIBIBN OSINY| - T0 00 S0
2l 00°0% 000$
00'0% 00°05 T oL Aruosewy Suun Auose 33310u0) 007 0
00'0$ 0008 T oL Aiuosepy AJuoselq wun| 00 0Z v0
- 00000006t 00'968'L6€ 'S 1 aL Aluosely 854 Auosen| 1000 0
00°0$ 0005 Z IN
00°0$ 00'0$ z IN anLredied/sey WIWARBPUN TUBWD) DnedpAH| 9T ¥5 €0
qe} ajesedas
131 300 nd pue T00 vLY 15ulede aucIRY 00°05 z IN 232.40u0) 21240U0) B0e|4-Ul-ISED| 00 OF €0
qe) aesedas Ui palancd
L1V 10 Ind pUE 00 YLy I5UIESe Sliauoasy 0005 T IN 832.9u0D 21245U0D 308|d-UIFISED| 00 OF €0
qel a1eaedas u| pataaod L
1 11w 3ne |nd pue Tog Y1y 1sUIRSe aju0dsYy 00'9LL°£92'CS {4 AN 91343u0) 83843uU0) 3de|d-ul-}se) 00 0¢ €0
OOOm T IN 2]al3U0) JUILLII2I0JUIBY BIDIOUOD) 0007 £0
00'0% 4 IN
SBAUBMO||B ADY SB SPUNy JO ddueleq Atled 00°2L0°987% Z AN oulsqg SIILTLN ANY SONIATINE 40 NOLLITOW3a 000z 20
| p) 00°0$ 00°0% 1IN
0% 2 00'F9E‘ELS 00'v9E°eLS 4 AN SdN¥D0W| 000000
0$ 2 00'0% 00'0$ < 1IN Q3AEHILNIAINN 00 00 Q0
SN|EA T JUBWPUIWY JO UD(IR|IDU0DaY (€6L'SLS$} o] Q0'E6L'SLS 00'0$ [ u0{3e(12u0d3y T JUaWpUaWY
2N[EA T JUSWIPUILLY JO UOIR|IDUOIBY €61°SLS ) {00°€6£'SLS) 00'0$ T UOIIR|1IL0IBY T IUBWIPUIWIY
SW3LI H¥OM 40 150D
0s J 0005 00'0$ I 10 ¥9/29 43410
0s 0090£'9£2$ 00°90£°9£T5 z 10 49/29 PUN4 d'8d IPesL-UON/IQS
0% 00'7TT'€99'1S 00'veT'ES9TS [ 10 49/29 SuaWalIiNbay (e43ul9
03 00°'SEQ'TLT'ES 00'SE0'TLT'ES [4 10 49/39 suonipuo) |eiausy
SLNIWIHINDIY TvHINID ANY SNOILIANOD TvYINID
T Jd uolialg €4 puUawy uodauyg
T Od ucdalg TH# PU2WYy uddalg
T Jd uoJaLg T4 pUBWY UOIBIY
0$ 00°0T6'b2TS 00'0T6'%2TS 0 Jd aseq JUNowy 10B13UO) 3SEQ
SLNIWANIWY NOILINYLSNODIHC Pue LOWYINOD ISVE
sda1g 1xaN / sjuawwo) / syaeway eyaq . JWIEN JOJIBIIUO) RS 1s8png # pwy dig awepn adexyreq awey cads uoR23s Jads
JUBWPUIWY JO WD | |os3u0) adexded pig ;
132ys dn-yoeq YI10An JO 350D [esadoad 3L WNWIXEA PSIUEIEND - Y JUBWYDIENY
papiemy/|euld = 4 ‘pig Mo = g 18818 = | 'AJBUILIRIY = 4 128pNg (0430 = D) %

v20Z/9T/S

x3|dwio) |edidiuniy uoId|ppIAl




¥20T/9T/S

dnyaeg JIoM JO 1503 dIND - ¥ AJuawiyelly

uoINPPY PUE UOIIRADUIY AlRJ

29.4 IaAmes

Z 38ed
{3 [ 2] 0005 | 00°0$ £ AN SMOPUIM 5400Q POOM PE|D WnUWNlY| €7 vT 80
000 00°0% z IN H4a 51000 POOM Ysnid| 9T ¥T 80
OTRO 005, | 00'26v'8L93 z IN H4Q saulesd g sJooqa || €T TT 80
0% 00os 0008 T IN duize|o g sse|o sjuawalnbay pig qns paj4 Buize|n puesse| 80 00 80
apJal-uou oy pasueyd|  (paoess) [E (vigv) 198iet 1] 00 S65'65(S 00'569°20Z$ z 1N Bujze|p B ssen 454 Buize|o|  zZ0 0080
0s 2 00°'0% 00'0$
0% ) 00'0$ 00'0% T oL J0M sueeas| 00760
as 2 00'0$ 00'0% T 1IN llemAia suiddoig aiid| Q0 ¥8 L0
0$ b} 00'0$ 00'0$ T oL duyooy sianed Jooy| 007/ L0
0% ) 00°0% 00°0% 1 b1} Buiyooy spien mous| €52 £0
0% b 00'0% 00°0$ T oL Suyooy wii] g Bulyseld |eI2N 393Ys| 0079 L0
0$ ) 0003 0008 T o1} dujjoay Buljooy auesquIBN DA|  ET 15 LO
0% ) 00°0% 00°0S T AN Buipis 7g ssnuL Buipis uawa) Jaquy| 9y 9y LO
E=ai 00'988'ST$ T IN dMIN sjaued flem [e3@N| €T 2y 20
0$ ] 0005 00°0$ T ol Suyooy duiyoay a|duiys ssejdsaquy Jeydsy| €1 1€ L0
0% p) 00°0% 00'0$ 1 oL Jaueg oty Siailled Jiy/s1apieidy Jodep| 0097 L0
0% ) 00'0% 000 1 AN Butpls 7 ssnuL sialueg Jayieapy| 00 ST L0
0s B} 00°'0% 00°0$ T iN llemAig weod Aeids| [0 TZ L0
] 00'0% 1 IN Auasey/|lemhig/aus uone|nsu| ansnody/ewsayl| 00 TZ L0
Auedwo2 Suiooidiaiem 03 Q) 00°886°E7S z 1N Sulyooidialepn JUaLWa) paljIpo JaWAjog €T 9T L0
0$ 2 00'0$ 000$ T b1l 2aM Suyoosddweg| 0091 L0
T Uy o ind pue SM.U.F“HHMA__MMMM n_yumhw““ | ooﬂnwwﬁw _ >m.:>wn_mu |_ gg.ﬁ&mﬂ 00°0% Fa a1 Suyooy S1uUBWAIINbaY pIg-gns pa(t4 Sulyse)d 1 uyooy 2000 L0
Ge1 ajesedas uj paianas onrrrges) Aemader) _ 0000T'LL8°2S 000% 1 o1 Suyooy sjuaWaJIinbay pig-qns paj4 Sulyseld g Suloo
T 3y Ino |ind pue 0o V1Y sulede ajpuoday P el | | ’ ’ ’ eI ' Suljoos| - 2000 £
~ 9£9°69¢S ~ Aemade; | 00'9€6'E6T°ES 4 oL duyooy sjuswalinbay pig-gns pajld dulyseld g 3uyooy| 2000 L0
_ limesees] || Hugooudmaemuconag | 000000585 | 00°ZIT'TLSS T o]} 2aM JInbay pig qns paji4 Juejess pue duyoosddweg| 1000 L0
0$ 000 000$
0$ 00'0% 00°0$ 1 N flemAig sjaued Jnsejd pazojuay ssejdagld| 00 #9 90
as 0005 00°0$ z AN Fomased/dies ysi suopedligey BuPenns pios| 91 19 90
as 000 T AN Buipis 1@ ssniL suonedlqes oiiseld| 0009 90
00'TZL'88ETS 4 AN yiomased/die) ysiuld Anuadied ysiuid| 0007 90
qe) ajesedss
£ 1Y 300 [Ind pue T00 w1 1suiede apucaay 00°0$ 4 1N Auipis g ssnay S35SNJL POOM| 00 6T 90
qe) ajesedss ul pasonco|
[ EAeTRIBUEH vy S Eseei5 o5y 00°0$ T IN Auipis g ssnuL 59s5n4L POOM| Q06T 90
WO 00'86T°€2CTS$ H 1N Buipis 1@ ssnuL sassnil poomy| Q06T 90
J 00'0% 000 1 AN Buipls g ssnig s|aued pajejnsu) [emionas| g0 2T %0
a$ ) 00°05 00°0$ T AN Buipis g ssnuL Anuadiej ydnoy| Q00T 90
05 p) 00°0% 00°0$ LN
as o) 0005 00°0% T oL Je3aiN 51N suopealiqed |eBW| 00 0S SO
0$ p) 00°0% 000$ T IN IlemAiq Buryieays g Buiuesd pnis (E19 JoUdX3| 00 Tt SO
as b} 00'0% 0'es T 1N [2215 A9 9915| 00 0E SO
sda15 1xaN / siuawwo) / syiewsy eyeq * Jwen 1oyesue) ey 18png #puwy | dio swen a9exoey awep dadg uonaas rads
JuswpusWY 10 dIWD jonuo) afexseqd pig y
133YS dn-yoeg 3Jopn J0 3507 |esodoad adlid WINWIXEAl padilesens) - ¢ Judwydeny
papiEMY/(RULY = 4 ‘pig MOT = 87 M1e8ie) = | TAJeulwlaud = d {198png [043U0) =) *

veoz/9t/s

x3jdwo) [ediunpy uola|ppIAl




v20e/91/9 dnyoeg 3I0p JO 350D dIND - ¥ AIUBWIYIRIY UOIMPPY PUE uoileAQUIY Alesql] 3214 J3Ames
¢ 28ed

00'£6£'563 z IN oTAd 5311055329y 13[101| 00 8Z OT
00'10£°T8S [ IN Jed ‘do suonfued 3qessdo|  gezeor
00'09%'ELS 4 IN a3eud|s adeusis| o0 ¥PIOT
00'0TL'92$ 4 AN at Alg savejing Aejdsiq jens) 00 1T 0T
0060t PrSS [4 IN 13307 4835/0T Alg saifeldads snosue|RIstAl| - 00 00 0T

0% b} 00°'05 00°0% T
0s 3 00'0$ 00°0% [ IN a1l /1edied/say SWIISAS |0J3U0D) uoISSIL JodeA JAJeM| 66 96 60
0% o] 0008 00°0$ 4 oL Bunuled 3jnpayas dunuied Jouaul| €2 16 60
0% o) 00°0% 00°0$ 4 o1 3uinuled 2INpayds Bunuied JolaIx3| €T T6 60
s 2 00°0$ 00°0% 4 oL 3unuleg Suijured 00 16 60
2 00°0$ T AN emAig uolie|nsu| [eansnody| 00 T8 60
ER 00°560°002$ z IN 1adsen anLisdied| 0T 8960
2 0l 00'260°STrS z IN Sun00[4 snoulsay Buool snouisay| €7 £9 60
0s 2 00'0$ 0003 T b1} Bulioo(d IN3|Yly 2IBYIAS| 99 59 60
0$ ) 00°0$ 00°0% T ol 8ulIaA0) Jie1s g Buuoaly Jaqany| 8T 9 60
o] p) 00°'0% 00°0% T oL $P1J0SSIDIY 1@ Bsed B|ISAY|  £1 59 60
[ b} 00°'0$ 00'0% 1 ol $131Un0) g BUL0O(f BUOIS| £ €9 6O
0% ) 00°'0% 00°0% T o1 SswiaisAs Juliie) |eansnody| 00 TS 60
J 00'0s T oL 2lwesa) - Bu 00 O€ 60

qel1 djesedss ul pasanod
T v Ino ||nd pue 1O yL1y 1suteSe a|puodsy 0008 L4 1IN pieog wnsd4o 006760
qe)} 2)esedas Ul palanod
1 1jv 10 j|nd pue 100 1Y sutese a1ouoday 00'0$ 1 N llemisg pieog wnsdio 0062 60
00'vT9€2T"vS z IN llemAiq pieog wnsdAs| 00 67 60
00'08 00°0$ 1 LN JiemAiq Bujweij (BIB [RNPNAS-UON| 9T 2T 60
MIIPYUM U MmaN| | ued3‘muyor _ 0000§'Skbs 00'9LE'90V$ 4 oL Sunuteq sjuBWalINbay pig-qns pald Bunuted| 60 00 60
) -  DO000LTES 00'CIY rLES 1 a1 siuawanbay pig-gns paji4 Bulioo|4 Ju 90 00 60
009619618 | 00'708VTES 1 oL 854 10v| €000 60
. Doev9eres 00'S6L'0TES 1 oL aL 19 NS pajl4 Juiiao4 3u0ls g deId) Bu 20 00 60
00°0$ 00'0%
00'0% 00°0% 1 oL JYAH SIUBA PUE SIAAROT |EINIBNYIIY| 00 06 8O
00°0% 00°0% 4 LN Juize|n 1 sse(o Suize|s g sse1v| 00 08 80
0008 00°0$ 4 IN H4Q alempleq Jooal 001480
00°0% 00°0% 4 IN dujze|9 1 sse|9 Alquiassy mopulp ssed ¥8| 67 95 80
00'925°920'1$ z LN SMOPUIM SMOPUIA POOA PeID Wnuiwnly| 00 25 80
05 3 ooas 00'0% 4 IN dujze|n g sse|o $100Q 1 JU0JJ31015 Wnulwny| €T vy 80
18quUIE} PUE BULIA J{OA MO| PpE Bﬂwwm 00'€T8PrES z N 100g HO $100Q peayiang |euoidas|  £1 9¢ 80
TOO VLY Isulede 3|12u0a3y 00°0% z IN dinb3 uonualaq 52)|qQUWassy awiel4 73 J00Q UaiUIAQ £9 v 80
TO0 VLY 3sulede ajauoday 00°0% 1 IN dinb3 uonualaq SAYqUUBSSY BUIBIY g JOOQ UOIIUBJ £9 ¥E 80
00'TZE'SSTS z LN dinb3 uoiualag 521quIassy aulel4 g 100Q UoNUAAA| €9 £ 80
00°TZLSTS z N 400Q YneA i00gnea| 65 bE 80
0% ) 00'0% 00°0% T IN 11emAig S|aued '3 54000 $5900%| 00 T 80
$dais weN / siuawwo) / Sueway el2q 5 BWEN JO1IeIIU0) «:wEu.h_m:,M“.%o awo _o._.:owwuwwvm.“_mumm - #pwy | dio swep a3eyded awep Jadsg uonpasg sadg

133ys dn-yoeg yiom 30 150D |esodoud DILd WNWIXEAL paajUEIEND - ¢ JUBWIYIEJY
papiemy/ieuld = 4 'pig mo7 = g7 1e8le) = | ‘AJeuiwljald = d 139png (013uc] = *

+20Z/9%t/S x3)dwo) jedpiuniy U013 PPN



¥Z0T/91/S

dmjoeg S0 JO 1503 dWD - ¥ AJUBWIYIENY

UOIIPPY PUE UOHEAOUDY AJRIqIT 3314 JBAMES

s ] 00°0% 00'0$
£59'90v$ B 07UBJ3Q YUM 00°0$ 00'E79'907$ 4 1IN el suswanoadwiyBn aell| 00 00 0€
00'€6¥°9T0TS 4 IN Juideaspue Bunueid| oy 06 zg
05 3 [ 00°0$ 4 AN duideaspuen S85SRID PUE SUMET|  OE 6 ZE
00'ET9°9rTS 4 AN Bulouad U U ueY)|  TEBTCE
[ 3 00°0$ 00°0$ 4 1IN duideaspuey sjuswancidw) ans| 00 8T Z€
0s$ 3 00°'0$ 0005 T AN Jlomans SBUPMBIA JuBWRAed| €T LT Z€
0s b} 00'0$ 00'0$ T IN 4035 SABMAALIQ ‘SY|EMBPIS ‘S131IN9 ‘SqunD| DD 9T ZE
[ J 0005 0003 z LN Suideaspuey siaaed WUN| 00 VT ZE
[ p] 00'0% 0003 1 1IN Aomalg duined sjqald| 9T 2T ZE
0% 2 00°0$ 00°0%
0$ ) 00°0$ 00°0% T LN 81310U0) sdunooy a0 19 1€
0% ) 00°0S 00'0$ 1 AN JH1omais $10UQ) UoKeIUBWIPAS puR UoISoI3| 00 ST TE
qe) 3jesedas u| PIBA0D
L3I 110 |Ind pue Too yLY 15utede aypucssy 00'0$ z IN Aomang Momypea| 00 €2 1€
qel aiesedss u| pIILA02
T 1Y 100 yind pue 100 VLY Isuiese ajouoday 000$ T 1IN J10Ma3ls lomyies Q0 €T 1E
00'vE6'7£8'LS z AN A10Mmajs Jomuyne3| Q0 Ez TE
05 00°'0$ 00°0% T AN HIomaUs duuespaus| 0001 1€
05 00°0% 00°0$
as 00'0% 00°0% 1 P11 [ea132313 sUOjEdUNWO]| 0000 (T
0% 00°0$ 00°0$
| [fogtapes) uiguY ‘f auAem | 0000005¢SS |  O0/ES'EC6vS 1 21 (221430313 1ex3313) 000097
0% 00'0$ 00'0%
[ 0005 0008 1 p1t JYAH ujelisay JWSISs pue |010ue) uoNRIgIA| b S0 EZ
i 66£955 wuewy g | “clbaaa.wmm.ﬂw 00'66£°018'S$ 1 L JVAH JVAH| 0000¢€Z
0% 00°0$ 00'0%
 B9LBETS huewyz | 00'000889°TS 00'69£'926'T$ T oL Bujquinid duiquinid|  00002T
0% 00°0$ 00°'0%
T€8'6875  ddonsny T 00 00Se065 00'TEE'682'TS 1 oL u0132330.4d 14 uolpalosd aid| 0000 T
0% 00°0$ 00'0$
0% 00°0% 00°'0$ T a1 101833 Jo1era3| ooz vl
JSppiq epedL TAUG|  [Hie e o] JHMAI9] CYol 00000595 00895 '6£€S T oL 103eAR)3 454 403en313] 1000 YT
0% 00°0% 00°0$ 4
00'296'66$ z IN sapeys SIpeYS Jajjoy Jous|| 00 HZ 7T
0% 3 on'0$ 00'05 2
0$ 2 00'0$ | 00'0% 4 IN YomaseJ/die) ysiuiy uawdinb3 Asojeiogen| 00 €5 1T
00°000052% C LN [sadoue)ddy g 821A135 poo4 @21A1a5 poad| 00 O£ 1T
00°'TL9'TFTS z LN | san|eads/aniaeg pood uswdinby g soueyddy| 00 Q€ TT
05 2 0005 00°0$ T IN dinb3 uonuajaq atempien Ajundas| 0z 6T TT
0% J 00'0$ 00°05 4
00'E8Y'SS 4 AN 0T A saljeads Aygyes | go oy OT
$daig IxaN / sjuawiwod / sHyseway ejlaq . AWEN 10)38J1U0) houly 38pna #pwy | dig awep adexyded awep 2ads uoe1323s 23ds
JUIWpUIWY 10 dND Jonuo) adexaed pig 4

193ys dn-yoeg Y10 JO 150) [eSadoiyd 82114 WNWIXEA] PAAJUBIEND -  JUBWYIENY

papiemy/jeuly = 4 'pig mo7 = g1 328ieL = ) ‘Aseuwijald = d 188png (043u0) =D

vzoz/9t/s z x3|dwio) jediuniy uolL|ppIA



v20z/91/S

dnyoeg 10/ 40 1500 dIND - ¥ Aluswydeny

UCIHPPY PUe UOIIEACUIY Alelqr] 9214 JaAmes

G 28ed
0003 00°0$ 00'0$ Q0'0$ [4
00°'0% 00°0S 00°0$ 00°0$ €
00 LLEPEE 0TS 00'LLE'VEE'DTS 00'ZrT'E66'7TS 00'6TS'28E'SES z WBWPURWY WD
(00°T€8°0E6°8TS) {00 TE8'0€6'81S) 00°759880°6€% 00'T28'£51°02$ 1 Saped)-UoN AjJold Z VLY + SPI @peJL T V1Y
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0T6%2TS 00°016'%2TS 0 1eIu0) Bseg
FPuY uonduIasag uswpuawy
{(12942) eypeq ANINANINY AS NMOQNYIHE
128png |0J1u0) . e
Wy UnLBRUA/{UNLEAC) 00°298'799'T$ 00'TZE'66TS 198pN4 |0UOD SNSIBA UNLIBAOSUNLIBPUN
9PS'EIP'TS 00°T25°698'55$ Q0 TL5'698°558 198png [043U0D
IPSEIV'TS 00'v0L 90Z'bSS 00°052'0£9°SSS 40/ 4O 150) [e10]
{005 %$) 00°005'7$ 0003 4 MOV (00425 Jog Burd1iys 30| Bupped dway otte |
(000°‘00Z8} 00'000°002$ 00'0$ z mo|ly SIUBMOJY [eJUIWOIAUT 61TL
(000°59$) 00'000'59$ 00'0$ z MO||¢ SU3BSAIOJUN WIV dshayqn|d 8TTL
159NH3Y JWAWWOD dW D Jad pappy {000's25) 00'000°5L$ 00'05 4 MollY $110S jgennsun LT
(000°05£9) 00°000°05€% 00°0$ 4 Mol J3amod U3LEWI3 104 sUolsiaald dwa | 9rTL
(000°G£$) 00'000°SLS 000 z M|l juawadeuelp weol STTL
{000'095) 00°000°09% 00°0% T mo|ly uoleu|pIoo) AN 1A pITL
(000°5£$) 00°000°52$ 00°0% 4 M|y mo||y {SaInbyWpe g 163U SGe|S) SUOIIPUOD JSIUIM 23310u0) £ITL
(000°00T$) 00°'000°0015 00°03 z mo||y Moy {MOUS pue 1501y ‘UONEARIXT) SUBLIPUDD JBIUIM HIOMBHS TITL
{000'585) 00°000°585 00'0% z Mol uonie|ess3 yjeydsy pinbn TITL
(000°055) 00'000°05% 00°0% z mo(ly UONEUIPI00) 3JempieH 1000 [3
(000°525) 00°000°52S 0005 z Mol sa8sey) Auedwo) Ayjan 60TL
(000°s£$) 00°000'548 00°0% Z Mol uoljeuipdoo) udisaq duiquinid R jediueydaiy 20TL
(000'59%) 00°000°59% 00'0% z mo|ly UOIeU(PJOTT S5T) 7R [331S |BLn)oNIIS 20T
(000°055) 00°000°05% 00°05 z Moy sWaY| uBisaq (e311199)3 90TL
(000°055) 00'000°05$ 00°0% 4 Mo|ly ji 23uemo|e Juiyaned Jooyy SOTL
(000°0¥5) 00°000°0t$ 0005 z Moy AOUEBMO||Y Wi dlyel ] LOasse YOTL
(000°0¥5) 00°000°0¢$ 00'0% 14 Moy SIUBWWO) Jamas Hog £0TL
(0000025) 00°000°00Z$ 0005 4 Mmo|ly DIUEMO|IY BWIIL WNiWaLg 20TL
(000'0€5) 00'000°0€$ 00'0$ 4 M|y Juiyoied ||ep Bululerdy Sunsixy 10TL
S3IUBMO||Y FIOM 3O 150D 00TL
0% 00°0$ 00'0% T AN A10mans i J93eMu0ls| 00 O €€
0% 00°0$ 00'0% T IN JHOMBNS ofesamas Ateliues| 00 0€ £
0s 00'0% 0005 T AN HIomaus SSNN 12JBM| 00 0T €€
unowy 393png
$da3§ 3N / sauswwo) / siueway ey3Q BWEN JO1oBIIUOD #pwy | dio awep adeydey awueN sadg uo1323s 28ds

JUBWIPUIWY IO WD

|onuo) afexyaed pig

paplemy/|euly = 4 pig Mo = g sl = | 'AJBUIWIEL = d 1380Ng |023U0D = 3|

v20z/ot/s

329YyS dn-yoeg Y10/ JO 3500 |esodoid 2o1d WNWIXBA PS3IUEIEND - Y JUBWIYOIENY

xajdwo) [ediduniy] uoaa|ppitAl




v207/91/

dnyaeg JJOM JO 1507 dINID - ¥ Aluawyeny

IPPY PUE UOIBAOUSY Aleiqr) 9314 JaAmes

g9 98eq
00°9¥S'E9Y'TS 00°9¥S5€9'TS 00'v0L'902°VS$ 00°052°0£9'5S$ w._<._.OH
00°0$ 000$ 00°0$ 0005 8
00°0$ 0005 000$ 00°0% L
0005 00°0$ 00'0$ 000% 9
a0'0s$ 00'0$ 00°0% 00'0$ )
sda3s IxaN / siuswwo) / siJeway ejRg JWeN J0IRIUO) MRORIY) ¥e3png gpwy | dip aweN sdexaeq awep 2adg uo11295 Jadg
BWpUBWY 10 WD | [onuo) ageyded pig -

papiemy/|euld = 4 {pig mo7= 91 1381e) = | ‘AeulRId = 4 138png (0au0D =3

veoz/9t/s

393yg dn-ydeg 3o 40 31500 [esododd 3D1id WNWIXeA pa3JueIent) - Y JUBWIYILNY

x3)dwo) [edpiunyy UoIPPIN



ATTACHMENT B

General Conditions

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 29 of 31




FORMD

SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT COSTS

CONSTRUCTION PHASE

o
.Duration AIIoc/:Jted Monthly Rate SEREUIS of

A. List of Project Management Staff with Titles jn Months Time Values
Jonathan Rich, Principal-in-Charge 25.00 10% $28,000 Included in Fee
Steve Taylor, Project Executive 23.00 20% $22,000 $101,200.00
Tom Hood, Senior Project Manager 23.00 50% $19,000 $218,500.00
Matt Gustin, Project Manager 25.00 100% $17,000 $425,000.00
Justice Reardon, Assistant Project Manager 25.00 100% $12,000 $300,000.00
Toni Cavalini, Scheduling Director 23.00 15% $17,000 $58,650.00
Subtotal A: PM Staff $1,103,350.00

o
.Duration Allofated Monthly Rate Schedule of

B. List of Field Staff with Titles in Months Time Salues
John Rich, General Superintendent 21.00 20% $25,000 $105,000.00
Anthony Zanelli, Lead Superintendent 21.00 100% $20,000 $420,000.00
Dennis Pacitti, Assistant Superintendent/On-Site Safety 21.00 100% $17,000 $357,000.00
John Burrows, MEP/BIM/VDC Manager 25.00 40% $15,000 $150,000.00
Brett Giordano, Project Engineer/On-Site QC 23.00 100% $12,000 $276,000.00
Aaron Calkins, Senior Safety Manager 21.00 15% $16,000 $50,400.00
Michael Michaud, Quality Control Director 21.00 15% $16,000 $50,400.00
Subtotal B: Field Staff $1,408,800.00

RFP for CM-at-Risk Services
Middleton Municipal Complex

W.T. Rich Company

May 16th, 2024
Page 1 of 5



FORM D (CONTINUED)
SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT COSTS

CONSTRUCTION PHASE
Duration % Schedule of
. Allocated | Monthly Rate
C. List of Clerical Staff with Titles inMohthsl] o Values
Bridgette Petillo, Contracts and Project Admin 23.00 15% $9,500 $32,775.00
Michael Young, Accounting 23.00 10% $16,000 $36,800.00
Paula Guity, DEI Manager 23.00 10% $12,000 $27,600.00
Subtotal C: Clerical Staff $97,175.00
::t:;é Project Estimate* Sd\‘,e;::: of
D. Estimated Insurance Costs and CM Bond Costs (Please Iltemize) ’
Performance and Payment Bond $7.50 $48,000,000 $360,000.00
General Liability $5.00 $48,000,000 $240,000.00
Builder's Risk $0.00 $48,000,000 $0.00
Vehicle Liability $0.60 $48,000,000 $28,800.00
Pollution Liability $0.70 $48,000,000 $33,600.00
Workers Compensation -- Incl'dw/Ato C
Umbrella Coverage -- Incl'd w/ GL
Professional Liability $0.70 $48,000,000 $33,600.00
Subtotal D: Insurance Costs $696,000.00

*Estimated values are for comparison purposes only. Actual costs will be paid to the CM based on
receipts for insurance and bonding companies. (Refer to W.T. Rich Pricing Notes.)

RFP for CM-at-Risk Services
Middleton Municipal Complex

W.T. Rich Company

May 16th, 2024
Page 2 of 5



FORM D (CONTINUED)

SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT COSTS:

CONSTRUCTION PHASE

Fill in amounts for all items even if the work is to be subcontracted unless included in Sections A, B, C or D above

- fhe . Monthly Rate Schedule of
E. Additional General Conditions Categories Schedule of Values Values
Construction Manager Field Office Trailers $3,870.00 $83,600.00
CM Telephone, Internet and Site Communications $420.00 $9,075.00
CM Field Office Supplies, Equipment & Furniture $625.00 $13,500.00
Owners Field Office Trailers $1,148.00 $24,800.00
Owners Telephone, Internet and Site Communications $411.00 $8,875.00
Owners Field Office Supplies, Equipment & Furniture $944.00 $20,400.00
Cleaning of CM and Owners Field Office Trailers $870.00 $18,800.00
Postage, Shipping and Courier Services $292.00 $6,300.00
Reprographics $359.00 $7,750.00
Management of Plans & Specifications n/a| Included w/A&B
Computer IT Time/Software (field office) $361.00 $7,800.00
Project Vehicles/Maintenance $972.00 $21,000.00
Travel Expenses $486.00 $10,500.00
Rental Costs of Machinery and Equipment $1,750.00 $37,800.00
Storage Trailers and Containers $292.00 $6,300.00
Job Site Safety & Protection n/a Included w/B
Safety Manager & Labor n/a Included w/B
Safety Materials $632.00 $13,650.00
Project and Site Traffic Signage $463.00 $10,000.00
Debris Removal and Dumpsters $3,299.00 $71,250.00
Rodent and Pest Control $218.00 $4,700.00
Building Layout Control and Engineering n/a $54,000.00
Record Drawings $231.00 $5,000.00
Project Photos n/a Included w/B
Interim Air Quality Management & Readings $192.00 $4,150.00
Interim and Final Cleaning for Site and Building $2,500.00 $96,670.00
Contaminated Soil Removal Supervision of Work n/al Included w/A&B
ACM & Hazardous Material Abatement Supervision n/a| Included w/A&B
Temporary Toilet Rental and Services $1,219.00 $26,320.00
Other - list if any (Discount/Rounding) n/a ($530.00)
Subtotal E: Additional GC's: $21,554.00 $561,710.00
|ETAL GENERAL CONDITIONS (SUM A thru E) = $3,867,035.oo]
Remove Insurance and Bonds ($696,000.00)
General Conditions without Insurance and Bonds $3,171,035.00

RFP for CM-at-Risk Services
Middleton Municipal Complex

W.T. Rich Company

May 16th, 2024
Page 3 of 5



FORM D Continued
SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT COSTS:
CONSTRUCTION PHASE

*If a CM proposes to use laborers or carpenters (their own forces} on site, the CM is to provide a breakdown of the
actual cost of the laborer and carpenter and any mark-ups in the following format (Include on separate sheet, a

detailed breakdown of mark-ups and burden):

Laborer (non-Union)

Wages $62.90
Benefits $13.50
Insurance, Taxes and Burden $17.50
Total Proposed Rate $93.90

Add §3.00 for Labor Foreman

Carpenter (Union)

Wages $54.62
Benefits $34.35
Insurance, Taxes and Burden $24.25
Total Proposed Rate $113.22

Add 55.00 for Carpenter Foreman

All rates are as of March 2023. Rates do not include any applicable overhead and profit.

RFP for CM-at-Risk Services W.T. Rich Company May 16th, 2024
Middleton Municipal Complex Page 4 of 5



FORM D {Continued)
SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT COSTS:
CONSTRUCTION PHASE

Estimated Value Remarks
Cost of Work Categories
Permitting $3,500 Permits waived. Admin costs only
Temporary Water Service and Distribution $8,200 WTR Estimate
Temporary Water Consumed $10,500 $500 / month
Temporary Electric Power Service $30,000 Range $15K to $50K
Temporary Electric Consumed (added by WT Rich) $56,790 $0.90 per GSF
Temporary Heating System $35,000 1 Season
Temporary Heating Fuel Consumed $47,325 $.75/GSF (1 season)
Emergency Diesel Generator Fuel Consumed $2,000 WTR Estimate
Temporary Barriers $26,800 WTR Estimate
Site Enclosure Fences and Gates $48,000 4,000 LF @ $12 / LF
Temporary Walkways $5,000 Non-occupied, fully contained site
Temporary Paving $5,000 Non-occupied, fully contained site
Security Enclosures $29,000 Sub trailers/Storage
Police Details $15,000 200 hours @ $75 each
Fire Watch Details $30,000 400 hours @ $75 each
Temporary Lighting $44,170 $0.70 / GSF
Temporary Fire Protection $5,600 WTR Estimate
Watchman and Site Security $19,800 Sec. Cameras, Detectors, Lighting
Staging and Hoisting $26,000 Misc. only. Subs carry their own
Temporary Stairs $40,000 Two separate stair towers (2 stories)
Dust Control $10,000 Subs carry their own
Winter Conditions $40,000 ORSHARIES i&?:c')'nf:’yr Fns, Slabs,
Weather Protection 537,860 $0.60 per GSF
Interim Air Quality Management & Readings S0 Duplicate. Carried in E above
Permanent Utility Costs $40,000 Highly var. Range $20K to $80K
Sub-Contractor Insurance and Bonds $576,000 Carried by subs. ~1.5% of COW
Dewatering Including Contamination Treatment $20,000 sE;;iP t?at; ;(fgrocn::;::i-r::;;iejri:i
Sub-Contractors (Material, Equipment and Labor) All Direct Costs
Snow removal $14,400 1+ Seasons, large site
RFP for CM-at-Risk Services W.T. Rich Company May 16th, 2024

Middleton Municipal Complex Page 5of 5



ATTACHMENT C

General Requirements

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 30 of 31




¥eoz/9t/s S1uawWRInbay |esdusn - g Juswiydeny xa|dwo) |eddiuniy UCIB|PPIA
T 28eyq

00'v68°L0TS S9'TS 459 06€'S9 saunsojoug Aresodwa], £LE0
in) g 8Fesan0) 23S Joy ALN/I01ED 00'00Z°£6S 00°005°vS aw zz Juawdinbyg pue Auiyseq Jo sjs07) [RIUNY Z110
|esodoud asud Ho U papnjau| papnpu| 0005 "} Fuiwea|) [eur] pue jenue)sqng [530)
|esodoud asud 79 u papnjau| papnjou| 000% o) [o1U0)) suga( pue Swuea]) ApPem 0110
*sanod ges 312.0uad toj desm Bulp(ing oy mojaq aag M|y 00°000'52% 00°000°52$ 3] T (swar Joyjeam puey pue BUIRAOUS PUBH) SUOLIPUOY) JBJUIA L00L
00"000°ZES 00°0002€$ s1 T uoteaj0ag 911 Aresodwag,
[E214303]2 43pUN B1RWIISS MO Ul 1502 Ae) D133 A9 00°0% 0 BunySr pue remog dwa ], - 2upsly Aresodwa ]
{Atessaosu se Buiisay Joy 4 < SILT IOTRIoMS. souc Kouod
X IWNSBO u; U
asn pue %00T qUEL 1}) [BILII3[3 J3PUN B1EWIISA MDD Ul 1500 AJED) pLov3se 0003 0 P O [end o1eieuan [osalq fouomiourg

AOS FIOMSBYS Ul SPNjau| J4OM BUS A 00°0% 0 JRWITRURY JjemulI0lg pue sFeutel] Arelodwo,
DVAH wiad Jo ucieanoe o) Jolid saysiuy 104 Moy 00'TTT'29% S6°05 4S9 06€69 [oRued Aypruny Aresodura], 9004
Mojly 00'97ST6$ or'tS ER] 06£°S9 InsOauy 03 JOLd WASAS Jedl] Arerodwa], S00L
mofly 00°£47'88% SE'TS 459 06€'59 uondwnsuoy) [auy - jeay Aresodws P00L
Mo||y 00°08082$ 00°00€°TS ow [44 pawinsue 1jep Aresodwag, £00L
MOS JIomals ul epnjou| FIOM 31IS Ag Q008 0 uoyNQIISI pue 30IAISS Jamag 79 Jejep Aretodura] L1010
[e211303]3 pue a3S AqQ MO AlRpUODRS JO UoIsUaIXe AJesodwa) mo||y 00'000°52% 00°000'52$ $] T sasuadxyg 2SIl 201Al0G oLnoafy Areodwa ] 2004
Moy 00'9¥5'16$ or'TS 459 06€°59 uopdwinsuoy samog oups(g Aresodus], 1004

o
i d i e
51503 SdueUBUIEW pUE UOoRE20}R) pajedidljueun 00°000'S¥S 00°000°5¥$ s t £q - SUOTROO[OT pUE OUBUBIUIEIU B3UR] UONOTLSUC)) s1atireq Arerodwa], soto
*$3502 UD(3EI0[3. PUB 3oURUSIUIRW A . (s91eD) pue saoudg
3pn(au| jiom jo adods uonesedaud 3y Ul Aliea pue adods aulyag jromsusia 0008 0 2INSCIOU 231G / SAPeOIIRE [UB 30US] UONONIISUG))) Statireq Areiodwa] sote
{esodoud as1id D5 ul papnpou| papn|au) 00'0% 0 satjddng osipy 29 §]00], [[ewg 010
fesedo.d aud 39 PapnaY) 00°0$ 0 uoEDIILIa A UOISUBWI( pue |onuo) Supping Jnoke pue Leaing Z010
Ul PapN[pUL st YAIYm ‘WD Ag i jo13uod Sulpiing “InoAej umo Adied sqng : : ’ : ..
— e AEg X X §1500 paje[al pwiad pue Junjrie,
X ¥ I
404 Junouwe Jlews Aed *A3D 943 AQ paAIeM q 0} BJe sl 00'000°5$ 00°000's$ $1 T 1590 perels P et d 5000
syieway MO||v 10 S junowy |eyo) aIley un >u~u uondunsag POy 150D ALM

siuawauinbay [esduay - J Juswiyoeny
x3|dwo) |edpiuniy uola|ppIN



¥20z/91/s
7 98eyq

sjuawaainbay [BJBUID - g JUBWIYIENY

xa|dwon jedidiunip UoIa|PPIA

speo. dws) oy uejd sa)3s180]

J}JOM BUS Ag 00'0% 0 SBIIE UMOpAR[ PUB SARMPEROI UOTONISU0D Aretodwa ],
3NS 294D oM 3US 03 Sutaed dwe) pajedisiue / umouy fje uissy ' .
O3S 01 Suined dwia) paredidnue / umouy (e udissy NJOA 2US Ag 00°0% 0 Fuiaed Lresodwa],
MOS HJomaug ul apnjauy JIOM BUS Ag 000% 0 skemsfjem paianoo / sjjes Kresodwa ]
paiinbau jop paJinbay 10N 00°0% 0 JuswaBeuR put ucheuswe|dus] [IOD
uolzeInp 108foud Joy BWI3 %G/ 1B J3I0qRT AWNSSY 00'008°977$ 00°005'0T$ ow T noddns Joge| jessusn
uopeinp 339(01d 10y Wi %G 1B uewalo4 die) awnssy 00°099°2TES 00'SLY'PTS owl 44 yodduns Anuadres |eleusgn
“1030213U00G NS ||eMAIp 2y}
Aq ase sBuljtes dws ] "(19mo) J1e3s PloyeDs) SJIBYs $53488 4oy ‘Buipiniq Mmo||y 00°000°06$ 00°000°06% s1 1 s|rey pue siielg Areledway, 800L
4283 38 T ‘SIAMO] J1els J01I91X3 dWa) 4O S385 OM] JO) 3OUBMO||Y
JuswiaBeueuy o33 f ‘s ¥ Y 013107y 38T, 0J1UO)) 2510
|[B12A0 pUE YIOM IAID "ISILU JOJ $] PRLIIED JUNOWIY "SqNS Aq S| AJlofe 00'000°5%5 00°000°57$ 51 ! ! D¥nd/ 9 SION 0510
|esodoud a31d 395 Ul papnou| papniau| 00°0% 0 SIBUIRIUOY) PUE S19[1el ] afelo)g Sy10
|esodoud a3ud 39 w) papn)au| papniou| 0008 0 Jonuo) Auend) Iry 100puf 9€10
{esodoud 231d 70 Ul papnau) papnpau| 00°0$ ) sireday 29 soueUSIUTRYY / SA[OIYIA 09 loag 1€10
|esodoud sopd 55 Ul papnfau) PapN|RY] 00°0$ 0 sFeuBis Alayes pue uononysuo)) 6210
lesodoud 3a1d 55 Ul papn|au| papnoul 00'0% 0 (ud1g 103019) uoneaynuap] 102l01q 810
|esodoud aa1d 5o ul papnpy] papnpu) 0005 o] [esodsi(] pue 901A13g ‘[euey 12|10, Areroduso], 1210
{esodoud aa1d J9 ul papn)uj papnpuj 00°0$ a [0uoy) 159 J puE Juapoy £210
“aoedsuad az(1n (im Y LM ‘esodosd aauud D5 up papnpauy papnpuy 00°0$ o] sojoyg 1osforg 7Z10
{esodoud asd DD ul papn(ay| papnoyj 00'0% a aeisog/Fuiddiyg pue vononpordsy Sunuirg 1210
{mo)2q pariied) Anuadied [esauad D Ag iom asI sapeJ Ag 00'0% ) sansopoug Arerodway / dnojoor Aresodwa, sainsopoug Aunoeg 0zZ10
doud soud . Sunresyo ‘ssrddns yuswdinbe 201530 i
[5gaciaId 301d 35 Ul psprful PapniUl 00'0% 0 “a01at0s 2uoyda(e) Juipnpout dnjog pue Jspiei], 20150 Arelodwa I JsusmQ 6110
Sunrea)a pue sarjddug 20130 WD pue (S/euoyd pue
{esodoad aopd 5 ul papnjoul papnjou; 00°0$ 0 eremyos ‘azemprey 1ndwos Fuipnjour) wewdinby pue amyng 201330 8110
TND 12Y)(Q) SUOHIPUOY) [esdual) (INY SI2[1e1] 20130 Aretodwo], yory 1m
siisdwnp JIsYy) UMO 01 13)00J ‘Uosew ‘a32iauod ‘Uoijowsq papnpu} 00°0$ 0 sszrsdungg L1110
|esodo.d a14d 59 Ul papnjoul papnjou| Q0°0$ o] (Auo speLiely) uonosioi 73 Majeg ang qof 9010
way MOD 00°0% 0 Suigoreq pue Fuiynyy ¥L10
Syteway MO||y J0 § unowy |exot ajey Hun Ad :O_uﬂ_._umwn_ apo) 150D LM

sjuawalinbay |eaduay - ) Juawydelly
xa|dwo) jedidiuniy uola|ppIN




¥Z0zZ/91/s sluawWalNbay jessuan - g Juawyaeny x2jdwao) |edniuniy U013 |PPIA
€ 28ey

00'VZT'€S9'TS sjuawalinbay |e4dua9 TVLOL
0 000% s1 0
1010e13U0D) 3pet] Sulaoy Ag 13400y Ag 00°0% a uonoayoid [fey Jooy
00°000°£1% 00°000°4TS s T Swial] [elucalar)
Ayunosg a)s 89S papnjaul 00°0% Q 9014195 FuNUBANS 03PIA / WEIQD MY
30UBMO||Y MED 335 molly 00'0% 00°0$ $1 1 20UBMO|| Y [BIUSLIOIIALE
Q JI0M BUS Ag 00°0% 0 uoydajeld qruys pue saiy,
0 00°000°52% 00°000'52$ s T P L1 SN JO 559008 JO aguBUSjUIRIA
{(M10m mopuim yum Sunsa) mopuim “5-a) A on & boyr 3 o00d
X b’ U
w33l Y10Mm Jo 1500 B|gealidde ay] u| 53533 Yans Aue Jo 3503 3y} apn|du| fEpen g 0003 0 S4ITEIACY Aq paInbay SuRsa] pue uoloadsu]
0 00°000°5Z$ 00000'5Z$ S T SOUBURAUIBIA S100( Arerodwio],
jesodoad 2214d 59 Ul papnjou) papnfau) 000% 0 sjing sy
"SUORIPUOY J3UIM Bulinp o o, -
sAem ss300e pue sAempeod Jo Bulpues Jo/pue J(es 1oy S| BIUBMO|(Y Mol 00'000°¢€3 00'000°EES s1 T UHIPS pUP PUBS 2S ctoL
‘J13}BM pajeulweIuos Aue aledisliue 10U op A papniax3 a0'0$ 0 UOHBUIWEIUOY) 0] JUaUIRaL1], 7 2312Y0SIp 9)IS-JJQ ‘Sullajemac]
0 JIOM 2MS Ag a0'0$ 0 UGHEBUIWIRIBO,) ON] / 28IBUoSIp apis-u() :Fuusyema(]
0 Jaumo Ag 00°0$ 0 531500 A1) JusURWID
motyy 00°000°5PS 00°000'57$ T snod qe[s souism 105 Sutpying deipy 110t
0 00°000°0V$ 00°000°0%$ S1 T S0UQUIBIUIBIA] MOPUTAY (UOI0230.d Jayedpy
0 sapen Ag 00°0% 0 Sunsioy pue SuiFeig
“AJuo UOKA9IAP UOISNIIU| PUB WEI3M “pJend AJIndas oy 00°000°TPS 00°000 1% s T $901A19G AJLIN0SG UG
Papaau JI sjieyap o
A A 5 u
a4 BujuIBWIS1 104 S| SIRUMO||Y JOM I3} 0§ S|IEISP 311 SUMOD D] i 00°0000E$ 00'000°0€$ S 1 {pauniogun) yore a1t o10L
s2pes) aMadsal Ag sapeJi Ag 00'0$ o) (9010p(50M UMO) OIEAR 210
*(81240u0)
9'|} Al1es 03 3snyad 18Y) SONS PUEB JIOM ISIL JOJ IIUBMO||Y "A[UQ Yiom Mo||y 00°000'9Z$ 00°000'v2$ s1 1 S[1BJ3(] 321[0d 6001
131 104 §{1B38( 32](0d PApN|oUl By }4om331S *sqns Aq s1 Alalepy
Sylewy MO||y 10 §1 unNowy |eyot ajey Ao uondiusaq apo)) 150D WIM

siuswatinbay jessuag - J Juswydreny
x9|dwo) {edunpyy uoI3|PPIN




ATTACHMENT D

Project Schedule

Middleton Municipal Complex, Middleton, MA May 16%, 2024
Amendment No. 02 to the Owner-Construction Manager Agreement — GMP Page 31 of 31



ANYSNDOD HOIH " L°AN

513
Aew sion2 BUIPUNOY *SUOISSILIO 10 510143 10} Pawnsse st Ajqei|

1esnus
ON "Ep 0} dn pue ajeindoe si to&wh SIY) 3UNSUB 0} USHE] UIaq PaueIS ION ,mmw_mohn_ ulusy(l4 JaumgQ >:>=u< LM (MBIA >LNEE_|_M [ mmw‘_mc‘_n_ I
sey uonnedaid A1aa3 ‘saniane sssiBoid Uy uo Bjep 0} BIUBWIOLB mw —H.—.>—“.U< ——< pZ-ReN-pl iB1eq JusLIND §Z-1RN-10 B1eQ B1ed
pue 2dA} Buuiea Ajlagae uodn paseq ase suonalold 3y (JLON =T e 9Z-idy-~8Z @1eq YSlUld $7-18N-LQ 2}ed }elS SOUOISIIIN @ waun) [
i 1 ~ AiGatsy MopuIM N L SSeq| JURISISaY J3UNG 6L9GB0 | ed WeISISaY 18lING 619580
SMOPUIM POOM, PE[D-WNUILINGY 00ZSBO STHV-52 | wzunepl Fsiz | Psiz T SAOpUIN poo pRD-WMUILINY DOZSED | M PED-nulimy 002580
$100(] PUE SHUCLRIOIS PBLUEIY WNUILINGY SLEPRA SZ-idy-57 H pr-uni-pL = PSiZ PSiZ slooQ pue s)u0lRI0)S qumi WNUIIN|Y €1 £780 qu.Em E::.E:dem_.wvmo
= ; 51000 PEAUISAG (UOHISS 19580 | */E3YIAQ [ELONDDS EL95A0
SBHOWISSY JUTRI4 PUR $100(] LORUIR] £9¥E80 e sivoguonuAag WQVMQO
1000 URCA 667530 om——— vz | prhencLl oL oL = 100G HNeA 65580 1000 HeN 65580
w 5 — S{alied pUE S100(] S5307Y (0L E80 — T pUR 5100 S5O0V 001 E80
S100Q POOM PR3 WNUIWNIY 5Z1L60 et vovosz | el I POS PU6 SIOB( POOM PEID WNUIWINY EZVLE0 | **'OM PRI WHUHLINGY 2180
10001 POOM YSN{J 91150 u— VZP00F | vEU-bl | pse Psa B = SI000 POOM USNi 9Ly| 80 | 54000 POOM USNL 9LyLBO
SBWeL PUB S100(] |I9SN MO(IOH SLILE0 nmuenamememe |w~.UO.om It vZ-unpL pPss S P&6 ! SAILL| pLe 5100(] [RIBN MOROH SLELBO | 4000 (I8N ;E_cm ELLLBD
SMOPULM PUE 51000 Sz-1dy-57 pZ-AeiN-20 | Po¥Z ze«a SMOPULM, PUE S100(] SHOPULM pUE s100(]
T = SJRIEsS JUIOL 0OZELO SIE[R3S WO 0OTOL0
= = Buiddoss 2113 00¥8LO Buiddoig aigd OpELO
S[BISBp3d PUR S.BARY JOOY OOOP@ "*'ad PUR S13ARd JOooY ngb.m
SPIBNG MOUS §57£/0 I  Sziso | vnrog POEL posL o SpIRND MOUS §57LL0 | SpIeND MOUS §SZLLO
W] puk ButyselJ (33 1934S 00ZOLO eSS . ¥ZW0-L0 | vzRenco | P90l pooL wiLy pue Builsel{ (e3¢ 1994S 007940 | * “IUSELd @13 1994S ODZILO
= Buijooy SUBIQWBIN DA §ZYSLO | 0N FURKIWISIN IAD EZYELO
1S W3S 42QM SPIVLO STRNET | vZRenLL oLz | PoLZ BUIPISIUBLISD Jaqtd 9ropL0 | BUIPIS WeWAT 1301 9y9VLO
53(8UIYS WEUCSY SISO mmm— va.y.a.of ; Irww.iséo ﬁ POL P sefAulys yeydsy gL LELO SRBUIYS Heydey S LLELO
i SIallieg kY S15piesg Jodep 009ZL0 | IV Sizpimiay soden 009740
SIRLIEG 1BYIEAM 00S2L0 mmm— T3yt vZ-RRN-Z0 POL oL SiBLIIRg JOY1EBM, 0OSZLO SI3ldeq 1UeaMm 00SZLO
=  UOemSLY 2SND3Y [BULOYL 0DLZLO | “19WSNODY [Pt 00LZAD
BUNOOId 2YeM WUBWAD PEYIPOW 1BWAIOG FI9140 e | veBnveer | veRewzo | per T pok BuyooidialeM JsLIGD PAPOIN 1BUWAId SLLLO | PAUPOW JSWAE §L91L0
Buyooidduieq 0O9LLO —— - veBweal | veRenco PoL 4’ PoL Suyaodchueq 0O9LLD Buyoouddwed 0o9LLD
SUDRIBI0IG DINSIOW PUE [BUWIDY | SZ-1BN-BZ _ ve-fen-zo PLZZ { PLZZ SUOHI)04d JUMISION PUB [BULIBY | *3830.d UMISIOW PUB [BULIBY |
suoiedLIgR] 328LNS PIIOS 911990 m—— YZ-AON-L vZunp-yi pSoL PSOL SUOJIEILIRS BIRIING PYOS 911990 | “Uged 93e/in5 P95 911990
SUONEdLGES F0Seld 000990 m—————- PTH04L YZ-RRPLL pooL P90l SUOROHTES eI 000990 | SUOREIIGR] SEId 000990
Anuadied ysiuld 000790 e— RzANEL | pzeungnn PSOL PSOL — .!aemu YSILI 000Z90 | Anuadied ysiud 000290
s{puURd PaleNSU| AlRINONIS 00ZI90 mmem PEUNg-L7 Z-AepN-Z0 Pog Pos s[pued pRIEinsi >=mimum.mm.mo..mlﬁmm.l. y.w__h.imc_ Aleinanns 00190
535504 POOM Ge4-21d PRI23ULED 31RId [S13IN 06190 — | VZANTLO | pZReN-LL pLzL _ maz mwmsh POOM Ged-31d PR133UU0) 21eid [€133 00690 | ~"9Uu0D) 3eid [€13 006190
Anuadied Enoy 000L90 PZ-IN[-60 vZ-Aei-LL Pos 2] Anuadiey yanoy 000L 90 Asuadie) yBnoy 000L9G
US| PUR POON| — PZ-AON-VL $Z-ReW-20 posL | post sapse|d pue poop, | Suse|d pue Poom
suoneaLqey (131 000SSO §Z-dy-10 vZ-fen-zo POST | 05T suonealiqey {13y 000550 SUB{F1iqe] B3N 0D0SSO.
Buupesys pue Buluely pnig (RIS JOLAXI OOLPSO ——— T ¥Boto T ¥2-Aep-Z0 P90t .__I v]cm—x. ..w.ﬂz.ﬁwz|mum!.m|5.EMuanm (R oo_.w\moi 1|u.".ﬂm k] _m.‘hwmm.cl_.wmo
b a3expeg (3315 [BNINAS G0ZISO ——  vzdesi | vzkemza | pee | pes. i T veBoxedpag einnis 00z(so | oed pais RIS 007150
£ 98eNped IS (2IMONAS 00ZIS0 E——  Tvr-dasoL VZ-RRNZ0 | ple I pLG ! & 9Bexpeq Pays [einidn g OOZLS0 | 2R 19315 (I3RS 002 [THE
S)OE JALPUY [B83S [RINONNG DOZISO | ¥Tiore0 $Z-ReN-Z0 pov PV {  siog iopuy pais fRimdnag Sﬁmo riny [9915 |2ANINAS DOZL SO
SN 5z-1dv-Z0 vZ-Aen-20 PoSZ POSZ s[RI s{Eiap
AIUOSEI, WM 000TH0 E——— SZRdEL | vehenrzo pasL PBAL Alumst| hun goizeo Mluose win 0002v0
Auosey p— SZ-923-ZL | vZ-ARW-zZ0 P&l BRSL Asiosey fosepy
JUBLUARRPUN JUSWISD NRIPAH PSED I PE-10-80 YN PLiL pLLL | JHLARMAPUN) JUBLIE) JYNEIPAH GLPSS0 | -~ IUBWSD MYNRIPAH 9L PSED
= (iomays) 219.0U07 6381g-UIISED LOOEE0 | *~IU0D A9EI4-UIISeD | 0DSE0
21912U03 370|g-UIISED 000LS0 —— - vrBhvez ve-feri-2o plg ’ pe | N 71212007 224d-UI-}E) 00OSE0 | *IURD FIBY~UKISED DOOEED
| JRLEIOMIPY HNBOUCD 0OOZE0 | IO HRIIUD) 000ZE0
BBOUC) — #Z-10-80 yZ-Aen-Z0 PLLL PLLL ajanue) 38003
IEH WaoL suny pea pue szuncbz vz-hen-zo pLIT pL8T _lleH WAOL 2UJ( pear| pue RGNS | 0L S PEST PUB SENWANS
A12j8S S4aNd W] peaT] puE S[ERIGNS sz-8ny-07 vz-ReN-z0 pLZS PLZE 12125 2(gnd WL peaT] pLE SEMWANS | *qnid SLUIL Pe3] pue S[eRiugns
seRwgns SZ-2ny-07 #Z-AeN-Z0 PLZE PLIS | B slepugns Sennugns
WBWRINDOY ¥Z-In(-62 §TP0-LE PSRL P38L “ WIWRIND0IY JUBLIBINDOL
UORINNSUCIDIY § uBisag pT-q94-92 £2-1eiN-20 PSPZT Ptz coﬁuEﬁ:Oum&u@ udisaq UM 35UOJRUG § clm_mmn_
SBUBWIWING 1i0YT Jo (A3 9T-ueL-67 pe-unf-pg POOY POO¥ SaLlewwng 1ioyd Jo [9A37] | S3HRWUINGS LoY3 Jo (3Aa7]
Alewiwing Buoisapyy 97-1dy-87 gTRRN-LO | PO6L poaL N Alewwing wcoﬁm__z. = Asewiwing auoisajiy
Xa|dwo? [edpUn UOIBIPPIA S 9e-1dy-82 SO POsL PO, 3] Ediuny UoIBPPYY | X31W0?) eI UK RN
Zz:_z?__H__n_z_o_ﬂin_om_z_izI_ﬁ“n_z_o_m_u_mqﬁ_:z:_z"_ ystuly el ay ao swey al

€Z-1eW-L0 31va viva

xo|dwo?) jediunpy uola|ppiLy

31vaddn ATHLNOW




- O 5./CLID Jo) pBlUnsse S|
ANVANOD HOHE "L AN AewW 510113 AUIPUNOY "SUOISSILIO I 4 p 1

) el
E . M),
ON "3}ep 03 dn pue 3jeindae s1 adal sIy) 2insua o} usye] usag PoYIRIS 10N me_wEn_ Byl BumQ Z_Oﬂu—“mw.”“w m.m.m_, freusung ssaifong |
- -1 ‘318 UL 1R -LO
sey uonnedaid A18A7 "saipAlde ssei804d UL O d)ep 0) FaURLLICEd mm —U._.>—WU< ——< e .mh”.«‘mm WMM. :m_c_w mmm.hm_z;o e STl [’ sy I
pue adfy Buiuies Ajanae uodn paseq ale suandaloeld 34) ‘310N 9Z- B it
L —— —_
[—— I L I oL 900y (2133 0L009Z N UBNGH 18313915 DLOOYT
wZ-Sriy- vZ- 20 PoL oL SfRUBIEN Y 09
S|euR1R)y YBnoy 1231419313 DLO0YE = - —_— i
(@333 SZ-un(-pz vZ-ReN-z0 PLIT 4 pLEZ — _B_Eu_m T (E213333
. vedsE-Ll | wier-za 3 1 pos TU[e3S9Y A5 PUB [04U0T UOHBII\ BYS0EZ | "€ [01U9 UORKIA BYSOSZ
e T s II VoS | v pe | ees | = i SioAue) SVAH 010052 ST JYAH 0L00KZ
vZ-dag-L _____S1onue) SYAH oL a3 JYAH OLOTET
s u|<>x —  Sz-uer-gl ¥Z-AeiN-70 poLL 3’xom AvAwawdinb3 JYAH 0L00ST | A IUBLIdINGS SYAH 01005
53X0g AVA Juauwdinky JYAH 0LO0SZ — ~-l == :xam.mmﬂmwm SYAH 0L00SZ | g uswdinby IVAH O 010057
dint [ — pe-boN-SZ T “pZ-Ranza pTYL pzyL o . _nhyywudinb3 5AHb1005Z | <Eu§sam JvAH 0LDOSZ
. | STz | vitewzo | peor T eeoz = SUAWBWAINDI SYAH 0LODSZ | A aLidinbT JvAH OLDOSZ
FA WBWAINDT HYAH OLOOEE R e e =t | 54 1SnewE WOUIGINbA VAN OLODSZ | 3 Wslidinba OvAH GLO0EZ
Bl ——  pzpoot | weRewzo | pezi ' ezl = $12dWeq/C5Y SIEH21EI YSIA DY OLOOEZ | *"LteIN siuid IWAH 010052
Rt [ F2Po0% vedenzo | petl | peal ==ue 8uidid JVAH 01007 | ‘8did JYAH 0L005Z
W — = Topeo | = | WOMDNADVAHOLODSZ | HOmING IVAH 0L00E?
¥Z-P0-08 vZ-Ae-z0 w9z} P9ZL i 0E
HOMINA JVAH OLD0SZ 4 s e 1 T DVAH
JVAH 52-94-.Z | ve-few-zo P90Z p90Z = =
b3 Bt yZ-dag-£L pZ-ReN-20 223 P96 | = Juswdinbg Buneuiniy 10002z | wswidin3 Buiquinig LODOZZ
wewdinb3 Bulquinid LOCOZZ Immu——— . yzdesiL | pzhenzo P96  Thoe 53U Bliquintd £ 00022 sanpay Buiguing | 000ZT
s2anxt BUIGWINLG LOOOZE se— ] S2inxid il
— vz-dog-LL FTARN-Z0 | P96 [ uBnoy Buquinid Looozz | yBnoy Buiguinld L0g0zZ
y8noy Buiquiniq LOO0ZZ i d S o
BUQWnld ¥Z-dag-LL vz-Ren-zo | pos Bo6 Buiquiny
II. #2909 YZ-ReIN-Z0 | PesL a5 Uato2j0id 2414 0L0DLZ UoyIsiaig 814 0LOOLZ
O o0 == $Z-29(0-9L vz-fep-z0 PgaL i P51 uoissziddns aa14 Uojssasddng a1
j——————————— = 2 - .~ = 1 G it I =
st SZ-Aep-ce yZ-Rep-70 PI9E pogz SI0IRARIT JYNeIPAH DOY YT SIORAS INRIPAH OOV Z |
Si0ieAs|3 HINeIpAH QovZEL — S tenE PG m P m. swshs Sukeauod SWNSAS Buthaauo)
suaishs Bufanicy gy PEAT-08 T [ = S3P2US JI0Y (ORI O0VZZL || SIBUS 131 otz OOEZ
SBPRYS JII0Y 40U DOPZZL E— 1 : d i
? SUSUIN E— SZ-ue(-SL WE-INC-06 bglLy PETL I " sBulysiuny i s3uysiuing
et - { Wwawdinby ea1aiss pood pooyLL | ik eMAISS POO] OO0 L L
dinb3 2138 poo pZ-Bry-61 YTI-08 pst { pst
wawdinb3 22188 poo uarLL e S e T per r——— wiawdib3 pue saaueyddy 00gLL | b3 pue seoueyddy 000SL
e e o e z alempieH b:zuwm 0Z&LLL 2rempiRL ANINIaS 0ZA1LL
¥2-955%0 ve-Rew-iL | P92 POL I
aiempieH AlINeg 0Z41IL iname— = wawdinby | wewdinb3
WaWdINbT — vZ-d35-20 vz-Rep-LL | PoL F9L = I I
I. VTP008 yT-UnLpL PS6 ] pso suonied siqerd0 9zzZ0t |  Suonized siqeisdn 92ZZ0L.
e ﬁre ¥Z-52a91 VZe08 | %6 ] PS6 sanyeoads Ajajes 000VOL sapjepeds A1ajes 0000l
" ooovo_l _ FTRGlE . weeos | por 0 psol 524055302 12[10L ODZOL | SaU0SSedY 190 00BLOL
st | vzoeais ve(os | psol . psob 23eU8(S 0ObLOL | 282U3(S 00V L0}
382UB(S 00PIO! ———— H = — P > 00 0L 101
PZ-330-L¢ ¥Z-INC-0E PSOL | PSOL ; spieog Aedsig [EnSiA 004101 rmw:,uwm m@%_m y_zm.s cOLLOL
T 3 mw R1>2dS 251y ooenor say(eidads st cooon_
: [ z
vZ-29Q-1e ve-unc-yL SRSl PEEL = 53l _um|nm|.. - mw;_m_um S
ey | vzaoNLz VZ-Ren-20 pLEL 154" - BRupuied _ocﬁc. £21660 | EEi‘n_,LW:wm,_mm_.go
R J ] T TR Blpueq souana 51186 Bupured 10Le1E £11660
e — YZPO-E7 yZ-AN-20 pLZL PLZL Bupurec £ 5 uhured
P ovea B0 | Builuied 004660 Buiuied 00 060
_| —_— —e————————, - e Y = Sy = it
— TvBnvel | vzkewzo oL s | ) UOREINSU[ RINSNO3Y 00LRGO | UGUEINSU: [E3SNODY 001 860
uoue|nsu| (e3SRodY QOLB40 3 3 4 P S o.oomo.mv.... e ocoooc
L - e T TR e
d. — $T-AON-PL YZ-unt-pl pSoL i () _3n3adeen oanoM 54112013 018560
3|1 13die) 018960 AR e = ot SU0oy Snowsey £24960 _l BULIG}3 SNOUISaY £22960
s meE 90 il : = _ Bunioond DU SUOYILAS 995960 | 4 AIAY SNBUIUAS 995960
veRoer | vl | pLZL "~ pizt Bunino) 119403 JfaiS pue BULISOL J3qqTY 815960 | “Ue 2 BULo0ld 2244y BLG960
AULIZACD JIEIS PUB BULICOL 13047 BIS960 E— | seewlz | yeRenes | peze . meeE i _ soUOssaldy pUE Sseq WUANISIH £15060 | PUR aseq a3 £15960
5811055320y pue aseq Ui 9y £15960 LIS i T ety —— i
, v ¢ [ e——— YZ-PO-L0 YZ-RRN-Z0 P9OL POOL . Buuconouosgpsge0 | u_.._%m_mw@m £45980
o Wi ~ ¥zpolo vZ-hen-zo POOL psoL sBUIID [FINSN0JY 00LS60 | SHUNID [eNSNOSY 00LS60
SAUYED [2NSNO2Y 0OIS60 mmme— | ¥ I el o ocwemﬂﬂ 2
3 - PZ-AON-LZ P2-AeN-Z0 PLyL ! PLL il e N e LD == e L
Y e Bng-ol | -RIN-Z0 L P9L | pieog winsdkn 006260 |  pieog wnsdAo 006260
sdAD 006760 mmmmm— Wl L |17 S EY B - 2Lt
paeog wiy e T voL oor Blwie [8135 [ENNLS-LON 917760 ﬂ 1) {EMANLG-UON 917260
Buielg |23 [RININNS-UON GLZZ60 EEENEN 4 saysiu S3YSIUL
SZHIBN-LZ ve-fen-z0 P9z P92z i ; | s
Ny ] = | SIUA PUR SIRANOT |BINIRUYIIY O0D6BO | “TBANOT [2INI3RYAY 000680
SHISA PUR SISANGT [2INJO3UUINY Q0060 mmmememem L e B L A XAl P9s p9s ! e o > et St
e—— YPO-L0 | pz-fen-zo PIOL poOL i | Buizeio 00088 721 000880
R | BUEMPIEH 100Q OOLLEO SRR} 00Q 0OLLBO
PTAONbL | pzounf-bL P&OL PSOL \
31EMDIEH 1000 00LLE0 SEE————-— : i e =
InlolsTvlicleTmIvIWlaTcJaTnNToTsTvIcIrIWIVINTITt]aINTOls VIt cINIvINIIIr[aINIOISIVICIrInIvVIALS usiuid e ay ao
) 9z0z | 5202 1 [ 1 <20z |

£C-1eN-L0 31vd vivd x3|dwo) jedpiunpy :...u.mm._vv_z 31vadn ATHLNOW




ANYAINGD HOIE "L"AN

Aeus 1003 Bulpunoy "SUOISSIUI J0 S10143 10§ PILINSSE S| ANIGe)

(22010 [
ON "Blep 0} dn pue 2jeIndde §1 Lodal Sy} 2INSUB 0} UBHE) UBSq papes JoN me_mo‘_n_Aw mmo_”_wh_w::snumwhn..urq w_m.”“““wm_w frewuins — ssaiBoig —
Sey uonnenasd A1ang "sepiane 5581304 Ui U0 djep 0) 33uBLLLIG)Iad WU—H—>—HU< 1\ bz~ ms_.wf e 10D & R0 mEg e - N —
—— 92-1dy-gZ :31eqQ USIul SZ-1BIN-LO 2180 LBlS
pue adA) Suluies Ajaoe uodn paseq ase suodsloid 3yl [ILON .
B ~ &z-dy-lg ~ vgoeazL | peL ST _SiaAed pue sfemyjep, anuo’) - u:m | “ue sAemjjep Em._uco.._v ._ ww_m_
S1pARd PUR SARMY[EM 2}RU5U0D - 915 um— e e s == _ s _ Mmr_m.:um =
. " SZ-3ny-po ¥2-PO-Z0 P&0Z | P60Z | ol HI sann s
o ~ vzroN-Lo tZ-dos-g1 PZs pzs = BuiBelsHoeg H1 sanaN 3uS | _BuiBels/speg Hi SIMINN 2US
s -0 v2-3ny-0z. PLY PLY = W04 54 SINUBN 3US | U014 Sq SAIML WS
— o o6 = (159Mm) 022G S SARURN FUS
SZ-8ny-p0 rZ-8ny-50 2344 ; P6vZ o
SZ-ue(-€0 ¥2-8nv-0zZ pZ6 BEs il
SZ2-3ny-+0 z-8ny-90 P&YT DarE s20URN 3uS _ in s
-Aep- uoyezi|Iqop SUS | uoleZIIGoN S
vz-3ny-z) | pz-Aew-ig POS POS .
SZANZL | pE-hemelg PEos Psos pomays | = A1oMaYS
— e 0 S e B g L N SSeulei Lo o0ty | 0 $Beuled WS 000rce
seLan aeulelq wIolS 000VES R e it ol P ﬂ = SRR e ooizs | sseimna Eﬂzm.mmofﬁm
sl o8RISMIS Alelues 0ODSSS .ﬂwﬂ«ﬂ,ﬂ! -— vlﬁmmnuold. T W.Ml|‘ B |Jvﬂm — | - .wzwb T oao_.mm _l SN M coo—mm
o il , ueuiowag AN S 50505¢ | Jouisg z_E:| .m@.m.om
= S3|
P e ! §.>m_z.,~o EM “ _  swen oomowm SIUE| 008675
7 s s = lmﬁlnuwm i ”ﬂ.wm o mw( T i Dl M - wuwmw.@ pLR JiN1 00Z67 oc.wowm m.m.m.u.‘_.wn:m tPl_.mmeﬁ
i i ooulomm vt FTAON-90 vZ-inc-oe paL BIUB4 MU UleYD ($8ZZE U UM UeYD) { §8TZE
i B oo _.mmINNm  yzoegegr vZIn-0g | PS6 PSH SiuBLaAIUI BYS DOBZZES rw_m.mEgEn_E_» S 008225
e s ¥Z-da5-£1 PT-IN-pe = vm. pPsSg sAUDIRK UBLLIBARY §741ZE mw‘cme»E:oEuEn mNS.Nm
SBUD e JUIWIAARY £7407C pss T e —
& Buineq ajqiald 917175 | Buined 21124 9121 25
— bZ-33g-9L PZ-In(-0g (26T P SpusLU3ADIdW] J01RPE _ BUCTHTELGIL TTEVOVE |
SpuBLIBAOIdLY J0LRIXT e et = . - — it i
S Tist s Gt . A = Bupieald aus 000LLE Suise2)) XS 00OLLE
Buues|) aNS 0OOLLS e = YZ-AeiN-0% - vhenezo PLZ FN i e oL :
¥Z-AeN-0% ¥2-ReiN-Z0 BLE Mz | — spomyyes -l JomyHes
S ooom | zonczo | wedeen PIi pit sBuIpling Bupsixg o 0UB] 0NOZZ0 | " SUNSEE Jo 0w GUOEZO
TR 000 000220 pe-ung-zo P AL PLL Pt T—— SuaRpuUe) 3unsixg suopuo) Sunsixg
. -390~ -AeN-Z0 posL posL | E SIENIWgng Sig SIERIQNS 3us
SIPHIWGNS 3US ——— ¥z-39Q-9L ¥ 20 s — >_‘_mm
| P UORRUIPIoE] S/WI dIW | uoReuIpIoo) Qs/Wie
—— pz-d38-£1 YZ-Ren-z0 po6 pos | waludirbs wRishs ALINDSS H0008Z b3 M;E&m ANINdEE 00008Z
ATy ¥Z-9as-L1 YTRe-70 ) P96 |... — S[eLIRIRIN USIIL] WRYSAS AUNDas 000082 | i WiaisAS AWInass 00008z
S[RUSIRI YSIu WRSAS ALNJ3S 000087 me—— —_— e = bR I s YBnoy Washs Aunoas googgz | - oy WolsAs Aninoes 00008z
Pyt i i pe— | pzdesLL Z-Ren-Z0 P36 P96 wiIsAs Aaunaas ajuo)a9|3 paresBajy| UNDA5 uai3|g pajesdsiu)
e e B ——— ~da5-, vZT-RRN-Z0 - Po6 poé | SlerieiN ysiuty Adojounda) 0000LZ | usiulg ASojoutda) 0000L2
e e oo —— ”w%mw” Ve | 298 [ sleusIei YBroy ASojoupal 0000Lz | uEnoy ABoIoUa] 0000LT
T st emmm—— vz-0o54l | vz-Aem-z0 P96 P96 Aojouyda) A3ojouypay
oL e—— PT-AON-L yZ-ReN-Z0 post | [ Suouels BuBIeyD 3PILAA (22119913 0LO09Z | D SPIEA FIHIIOIE 0L009Z
suonelg Auidiey BPWEA [2L12(3 OLO0OT E— LAl R 2 . past T [ A
MR i — e L I R s — UI)SAS [oAoD [e2U13513 0L009Z | 51841103 (29142313 010092
i Tt i szuncbz | viden-zo piez . piez | ___SQdpiuewdinb] jamog [ROI3(3 010092 | b Jamod LA 0L005Z
SQ4A wswdinb3 J3mog [2211199(3 010052 Il lM.l:mn.v.w.. ey o — vam,Nl o A — )vaw. — = ww..w..?m S o P ‘_WBESSWE o_.§ = _Eson_ ﬁu:l«wm_mlﬂ_.ycmﬁuuwl
STYPUMS Jajsues] Wwawdinb3 Jamogd (23183 OLOOST e Nc i upmw. i o - ey EmEa_:_uw,‘_\uwsbn_ i 016067 ﬂ ST e
10jetausg) wawdinb3 JsMog 123112313 0L00ST, mN.c_._nrvw ._ - e No . = .Nm;llch_.o\.mxcm_h EuEaiuw B!om:lmw«.u!m o—ogwlml ..m.w.u_;w\&om_\mg.bum_m o_.oowa‘m‘
s1auniojsues) wswdinby Jamod [23U33(3 OLOOGT e .vmﬁni.wo = mwwmm‘_mummua Ewﬁ;ﬁqﬁm E;am@ﬁ}u_m o e _mu:tu_m —
splecqiaued juawdinb3 Jamod [BaU193(3 0LO0SZ vm.avw.wm _ Tt nom - .vﬁo\ml EcwEE.a.wcwmm mmwmnwwmwmcmgavm Jamog [2a198(3 01009 b3 Jamog _mue_ﬁu_m o_.ooom
SaWNYSU) pue sjonue Juawidinb3 12Mod [e201923|3 0L0097 R |mm.:£.|v~).w L .vln.>.n.2.~o = - Mmm i - mor_H?mmmlcﬁoum_mW,Wmiﬁam.Wme‘.muEum_w e B e:.,.vovow|
S3UIIMS PRULDISI JusWAND3 13MOd 231313 QLODIZ | szunrbz | vzkewezo | ez |._ “pigz e 310003 SO0 Wdlichnb3 Jomad [eau132( 010097 | ..cm 13mod [PL12213 01009
S1043U0Y L0I0W BWAINDT 1m0 [3U1I3(3 OLOOGE pz-dagry | PI-ReN-20 | 796 3 Y = mlu—on pue mw._:c:n_ atmg _ﬂt-u@mgow 3 .o:W«xm.»Mux_.,_Wm_m oL009Z
$9]0d PUR S2UNJX14 JOUIXT (2211033 OL00ST e et = e o5l velw;l. == - T TR IeTT . A cmm
o = PT-90-9L vz-feni-z0 | PoSL Pes5L SIBLANIY HSIU1 (eI 0] 0092 B WSIUL [E11153)F £1L009T
S|RURIBIN YSiuLd 123112313 0LOO9Z ! 2 s o -
[WIvInWTaTc[aINTolsIv It cIwWlvInWla]c vicleTwlvIin]a ysiuny uelg a
I ¥Z0z $707

£Z-1e-10 31va viva

x31dwo?) [ediunpy uok|PPLN

31vadn ATHINOW




e

ANYAINOD HOIH "L AN Aeur 510159 BUIPUNGY "SUOISSILIO JO $10113 10 pawINSse st AJqel

. i [eonus
ON "2}ep 03 dn puk 3jeindde st podal sIy) 2INsUE 0} ua)e} usaq Pa}.RIS JON ‘ssaufoid Ulalld JBumO AYADNDY Y IM MBIA
sey uonnedaid AlzA3 ‘santanoe ssesdoid vl ua sjep oy soueuopad mw—ﬁ—.>—.u.u< ——< PZ-ABiN-pL [B1EQ JUBHND) SE-IEN-L0 1Y Bleg Alewuwing e ssaudod l
G pue adAy Buwies Ajanoe uedn paseq e suonratord ayy 310N == gz-1dy-8Z :@1ed Ysiuld £7-18N-10 :31ed 1els SBUCISIIN @ wauny
U023Q/INCLIN] 183 - BAIY 14 SAYSIUIY | — $2-320-91 sz-8nv-zz PeL. 8L UDI3Q/INOUINY JB30) - BAIY A SASIUL | Ny JEdD) - eay il SAyS|ILY
100Y IO - BAIY 3|0 SIYSIULY me— SZ-AON-6L G2-3ny-5L P99 P99 W00y 424207 - BRIY 3O SSYSIUL | 1307 - BALY 3310 SAYSIULY
SAUSIIL PUE S{iEM| i— 5Z-AIN-90 SZT-U4Z P56 pss = SausiuiL] pUe s|iep SAYSIUL] PUB S{EpM
SBUNED OV e—  szEwal SZ-un(-60 pos [ = s3ufR) 1OV sBUe) 1OV
SBUI8 PIeH et Sz-8ny-87 SZ-UNf-60 PLS PLS | = sunien pieH sBue) pieH
SOUSIULY GZ-AON-90 SZ-unr-60 | PSOL REOL 1 SaYsIuI4 SAYSIL
[ — sE-unrs7 Sz-1dv-01 Pl pLs = yBney e 4B MUl
UBN0Y PEAYIRAC e  Szmest ST-ady=50 PiL PLL YBNoY peaaag YENnay peayang
U-48NCY ee— - szincst | Sz-dv-gg PLL pLL ul-yBnoy uj-yanoy
L [3AD7 00[ 1Sitd - S Ne————— S2-230-91 §Z-1dy-¢0 POLL PoLL L [PA87 10014 35414 - Sd L {837 10014 35114 - Sd
SBUSILL] PUE S{I2M | — SZP0-0F SZ-UNC-60 POOI poolL SBUSIUL4 pUe S|iem 53YSIULd PUe S{[EpM
SBUNRD LIV = SZ-INr-St SZ-RRN-9L Piy PLY sAuiftad 19V s3ua) oV
sBUIIRD) pIeH ma SZ-INC-L0 SZT-Ae-91 I pag (47 A s3uie) piey sauley BIeH
SOUSIUL NE— STPO0¢ | SeAenGL pSLL | peLL saysid | sayswlg
[ R e—  sz-ung9p sz-¥dv-ol Pir PIY Bnoy Em-Ul | yFnod ([EM-
YSnoy pesysen) - Tez-un{-90 SZ-109-5Q Pop Pow yBrioy peatsang | yBnoy peayiang
uFYSNoY e Sz-un(-90 Gz-ady-c0 Por PSY -yfnay w-ydnoy
72A37 100}3 PUGIZS - Sd E—— SZ-P0-05 sz-1dy-go PSYL PovL i ~ Zppe 1001 pUBIRS - 54 Z 9427 400} PUORS - S
Mo AljeS - Jooy pado|S . ST®490 ¥T-Ra-1L PO¥ poy Hod Alfes - jooy vwau_m._. Hod Afes - jooy padols
Aeg snieleday - jooy padolS E— STUN(-ZO | PZ-AON-9T POEL pOEL Aeg sneseddy - jooy pado|s | Aeg sieleddy - jooy padolg
3113 3PIG IR - V 0} 3 UWno j00y POl m— | czngzo | peaoNel | pesi pegl 204 3P| e~y ©1 3 Uinjo3 JO08 pRdsIS | - v 03 3 utinge jooy padors.
Mg Mgnd Bpig Wiel - 3 03 () UWUIN(OD J00Y PRAOIS I—— | szHunt-zo YZ-AON-80 POPL POvL #3315 3(jand Bpig UIRW ~ @ 01 ) LWN(e JooY padaLS 30111 UWIN[OD jo0y padols
9110d Spig IR - £ 03 M LWIN(Y J00Y P3UDIS E—— Sz-unt-zo T~ “vz-roN-Lo | P51 o5pi 32110ci 3pie uke - (1 01 M LWIN{oD o0y Padols | *+*n 03 M ulinfe jooy padols
00y padols me—— $§2-unf-zQ YT-AON-LO _ PSPL papL | o0y padols jooy padojg
JO0Y 3214 \— SZ-1EN-90 ¥Z-330-p0 | PES [ Jo0y 8|4 J00Y 384
100y - S —— Sz-unr-zo PZ-AON-LO PSHL pSpL Jood - Sd j004-Sd
LLM - 9ZM 1L Uolidag ad -Sd 5Z-3nv-40 S2-0984-0Z P8LL PELL LLM - 9ZM L1 uondag adofesud - 5d | “Zam LI UORD9S 3dopAu - Sd
9ZM - GZL 0L UOHIS 9d0[EALT - 54— SZ-2ny-90 52-933-52 PrLL PPLL _ = 9ZM - 97L 0L Uod3s 3dojaAUT - Sd | “ZL L uondas adojaug - Sq
921 - 6L1 6 UenIBS 3dopPAIT - g §2-3ny-50 Sz-9%3-0L pgzL pezL | 9ZL-6LL 6 Uopadg 3dajaAUT - g | " pLL 6 UONIIS 3d0j2AL3 - Sd
6LL - 617 B UORODS 300D - S I— " sz-nv-po SZ-ue(-0g oL pozl | . 6LL- 61180205 300jaAUT - Sd | 6L B UOWIAS A00PAUT - Sd
6171~ 821 L U01235 3d0[BAUT - S I— | sz-nv-10 sz-uer-Lz pSEL | [35 | 617-871 L Uolpas adofeAdl - Sd | - 8271 £ Uoas 3dojaauT - Sd
877~ 828 § UOIIIS AACRAUS - 54 FE—— SZ-InC-Lg SZ-uer-yZ | PLEL PLEL | 871 - 878 9 N9 3doBALT - Sd | " BZd 9 UONIIS 3dojRAUT - Sd
826 - 818 § UG9S BA0[IAUT - 5 EEE———— sz-n[-0g Sz-uer-oL | POVL [ 828 - BLA § UONAG adofRAuT - §d | * gLE § uondag adoEAUT - §d
19 - z8 ¥ UonDS ado(EAUI - 54 T szncez $Z2-080-L parL pEYL i 919 - 28 v UoIas adoEAUT - 54 | - 78 ¥ UoNdaS 2doPALT - Sd
26 - 27 ¢ Uoyd3S 3defRAU3 - Sd STINC-8Z | vZ-9eQ-ut pYSL PbSL 28~ 771§ o335 3dofaAu - Sg | - 27§ uoldas adojeau3 - Sd
27~ 20 ZUCIIS 300RAUT - 54 I— SZ-InC-52 cm.uwﬂ.«"o POgL PORL 21-2Z0 Z uomag adoppaug -sq | - ~ Z0 g uonaas adoaaul .ﬂ
Z0 - LM L ueiiaag adoy -S4 i ST-INE-¥Z PT-AON-9Z P99L P99L 20 - LIM | Uoh3as adopaud - Sq “LLM L uondas adojanu3 - §d
d -Sd SZ-Bnv-L0 | bZhoNteZ oLl [T adojenz - 54 "~ odopauz-sd
ModA{[zs/3uIm 3310d 3PRID UO QeS - Sd Sz-ady-1t Ge-uer-£z prS prs vodAjes/Buim aaiiod 3peI Uo qeIs - Sd 1M 321i0d SPRIS UG QB[S - 54
feg sneleddy/Buim 2114 3peiS U GR(S - Sd p— 5Z-10N-ZL PZ-AON-LE PZL PZL Aeg smeieddy/Buim aud 9peig uo eis - Sq | " Buip A1 SPRID U0 QRIS - S
8pig utey 3peiD) Uo QRS - S — GZ-uer-zg vZ-P0-LL prg PvS SPIg UIEW BPRID U0 QRIS - Sd | BPIA UIRW 2pesd uo ges - 5d
BPRID U0 QRIS - Sd — gZ-idy-1 1 vZRoLL | przt PrzZL 9peID Uo gR|s - 5d apemuo RS - 5d
Aeg smeseddy/Buim 8114 3030 U0 GRIS - Sd el PZ-MON-LZ ¥Z-10-87 paL P8L Aeg smpeseddy/Suim 3113 373Q U QRIS - Sd | */BUIM 2414 XPBq Lo Qe[S - 54
UIBI %320 UO Q€[S - Sd PZ-AON-pL vZ-P0-LT PaL - paL U[BIN %330 U0 GeIS - Sd Ulep 3920 UO GBS - Sd
X350 UO GeIS - Sd pemd YZ-AON-1Z #2-10-12 psz pEL =  pPequoqeRS-Sd 320 U0 qeIs - Sd
HodA||es/BUIm 22)10d 2INNNS B UOREPUNCS - Sq ——— ¥Z-AON-LO #Z-8nV-02 (4 245 HodA|jes/BUiIM 330d 2ININAS 1§ UONEPUNOA - Sd | * SINMINNS § UohEpUnc .m.
Aeg smieieddy/8um 3.4 2NRNIS 1§ UCHEPUNAS - Sd mme— ¥Z-P0-5Z ¥Z-8ny-00 PLS PLS feg snieieddy/Buip 214 2INDNUIS 1§ Uoepunod - Sd | m.:l«u:bm J§ uonepunad - d
uigpy 3MINAS § UONEPUNGS - Sd VZ-PO-AL Z-INC-&T PZ9 i pPZe Uiy 8IS a.:urmuc_._an_ ~Sd | ' 2mpnis g uonepuno - Sq
2INIPANG § UOHEPUNOL - Sd YZ-AON-LO vZ-In(-52 pzL | pzL  MPNASSUOREPUNOA-Sd | AUMIANIS N UOREPUNDA - 5
UOHEUIPIO0D) dAN - Sd In— ¥2-10-08 pE-idy-57 PLEL | PLEL UOWRUIPICOD dIN - Sd UGHRUIPIOOD dII - Sd
Buip(ing Aajes 1ang 9z-1dy-8T ¥Z-1dv-52 PZos | PZOs Buipiing Asajes Jignd Buipyng Aajes ayqnd
Buideaspuen - 3S —— SZ-AON-ZL SZ-unC-y0 PLLL | PLLL = Buidedspue - aus Buidedspue - ayg
SjuaWRA0IdW| AYS - S |m~.>oz.o— Sg-unc-¢0 pPLLL __ PLLL suaweAodwl a)s - oS | SjusWBACICW| 3YS - BT
InJols[wlr[cWIvInTaTcTaTnToTsTvIclclwlivIwlaTc[aINTolsIvIcIcIwlvInalc]aln]olsIv]clcInlvInia [T Helg ay ao BweN
9207 1 5202 | [74 ! £207
|
€Z-1eN-10 31vd Viva xa|dwo) [eddiunpy uoyappIw

31vadn ATHLNOW




1sIXe

ANVANOD HOE "L AN Aewi 51013 Bulpunoy "SUOISSIUD 10 SI0LB 10} paWINSSE S| Ajlqel|

[e2huD
ON "3)ep 0) dn puk ajeinaze si Jodas sy 2iNSUB 0} usKe} Uasg Pa)ie)S 10N ‘ssai801d UlsHd 18UMO AJALDY Y LM SMBIA
sey uonnesard Aiaag "sanianoe ssa.30.d Ui uo 3ep 0) BauBLIIOAd S? —H.—>—HU< ——< FE-AeIN-L :B)e() BLND §Z-1BN-LO 133Eq BIR] AIBUILUINS ssaifoud [
Y pue adA} Buules Apanse uodn paseq ae suonoalold ay) 310N =0 - gz-1dy-87 :2)eQ Ysiuld $Z-le-10 91ed 1ElS SBUOISAUN @ waund [
SBUSD 1OV — SZ-unr-90 SZ-1en-1g p&p ~ per s3uye) 1oV sAuye) 10y
SBUNED PreH pmmen SZ-un(-gL SZ-RN-LE Pos [ s8uya) paep s8ula) paeH
SAYSIULY ee— GZ-BOY-9F SZ-RN-LE PrOL 0L sayily saystuyy
UBnoy ((em-ul SZ-1dy-Z0 ST-934¥Z pgz paz y3noy jlem-u; ~ yBnoy fem-u]
YENoyY pesyisA0 et sz-fepy-10 ST-9ed-6L PLS Pls YBnoy peayizag y3noy peaysang
| ulFYENoY — STALNAD SZ-934-61 PIS PLS Uj-Enoy upy8noy
Z[RAYT 10014 PUO2RS - DD/HL I— SZ-dny-ef ST-934-61 PEEL PEEL 2 [9A37 4004 pUC3IS - ID/HL | 2194974601 Puodss - ID/HL "
400(4 PUEDRS DD/HL ——  szEnvgz ST-Q33-61 pzsL 2418 10014 puo3ss D3/HL, 10013 PuoIss 30/HL
asodundiyniy - o0 = 6Z-934-8L ¥Z-290-81 pzy pzr asedindiynpy - jooy asodind)yny - Jooy
SAIURIUT JBIU] APUNILIC) PUB (|2 UMOL - JOOY $Z-983-20 VZ-3EQg-LL PLE | PLE $3IUBIIUZ 43)UB) ALUINUILUOD) PUB [jEH UMOL - JOOH | “WLLAT) PUE jef UMOL - JOOY
WeN - 00y ne— 52948 PZ-AON-9Z PS5 . PS9 i UIEN - Jooy uiely - Joay
1004 - 30/HL —— s FEAM-GT P9 | psw _ ooH-3o/HL | 4004 -30/HL
Uy U] AUnuILe) 107 Buppied ey 2do[RAUT H] nE— SEANELT PLLL | PLLL B3UBNUT 1IUD AYUNWLIOY 10T Buplied doeg adoj@aug HL | T m.ﬁ_\_mn_ yoeg adofpaug HL
BPIS YHON 107 Bupjieg oeg Sd0[EAUT H I— SZ-INC-v2 §2-924-60 pLLL | PLLL 3PS YUON 10 Bupiied Yoeg sdoPAUT HL | 1 Bubpieq g sdojEaug HL
3PIS YHON 2d0[RAUS HL e— szereLL SZ-ue(-0S PLLL PLLL | SPIS YON adoPAUI HL | 9PIS UHON 3doPAT HL
BPIS YHON JUOL 3TOBAUT H ee—— SZ-INC-0L Gz-uel-£7 pLLL AT 9IS YLION U044 9d0AUT HL | 3PIS YMON 3u0.4 adojarug HL
BOURHU3 [[EH UMOL A0PAUT H| Ee— SZ-INC-Z0 | GZ-uer-oy pLLL PLLL | @3uenuy (|eH umaL sdoRAUT HL | "Bl {lH UmoL 2d0[@AuT HL
BPIS YINOS U013 IAOPAUT H1 i Sz-ung-57 Sz-UeC-60 pLLL PLLL | SPIS YINOS Ui4 2dO[BAU HL | SPIS YINeS Juol] adojeAug H,
3PIS YINOS FACIPAUT H | I— | sz-unraL SZ-ue(-20 PLLL PLLL 2piS Yinog adoj@Augz H, BPIS UINas 300[RAUI HL
3PIS YIN0S 107 Bubjied Yrg 2do[EAUT H) e SZ-unp-OL ¥Z-380-4T PLLL pLLL 9PIS Yinos 307 Bubjieq yaeg sdojeAug HL | 1 Bupjied Yoeg adojsaul H1
uonannsuo) adofsaul - DD/HL SZ-Inf-Lg $Z-320-T pesL PZSL uepInasuo) adof@aug - 33/HL | wononnsuc) adojpaug - UU\IH
apeis uo qeis - D7/H | mme— SZ-1BN-S0 ¥2-320-0L P&S P&s 8peiS U qejS - D)/HL apess uo qejs - D/HL
322Q U6 GelS - 23/HL W SZ-ue-22 7233042 POZ POz 323@ U0 qeiS - 53/HL 33 Ue qefs - 39/HL
BINIPNIS B UONEPUNO = D3/HL Nes— ¥2-230-5¢ vz-8ny-£z7 po8 pPog 2UNJNAS 1§ UGYepUNoy - 33/HL | 2IM3NAS & UOHEPUNoS - D3/H.L.
UBREUIPI0OD dIIN - ID/H | pE-2Rg-1E vT-AeN-60 PLRL PL9L UORBUIPIOOT 3N - D3/HL UoBeUIPIORT dIA - ID/HL
123 ANUnWIWOT pue [jeH umop 9z-1dy-87 yZ-AeiN-60 pZoy pzot | J2UPD AMUNWILLIOY PUE [(BH UMO) | 481Ua3 A)UNLULIGD PUR (eH UMOL
NSO PUE UOKAWOD) - S — 9Z-idy-g7 9Z-ue(-gg PLY PL® 1 IN0ASO[) puE UORBIIWOD - S¢ | IN02S0[) PR UoRA|dUID] - S
EIIN200 J2UMQ 10} 3(Qe(IeAy - S —— 9Z-idy-LL 9Z-ue(-05 pss == pss | U|-8A0W / Aouednoa(Q) JAUMQ J0J AQE[IRAY - S | **I20 JAUME O} 3EIIEAY - S
0405/ uoneidwos [eRUeISqnS - —— 9Z-uer-62 SZ-120-82 P9 217 0403/ uona|dwioe) =Rueisqns | "o 3 / UoBRIdWO) [2RUBISENS
SHABPYY (BUL — 92-ueC-80 SZ-P0-12 PES PLS N SHARPIYY fULY SHABPYY [EUL
young [eurd / sdnuels / 3unss) ss—  gz-uec-sy sz-8ny-sg | PLLL PLLL B Upung [eutd / sdnyess / Bunisat | -nd (euld / sdniets / Bupsay,
URR() /1S PUNG — Szoag-l§ | sz-8nv-go | pB6 | P86 ueals /151 youngd ~ uesp/isnyaung
uona|dwod - Sd 9z-1dy-82 Sz-Any-50 PZ8L PZ8L uopaduio) - 54 uoyaduIe) - 54
(B2LIIFF PUE [EIIUBLDBIN - §d I SZ-des-g2 vZ-380-LL ProL PEoL {B3L028]3 pue |e3URYIAN - Sd [B211333]3 pue jesluewdal - Sd
O UIE)S ——— SZ-AON-90 SZ-1epy-sL P99L PY9L o' ieis Yo =g
A Sz-1052 Sz-len-sL P51 PgsL - s ams caes
LS T szv0-sz SZ-uer-s0 PrOT PPOZ L g L Jeis
Zaeis SZ-R0-EZ SZ-UR[-50 proz praz Z s s
Siieis - Sd SZ-AON-90 §Z-ue(-co PrLZ PPLZ SRS - Sd SAeS - m&l
10jeA812 - 5d ST-NON-LL pz-any-LZ PO0E PoOE 10)2A8(3 - Sd Jojess3 - Sd
SBYSIULY PUE S|IEM e — ST-MON-LT SZ-C-10 POOL 001 SBUSHU PUR SHiEM | SSYSIUL pue Sjepm
SBUED 1OV e - sZnr-ez SZ-Re-20 PLY pLY sBued 1oV _SBuad 1oV
SBUNIBD PitH — ST-PU-LT SZ-Aen-Z0 PSS PGS s3uya paeH - s3uywe pieq
SIUSIUL p— SZ-AON-LZ sz-Rew-zo PLEL pLvL  sayswuy SaysIUL
Y3noy lem-ul el 5Z-Un(-0g sz-ady-5z oy POt 43Ny [[2m-ty _ Bno fem-y
YBNoY PeaueAl SZ-unf-£2 SZ-idg-0lL PLS PLS 4Bnoy pesuRAg yBnay peayseag
UIFYENOY — SZ-unC-0% §Z-1dy-0L [ g5 uj-ySnoy ul-ysnoy
feg /BUIM 3114 - Sd SZ-AON-LZ ST-0-0 pgoy PGl = Aeg snizieddy/Suim 344 - 54 Aeg smeseddy/Bupg ai - 5d
sty odAes m— SZ10-L0 SE-|AEE2 BiG P55 ysiug podA(jes usiuld Uodslles
USIUL UORUSIE] — Sz-AN-LZ | szAem-os pLzL Pzl | I Uohumag s uoiReq
YBnoy uonuiRq el SZ-ung-50 sz-dyyL * [ PRs = yBnoy oiziag yAnoy Lanuaeg
uonuE( es—— SzAON-Lz | Sg-idyepl PSL Pr5L [ILTHVERET | uopuleq
Sum 334104 - Sd GZ-AON-LT sz-rdy-p) PPSL PUSL | - BuypA330d ~Sd | Buim adiod - Sd
CIwIvInTaTcTalNTols TVl cIWIvIWIa[cJoINTo STV [cIWIVIWII| ysmu ueig ay ao surN a
520T [ ¥Z0Z | 207

€7-1eN-10 31Va Viva

xajdwo) [edpiunpy uoppIvy

31vddn ATHLNOW




15
ANVAWOST HOIM "L M Aew s10.8 BUIPUNGY "SUOISSILIG JO SI0LIB 10§ PILINSSE St ARIqey p——
aN “ajep o] dn pue ajeindae S1110d0) SIY) 2INSUE 0) Uaje) Usaq Pa1IEIS JON 'ssedoid UL JaUmMO ANAILY ¥ 1M TMBIA £ o =l
SSau301
sey uopnedasd A1BAZ “SONIALIE 55218040 Ul Lo 23Ep 0} BouUBLLOpIad bZ-REiN-pL :318Q IURLINT §Z-1EW-L0 B1Eq 1eq HELUWNS d I

T pue 2dAz Buiuses Apanoe uodn paseq sie suoldsfod sy 310N

SOMAIDY IV

9Z-1dy-BZ [B1BQ YSIUIL SZ-1BN-10 ©21EQ KRS

SPUOISAIN

LN E

10250 pue UoNRIAW0) - 54— kv szwec0s | po | pio 3590 PUE USRIW03 - Sq | 10995010 7178 uojisiiio - sq
MANI20 JBUMD 104 BIQIIAY - Sci i 92-+-LL QT-uef-0g PSS _ PSS 4]-3A0 / A3URdNIDE JIUMQ 0] BIEIRAY ~ Sd | Q) JAUMQ JO) BQRIEAY - mnl
0403 / uonsidwo) [enueisgng | Szuer6r ST-P0-9L PLL Y, = Q 403/ Uonalduio ERURSANS | 3 / Uoysidiua) erueisqng
SHARPIYY [2Ul et 9T-Ue[-80 SZ-P0-80 Pi5 | PLY Sy Ry | SYARDUY Py
ueneidau) Junss] ealy Y2iRdSIG/AOMISN SZ-1P0-62 Sg-des-oL 53 Pt uopesdaju) Bupsal ealy ynledsiaHUOMEN | "3y ealy yledsia/HomisN
Bupsal /sdnueIs 43N I EEEE— ST-RC-LO SZ-(NC-60 P66 Pas Bunss | fsdn)ieis 43w Buysa) /sAnuels dIW
Bunsa] A19JeS 5017 B [BUCHOUN ey 9Z-ue(-pL €Z-das-p7 PSL PSL Bunsa) Alejes 317 § [euopdung | © 3L A34eS 34T [eUaRIUNS
Sunsal [eUORUNRIY § WyRId se-das5z Sg-dag-o0L POL POl BUYSA] [PUOLSUNISIY B “WIRN] | "3 [BUONIUNJEIG 1§ WiRld
ydung eulg / sdnues / 8unss]  ees— oT-uel-p| GZ-inr-60 pP&TL PoZL yound (euld / sdnyiays / Sunsal | o pud / sdniiRlg / Bupsay
URR[ /1S UG — szl SZHNII0 | psol Pg0l Ueap /151 uoung "7 Theap /351 pung
D - 20/HL 9Z-1dy-8Z SZ-In(-60 PLOZ PLOZ uopajduiol - 33/HL uons(dwo) - 30/H1
bsopD pue uousIdwos - J0/HL 9z-1dv-8Z | Sz-Int-60 pLOZ PLOZ — 10950]) Pu UoPaIAWIC) - JI3/HL | SO[) pue uoRa|dWo) - 33/HL
uf-ar0jy / AouednIdg IBUME 10} 3|qR(1RAY - 33/HL | * 0 JRUMQ 10} B|qeleAY - JI/HL
uona|dwo) [epurlsgns/sucladsul/unss) - 33/H1L | * /suoyladsu)/Bupsa - UU\I.—.I
[ED12198]3 pU (EMUBYIBIN - D/HL STR0-2Z vT-23Q-p2 P&0Z P60Z [£211333]3 pue |edluewpaly - 33/HL | °193(d pue [2alueydd - 30/HL
SRS - HL — 5Z-8ny-90 §Z-1dy-¢0 PL8 pL8 SUEIS - HE SUES - HL
1018A3(3 - DI/HL 52-290-80 vZ-das-67 P&6T Pb6T 101eA9(3 - J0/HL oAzt - 3/HL
£9q07 10014 15114 - DD/HL wm— 52-8ny-61 SZ-INC-£0 433 133 £qqo7] 400l ¥s414 - 33/HL Aqqen 100} 35114 - 53/HL
WNBA 10013 3503 - 33/HL | sz-deseL PZ-AON-SL pzliz | Pz = APBA 100143804 -20/HL | WneAaaidisud - 3/HL
UBYEIY 40013 15114 - DD/HL e— 52-520-51 SC-1eN-07 P98l P9gL R 10014 18314 - 20/HL UBYA 4001 154 = DI/HL
wooy 3sodindiyniy 20011 15114 - DO/HL I— ~ sev0-lz SZ-BN-£L PPSL PPSL wiooy 9sodindiniy 1001438414 - I/HL | ndi(niy 100(4 18u1 - 33/HL
IR B o O —————— | azpo-z 52-18N-50 psoL pgoL —— L [BAST 00033544 =D0/HL | L (348740014 15413 - 53/HL
10014 351t - D0/HL ST-320-9L FZ-AON-5{ POLT POLZ 10014 35413 ~ 3D/HL 100143804 - D/HL
SaUSIILS WOOY Buriesh el SzZ-In-LL SZ-Un(-p0 PO POS saysiuL{ wooy Bupeay saysiul] wooy Suuea
SAYSILS PUB SEM — sz-3ny-97 S2-1dy-g0 PLOL PLOL SBUSII pue sjiem SaUsIUL pUE SIIEM
INToTs TVl cTWIvInTaTcTaINToTsIvIc I rIwIvIwlalc]alN[olsIvIclcInIvInlalr]alnlols]v] VW Ysiug Heis a3 ao owieN |
9202 1 S207 T 9207 I €207
£Z-1eN-10 31VQ VIVd xajdwo) [eddiunjy uolsIppIN 31vadn ATHLNOW




